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FINANCIAL HIGHLIGHTS
MBERE

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
B 5T FHET FET
For the year ended 31 December HE+=-A=+—H
IEFE
Revenue WA 779,305 1,267,140
(Loss)/profit for the year FE (E18),mH (340,909) 11,777
(Loss)/profit attributable to owners BB AEWE (BB),/EH (291,072) 4,650
(Loss)/earnings per share FR (B8R &7
Basic (in HK cents) A B (4.94) 0.08
Diluted (in HK cents) 5% (OB) (4.94) 0.08
Average shareholders’ equity FHREER 1,344,173 1,460,608
Average capital employed FHEFAEAR 1,742,673 1,660,253
At 31 December Wn+=—AR=+—H
Total indebtedness BET 1 1,300,011 533,834
Shareholders’ equity % B84 % 1,229,337 1,459,009
Capital employed FAER 2 1,925,912 1,559,434
Ratio 5 g2
Return on average capital employed FHEAEARERE 3 (19.56%) 0.71%
Return on average equity 9 e 2 [0 R R 4 (16.70%) 0.28%
Total debt to total capital RmBeEEAEARLE R 5 51.39% 26.09%
Notes: ks
1) Total indebtedness = total interest bearing borrowings 1) BER =B ERE
2) Capital employed = shareholders’ funds + non-controlling 2) BEAER = BRESD + FEILREDS + IER
interests + non-current liabilities BHaE
3) Return on average capital employed = (loss)/profit for the 3) FHUBAEALBRE = FE (F518) &5 H
year/average capital employed S EHESRER
4) Return on average equity = net (loss)/profit attributable to 4) FHEmESRE = A ARG (BEB) &
owners/average shareholders’ equity MFeE TR E R
5) Total debt to total capital = debt/(shareholders’ funds + non- 5) MeFERAERLR =-8E/ (BRRESE +

controlling interests + debt)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW

For the year ended 31 December 2019 (“Year"), the Group’s
revenue amounted to approximately HK$779.31 million
(2018: HK$1,267.14 million), representing a decrease
of 38.50% over last year. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$112.93 million (2018: HK$169.93 million).
The loss (net of tax) was approximately HK$340.91 million
(2018: Profit (net of tax) was HK$11.78 million). Loss per
share for the Year was HK4.94 cents (2018: Earnings per
share was HK0.08 cents).

The Group will continue to control the costs and focus
on existing resources to further strengthen and grow the
Group’s business both organically and through acquisitions
when appropriate opportunities arise. The Group considered
the business mix has been diversified during the past few
years. The Group will focus on the existing businesses and
will expand by self-development and investing in similar
business. Investments would be carefully selected among
all the choices we explored and would be operated with
experienced business partners.

SEGMENTAL INFORMATION

Wine and Liquor Business

The Group's wine and liquor business was principally
engaged in the sale and distribution of wine and liquor in the
PRC.

During the Year, the wine and liquor business recorded a
revenue of approximately HK$4.88 million (2018: HK$8.33
million), down 41.42% when compared with the last year
and accounted for 0.63% (2018: 0.66%) of the total
revenue. The sales decreased because the Group focused less
on this business segment. The Group will keep to explore
new customers but expects the sales will contribute a small
portion to the Group’s revenue in the future.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEEN®R DN

Trading of Food Products Business

Trading of food products business recorded a revenue of
approximately HK$388.18 million (2018: HK$772.71 million),
accounted for 49.81% (2018: 60.98%) of the total revenue.
Gross profit of this business segment for the Year was
approximately HK$6.06 million (2018: HK$21.73 million). The
sharp decrease in revenue was due to the decrease in trading
of commodity hog as the market was seriously affected by
African Swine Fever.

Construction and Development Business

Following the successful bid for the land use rights of a land
parcel in Lianyungang, Jiangsu in PRC on 5 December 2017,
the Group already obtained the Land Planning Permit and
the Construction Planning Permit for the “Seafood Food
City"” during the year 2018. The commercial housing pre-
sale permit of phase one of the Seafood Food City was
also obtained and start selling in the second half of 2019.
However, the outbreak of navel coronavirus affected the sales
plan and construction plan. It is expected that the whole
construction of the Seafood Food City on the Land Parcel will
be delayed to late 2020 or early 2021.

Rental Business

The logistic facilities and office facilities renting business
recorded a revenue of approximately HK$238.55 million
(2018: HK$249.97 million), accounted for 30.61% of the
total revenue. Gross profit of this business segment for the
Year was approximately HK$67.15 million (2018: HK$87.13
million). After few years of development, this segment
becomes one of the core businesses of the Group. The Group
has rental business in Beijing, Shanghai and Hong Kong and
will keep on exploring and investing in potential renting
facilities. However, the revenue in this segment is expected
to be affected in 2020 which lead to a drop in the future
cash flow. Therefore, the related goodwill for impairment
amounted to approximately HK$11,864,000.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Financial Leasing Business

The financial leasing business recorded a revenue of HK$9.56
million (2018: HK$36.56 million), accounted for 1.23%
(2018: 2.89%) of the total revenue. As most of the funds
were used for other investments, less funds were available for
financial leasing and the revenue of this segment decreased.
Gross profit of this business segment for the Year was
approximately HK$15.57 million (2018: HK$36.56 million).

Mineral Products Business

The mineral products business includes the flotation selection
of non-ferrous metals mines and sales of mineral products.
This business segment recorded a revenue of approximately
HK$138.14 million (2018: HK$199.57 million) and accounted
for 17.72% (2018: 15.75%) of the total revenue. The Group
acquired this business in 2017 and expects the market of
this business will remain fine and the revenue contributed by
this segment will represent a larger portion of the Group's
revenue. Gross profit of this business segment for the Year
was approximately HK$30.16 million (2018: HK$23.95
million).

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARY

On 20 May 2019, the Group entered into a sale and
purchase agreement to dispose of its 60% equity interest
in FILMTZEEXABR AR (Zhongshan Jiangluo
Industrial Co., Limited*) to an independent third party
for cash consideration of RMB59,500,000 (equivalent to
approximately HK$67,717,000). The disposal was completed
on 23 May 2019. Upon completion of the disposal, the
Group ceased to have any equity interest in F LT/ T & & %
B R A F] (Zhongshan Jiangluo Industrial Co., Limited*). The
Group realized a gain of approximately HK$2.5 million as a
result of the disposal.

BUSINESS PROSPECTS

The Group will continue to expand its existing businesses by
developing its core business segments. The Group will also
look for other potential businesses and related profitable
businesses.

*  For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

Memorandum of Understanding

(i)

*

On 22 March 2019, the Company entered into the
strategic cooperation framework agreement (the
“Framework Agreement”) with Leizhou Municipal
People’s Government* (& /T AERBA) (“Leizhou
MPG", together with the Company, the “Parties”) in
respect of, among other things, business cooperation
between the Parties in the field of, among others,
agricultural development. The scope of cooperation
shall include agricultural product warehousing and
logistics, cold chain logistics, and agricultural product
processing. Leizhou MPG is the PRC government entity
responsible for the affairs of Leizhou City, Guangdong
Province, the PRC. Leizhou City is a county-level city
in Guangdong Province, the PRC. It is under the
jurisdiction of the prefecture-level city of Zhanjiang
and it is located at the middle of Leizhou Peninsula.
Leizhou City is an important agricultural product
supply base in the Dawan District. It enjoys excellent
geographical location and possesses good agricultural
production conditions. The cooperation is expected to
develop modern warehousing and logistics, accelerate
the promotion of rural revitalisation and poverty
alleviation. The Company entered into the Framework
Agreement with the intention of leveraging on
the Parties’ respective strength, resources and
expertise, which in turn could enhance the Group's
competitiveness. A subsidiary indirectly wholly-
owned by the Company was subsequently set up for
developing this project. Details of the above were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
22 March 2019.

For identification purposes only
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(ii)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 17 June 2019, the Company entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “Memorandum™)
with Cellvax (“Cellvax”, together with the Company,
the “Parties”) in respect of the proposed cooperation
plan with Cellvax, which includes the Parties’
intention to enter into a definitive sale and purchase
agreement (the “Definitive Agreement”) regarding the
Company's possible acquisition of shares in Cellvax
(the "Possible Investment”). According to Cellvax, it is
a technology-driven preclinical service company. The
Company entered into the Memorandum with the
intention to formulate a cooperation plan with Cellvax
with a view to leverage on the Parties’ respective
strength, resources and expertise, which in turn could
enhance the Group’'s competitiveness. The entering
into of the Memorandum is in line with the business
strategies of the Group to explore business and/
or investment opportunities in the biomedical field.
Details of the Memorandum were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 17 June 2019.

According to the Memorandum, it has a term of
six months from the date of the Memorandum (the
“Relevant Period”), and during the term the Parties
may enter into the Definitive Agreement, if the Parties
decide to proceed with the Possible Investment. The
Relevant Period expired on 16 December 2019 and
after that date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Parties have not yet reached any Definitive
Agreement on the Possible Investment.

EEENWR DN
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

(iii)

On 17 June 2019, the Company, as investor, also
entered into a memorandum of understanding (the
“Memorandum”) with Augusta Hemp Corp. (“AHC",
together with the Company, the “Parties”) in respect
of, among other things, their intention to enter into
a definitive legally binding subscription agreement
(the "Definitive Agreement”) with respect to the
Company's possible investment in AHC (the “Possible
Investment”).
engaged in cultivation, production, harvesting and the
pursuit of processing hemp in the province of Alberta,
Canada. Details of the Memorandum were disclosed
in the announcement of the Company dated 17 June
2019.

According to AHC, it is principally

According to the Memorandum, it is anticipated
that the Definitive Agreement will be executed and
closed on or before 15 September 2019, or such
other date that is agreed between the Parties. The
Company may carry out due diligence review on AHC
prior to 15 September 2019, which may include,
among other things, review of budget and use of
proceeds. According to AHC, it is a private corporation
based in Vancouver, British Columbia and focused
in growing high quality medical grade cannabis and
micropropagation of unique varietals for the medical
market. AHC expects to become a licensed producer
under the new Cannabis Tracking and Licensing
System (CTLS) and have multiple international licenses
to cultivate, transform, and export non-psychotropic
and psychotropic medical marijuana to participating
international markets.

Leveraging on the expertise and experience of AHC in
the agricultural business, the Group is optimistic about
the development and growth potential of AHC. The
entering into of the Memorandum is in line with the
business strategies of the Group to enhance its reach
and experience in the agricultural industry.

The Memorandum expired on 15 September 2019
and after that date and up to the date of this annual
report, the Parties have not reached any Definitive
Agreement on the Possible Investment.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 20 March 2020, the Company entered into a
memorandum of understanding (the “Memorandum™)
with Ningxia Yinhe Huixin Technology Investment
Co., Ltd* (EERAEEMEKRERRAA)
(“Ningxia YH") and Zhou Zhijie* (AEAR) (“Mr.
Zhou", together with Ningxia YH, collectively, the
“Existing Shareholders”, together with the Company,
collectively, the "Parties”) pursuant to which the
Company intends to acquire (“Possible Acquisition”)
20% equity interest in Ningxia Chenggong Red
Chateau Daymore Management Service Co., Ltd.* (%
EXRNAERRHERRBEBRAT) (the "Target
Company”).

According to the Memorandum, the Company shall
cooperate with the Existing Shareholders on the
operation of the Target Company, where the Company
shall provide support to the existing wine business,
including sales channel warehousing, and integrate
the Parties’ resources with a view to maximise the
relevant benefits (the “Possible Cooperation”). The
Existing Shareholders shall provide profit guarantee in
respect of the Target Company, which shall be not less
than RMB30 million per year.

According to the Memorandum, the Parties will
proceed with further negotiation for the entering
into the formal agreement in respect of the Possible
Acquisition within six months from the date of
the Memorandum, or such other date as may be
agreed by the Parties. The Parties will negotiate to
enter into a definitive cooperation agreement upon
the commencement of the Possible Cooperation.
Details of the Memorandum were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 20 March
2020.

For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWmR DN

Business Co-operation

(i)

*

On 12 April 2019, the Company entered into
a cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement”) with BER & EZEEE2FT (Guangdong
Academy of Agricultural Sciences) (“GDAAS”,
together with the Company, the “Parties”) in respect
of, among other things, a possible formation of a
joint venture enterprise (the “JV Company”) with
the proposed name of ER&EERIBIFMIEERR
A Al (Guangdong Agricultural Science Innovation
Investment Co., Ltd.*), subject to the approval of
the company name by the relevant government
department. The business of the JV Company
is expected to include, among other things, (i)
cooperation with government authorities in the
Guangdong province and outstanding agricultural
enterprise, with a view to invest and engage in
sustainable development of modern agricultural
projects; (i) investment and operation in modern
agricultural tourism projects; (iii) packaging and
sales of local agricultural specialty products; (iv) joint
investment with local government in the construction
of Guangdong "ZERB 4" (Countryside Beauty*)
and "ME4 A 88" (Pastoral Complex*) project; and
(v) formation of modern agricultural development
funds and set up a “Brand + Technology + Financial”
service platform with a view to utilise achievements of
innovative technology in modern agriculture.

For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The possible formation of the JV Company symbolises
the upgrade of the Group’s reach in terms of
agricultural business development and localisation of
the Group’s development opportunities. Leveraging
on the Group’s expertise and connections in the
agricultural industry, the Group will cooperate with
GDAAS with a view to develop its agricultural,
financial and technology expertise and further
the Group’s bonding with leading institutions in
the agricultural industry, which may create a new
stream of revenue for the Group through future
cooperation opportunities. The Company entered
into the Cooperation Agreement with the intention
of leveraging on the Parties’ respective strength,
resources and expertise, which in turn could enhance
the Group’s competitiveness. Details of which were
disclosed in the announcement of the Company dated
12 April 2019.

The JV Company was subsequently set up. However,
another name was used instead of the proposed
name, which is EREA R KEIFREFR A
A]. The Company indirectly held 80% equity interest
of the JV Company and has started to execute the
business plan.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

(ii)

*

On 31 May 2019, the Company entered into the
strategic cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement”) with ERBREXZEE AR A
Al (Guangdong Yinying Agricultural Group Co.,
Ltd.*) (“Guangdong Yinying”, together with the
Company, the “Parties”) in respect of, among other
things, business cooperation between the Parties
in, among others, operation and cooperation on
project development, rural complex, agricultural
products market and online mall (the “Cooperation”).
According to Guangdong Yinying, it has a
comprehensive and professional industrial chain for
modern agriculture, including agricultural planting
technology, agricultural finance, agricultural brand
planning, e-commerce operations, physical stores, bulk
trade, agricultural tourism projects, farmers market,
cold chain, rural revitalisation. The Company entered
into the Cooperation Agreement with the intention
of leveraging on the Parties’ respective strength,
resources and expertise, which in turn could enhance
the Group's competitiveness. Furthermore, according
to the Cooperation Agreement, it is expected that
the Parties may through the Cooperation promote
their respective public image and increase their
corporate brand value. It is anticipated that given
the Cooperation, the Parties may form a long term
strategic partnership through different forms of
resources exchange, optimisation and expansion
of communication channels and joint project
development. As such, the Directors considered that
the terms of the Cooperation Agreement is fair and
reasonable and the Cooperation is in the interest of
the Company and its Shareholders as a whole. Details
of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 31 May 2019.

For identification purposes only
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(iii)

*

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 16 August 2019, the Company entered into
a strategic cooperation agreement (the “Strategic
Cooperation Agreement”) with R ILTTE & & %
BB FE (Zhongshan Yunchuang Agricultural
Technology Co., Ltd.*) (“Zhongshan Yunchuang”,
together with the Company, the “Parties”) in respect
of, among other things, a possible formation of a
joint venture enterprise (the “JV Company”) with the
proposed name of RINTTHE FRIRFEEBRA
&) (Shenzhen City Cailanzi Cainiangzi Distribution Co.,
Ltd.*), subject to the approval of the company name
by the relevant government department. After the
formation of the JV Company, it is expected that the
JV Company will engage in, among other things, the
development of an online and offline fresh groceries
distribution and delivery system in the community. The
JV Company may take advantage of the adaptiveness
of the model of %R ¥ (Cainiangzi*) (“Cainiangzi"),
a fresh grocery distribution and delivery system, and
it may utilise the Company’s resources in supply
chain and industry reputation with a view to incubate
business opportunities within the community with
development focus in the Greater Bay Area, the PRC.

According to the Strategic Cooperation Agreement,
it is planned that the JV Company will develop and
expand its business to cover 50 major cities in the PRC
over the next three years. According to the Strategic
Cooperation Agreement, details of the cooperation
between the Parties will be subject to a definitive
agreement to be entered into between the Parties
after the establishment of the JV Company. Details
of which were disclosed in the announcement of the
Company dated 16 August 2019.

For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

(iv)

*

On 23 January 2020, the Company, through
its wholly-owned subsidiary, namely Shenzhen
Nongjiayuan Vegetable Basket E-Commerce Co.,
Ltd* (RIITRRXEXEFSFEBKZARLQAF)
(“Shenzhen Nongjiayuan E-Commerce”) entered
into a cooperation agreement (the “Cooperation
Agreement”) with Jiangsu Wortact Group Co., Ltd.*
OCIBABEBBRMDABRAR), a company listed on
the National Equities Exchange And Quotations Co.,
Ltd. (NEEQ:832139) (“Jiangsu Wortact”, together with
the Company, the “Parties”) in respect of a business
cooperation (the “Sales Cooperation”) involving,
among other things, the sales of blueberries and other
related products under the dual-brand name of both
of the Parties.

According to the Cooperation Agreement, Jiangsu
Wortact shall be responsible for, among other
things, the production and delivery of a number of
products in accordance with the specifications from
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan E-Commerce, and Shenzhen
Nongjiayuan E-Commerce shall be responsible for the
sales planning and implementation of sales strategy
in respect of the sales of blueberries and other related
products.

The Sales Cooperation is focused at developing brand
integration in order to jointly enhance the Parties’
reputation and sales ecology. Moreover, the Sales
Cooperation sets common goals for the Parties to
achieve at an industry level, promotion of brand
image and sales. Details of which were disclosed in
the announcement of the Company dated 23 January
2020.

For identification purposes only
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

FINANCIAL REVIEW

Revenue

The Group achieved a revenue of approximately HK$779.31
million (2018: HK$1,267.14 million), representing a decrease
of 38.50% over last year. Gross profit of the Group was
approximately HK$112.93 million (2018: HK$169.93 million).
The loss (net of tax) was HK$340.91 million (2018: Profit (net
of tax) was HK$11.78 million).

Selling and Distribution Expenses

Selling and distribution expenses were approximately
HK$18.41 million (2018: HK$21.21 million), representing
a decrease of 13.20% from last year and 2.36% (2018:
1.67%) of the Group's revenue.

Administrative Expenses

Administrative expenses were approximately HK$100.25
million (2018: HK$120.30 million), representing a decrease
of 16.67% from last year. The decrease was mainly due to
the decline of the business of commodity hog trading. Also,
the Group continued to control the cost through simplifying
and combining the structure of the subsidiaries of similar
business.

Impairment loss and amount recovered recognised

on trade receivables, loan receivables and other
receivables

During the Year, the management performed an impairment
assessment and recover amount on i) trade receivables
resulting in net amount impaired of HK$19.7 million (2018:
Net reversal of HK$0.8 million) being recognised for the
Group's trading of food products business, rental business
and mineral products business, ii) loan receivables resulting in
net amount impaired of HK$19.6 million (2018: Net impaired
of HK$2.4 million) being recognised for the Group's financial
leasing business, iii) other receivables resulting in net amount
impaired of HK$138.7 million (2018: Net impaired of HK$2.8
million) being recognised for the Group due to the debtors’
financial difficulty, for which collection letters were issued by
the Group’s legal adviser in the PRC, and (iv) intangible asset
resulting in net amount impaired of HK$42.4 million being
recognised for a trademark of tourism business due to the
adverse change in the market.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

BEEEFNWR DN

Finance Costs

Finance costs were approximately HK$111.09 million (2018:
HK$51.59 million). The increase was mainly due to the
increase of interest expenses of lease liabilities.

Prepayments, Deposits and Other Receivables

Included in prepayments, deposits and other receivables,
there were trade deposits of HK$196.26 million (2018:
HK$199.18 million) paid for food products and mineral
products. The amounts of approximately HK$50.55 million
(2018: HK$48.59 million) were the progress payments for
the investment targets. HK$34.37 million (2018: HK$79.39
million) was paid as rental deposit for the rental business and
there was no deposit paid for the warehouse construction
(2018: HK$64.34 million).

Capital Structure, Liquidity and Financial Resources
During the Year, the Company issued a total of 624,867,599
new shares due to issue of subscription shares. In addition,
17,000,000 shares repurchased by the Company during the
year ended 31 December 2018 were cancelled during the
Year. As a result, the total number of issued shares of the
Company increased by 607,867,599 shares to 6,225,125,683
shares as at 31 December 2019.

On 6 June 2019, the Company entered into the Placing
Agreement with the Placing Agent pursuant to which
the Company has agreed to appoint the Placing Agent as
placing agent for the purpose of procuring, as agent of
the Company, on a best effort basis, up to HK$200 million,
the Placees to subscribe for the Convertible Bonds on the
terms and subject to the conditions set out in the Placing
Agreement. However, due to commercial reason, the Placing
Agreement has been terminated on 27 June 2019. Details of
which were disclosed in the announcements of the Company
dated 6 June 2019 and 27 June 2019.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had net assets to
owners of the parent of approximately HK$1,229.34 million
(2018: HK$1,459.01 million). Net current assets of the
Group as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$329.81 million (2018: HK$352.57 million). The current
ratio (calculated as current assets to current liabilities) for the
Year was 1.31 (2018: 1.36).

The Group's unpledged cash and cash equivalents as at 31
December 2019 amounted to approximately HK$80 million
(2018: HK$37.28 million), which were denominated in
Hong Kong dollars and Renminbi, and the Group’s pledged
deposits as at 31 December 2019 amounted to approximately
HK$47.78 million (2018: HK$83.58 million).

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s total bank and
other borrowings amounted to approximately HK$541.96
million (2018: HK$533.83 million). All of the Group’s bank
and other borrowings were denominated in Renminbi and
Hong Kong dollars. Included in bank and other borrowings,
default payment for other borrowing of approximately
HK$438,179,000 including the additional interest and
penalty. The Company keeps negotiating with creditors of
other borrowings for extension of repayment period.

The bank loans, other borrowings and amounts due to
related parties are charged at fixed interest rates. The gearing
ratio of the Group as at 31 December 2019 (calculated as
net debt divided by equity attributable to owners of the
parent plus net debt) was 38.41% (31 December 2018:
30.99%). The ratio was at reasonably adequate level as at
31 December 2019. On 15 August 2019, the Company
announced that it signed a non-legally binding memorandum
of understanding with an independent securities broker to
place convertible bonds with the total principal amounts of
HK$120 million (the “New CB"). The terms of the New CB
is still negotiating with the independent securities broker
and further announcement will be made when appropriate.
As the commercial housing pre-sale permit of phase one
of the Seafood Food City (“Seafood Phase One Houses”)
was obtained, it is expected the sale of the Seafood Phase
One Houses will be recovered start from the second half of
2020. Having considered the Group’s current unpledged
cash and cash equivalents, bank and other borrowings,
banking facilities, possible fund raising and the business
operation income, the management believes that the Group’s
financial resources are sufficient for its day-to-day operations
and repayment of debts. The Group did not use financial
instruments for financial hedging purposes during the Year.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

EEENWmRE DM

The Group's business transactions, assets and liabilities are
principally denominated in Renminbi and Hong Kong dollars.
Fluctuations in Renminbi may impact the Group’s results
and net assets value as the Group’s consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars. The Group's
treasury policy is to manage its foreign currency exposure
only when its potential financial impact is material to the
Group. The Group will continue to monitor its foreign
exchange position and, if necessary, utilize hedging tools, if
available, to manage its foreign currency exposure.

Charge on Assets and Contingent Liabilities

As at 31 December 2019, the deposit of HK$47.78 million
was pledged to banks to secure the Group's bills payable
(2018: HK$83.58 million).

The shares of two subsidiaries of the Company with net
assets of HK$30 million were pledged for a secured bond
since August 2017. As the secured bond was maturated,
the bondholder has the right to take over the control of the
two subsidiaries. The Company is in negotiation with the
bondholder for extension of repayment of the bond and as
at the date of this annual report, the two subsidiaries are still
under the control of the Company.

ANALYSIS OF MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS
During the Year, the sales to the top 5 customers amounted
to HK$241,722,000, representing a decrease of 63.26%
from HK$657,969,000 for the year ended 31 December
2018.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

Our top 5 customers in the Year represented approximately
31.02% of our total revenue as compared to approximately
51.93% in 2018. Our largest customer accounted for
approximately 20.04% of our total revenue in the Year as
compared to approximately 38.14% in 2018. The decrease
was mainly due to the decrease in trading of commodity hog.
The other 4 customers represented 10.98% are the suppliers
of staple food. All of our top 5 customers are located in
southern China and are companies engaged in the trading
of food in the PRC. Our management visited these customers
frequently and understand the demand of these customers.
Therefore, the Group developed a stable relationship with
these major customers. The Group has 1 to 5 years business
relationship with these customers and our management
has confident to keep the long-term relationship. They are
required to prepay for the goods and services at the agreed
commercial terms. Therefore, there was no related doubtful
debts.

During the Year, the purchases from the top 5 major suppliers
amounted to HK$410,766,000, representing a decrease of
about 25.75% from HK$553,229,000 for the year ended 31
December 2018.

Our top 5 suppliers in the Year represented approximately
61.64% of our total purchases as compared to approximately
50.42% in 2018. Our largest supplier accounted for
approximately 28.01% of our total purchases in the Year as
compared to approximately 17.25% in 2018. The Group had
always been searching for suppliers with competitive terms.
The suppliers are similar with previous year. 4 suppliers are
the suppliers of food and 1 supplier is the supplier of mineral
products in the PRC and the Group is required to prepay for
the goods.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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KEY RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

Reliance on a Small Number of Key Suppliers

The Group's five largest suppliers, which accounted for
61.64% of the Group’s total purchases, are all related to the
purchases of staple food and mineral products. There is no
assurance that these major suppliers shall continue to provide
the products to us at price acceptable to our Group. In the
event that our Group were unable to retain these suppliers,
or procure replacement suppliers, our business, results of
operations, profitability and liquidity might be adversely
affected. However, the Group has established strong business
relationship with these major suppliers. The Group has also
been diversifying its business into other industry including
logistic warehouse business and mining business. Therefore, it
is expected that the risk of concentration on key suppliers can
be reduced in the future.

Investment Risk

Investment risk can be defined as the likelihood of extension
of its return period relative to the expected return period or
occurrence of losses on any particular investment attributable
to changes of external factors. The Group is well aware of
the importance of exploring various business opportunities
and territories on a continual basis, and has also implemented
such strategy as the top agenda of the Year. Key concern
of projects investment framework will be balancing risk and
return across different investments, and thus risk assessment
is a core aspect of the investment decision process. Proper
investment assessment and due diligence procedures have
been set up and detailed analysis will be made before
approving investments. Regular updates on the progress of
the investments of our Group would be submitted to the
Board.

Foreign Exchange Risk

The Group mainly operates in the PRC with most of the
transactions originally denominated and settled in Renminbi,
of which foreign exchange risk is considered insignificant.
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk primarily with
respect to certain of its bank deposits which are denominated
in Hong Kong dollars and United States dollars. Renminbi
experienced certain fluctuation against Hong Kong dollars
and United States dollars during the year 2019 which is the
major reason for the exchange loss recognised by the Group.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group did
not carry out any hedging activity against foreign currency
risk. Any substantial exchange rate fluctuation of foreign
currencies against Renminbi may have a financial impact on
the Group.

OTHER INFORMATION

Subscription of New Shares Under General Mandate

On 21 March 2019, the Company entered into the
subscription agreements separately with each of the six
independent subscribers for the subscription of an aggregate
of 624,867,599 subscription shares at the subscription price
of HK$0.185 per subscription share (“Subscription”). The
closing market price was HK$0.23 per share at the date of
the subscription agreements.

The Board considered that the Subscription represented
an opportunity to raise additional funding for the Group’s
business operation, investment and acquisitions, and also
to strengthen the capital base and financial position for the
Group’s future business developments and broaden the
shareholder base of the Company. Furthermore, the Board
considered that the Subscription was a preferred method
of fund raising as compared with other equity fund raising
exercises based on time and costs involved.

The Subscription was completed on 12 April 2019 and the
Company issued 624,867,599 subscription shares to the
subscribers. The aggregate proceeds from the Subscription
amounted to HK$115.6 million which was intended to be
used by the Company for the Group's business development,
investments, acquisition, repayment of loans and general
working capital purposes. The net proceeds and the net
price per subscription share in respect of the Subscription
was approximately HK$114.6 million and HK$0.1834
respectively, after deducting all the professional fees incurred
in the Subscription. The Company had fully utilised the net
proceeds, of which approximately HK$109 million (95%)
were utilised for repayment of secured bank loan and bonds,
and approximately HK$5.6 million (5%) were utilised for
general working capital. Details of the Subscription were set
out in the announcements of the Company dated 21 March
2019 and 12 April 2019.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
BEEFNWmR DN

LITIGATIONS

(i)

(ii)

On 18 August 2015, the Company received a
writ of summons issued from the High Court of
Hong Kong (the “Writ") relating to a claim by Mr.
Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a former director of the
Company. Pursuant to the Writ, Mr. Qu claims
against the Company for the sum of HK$6,069,000
being damages for the Company’s wrongful refusal
of the issue of 2,500,000 shares of the Company
to him upon his exercise of the share options. The
proceedings are now at an advanced stage, and
there will be a case management hearing on 24 June
2020. The Company will update its shareholders and
investors about the progress of the case by way of
announcement as and when required in accordance
with the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited.

On 15 August 2019, the Company received a
winding up petition (“Petition”) filed by Mr. Qiu
Zhen ("Petitioner”) for an order that the Company
may be wound up by the High Court of the Hong
Kong pursuant to the Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws
of Hong Kong). The Petition was filed against the
Company for being unable to repay a debt of amount
HK$21,140,987. Details of the Petition were disclosed
in the announcements of the Company dated 15
August 2019 and 22 August 2019. Subsequently,
our legal representatives filed a Notice of Originating
Summons to the Court (under HCMP 1284 of
2019) returnable before a High Court Judge on 19
September 2019 for an order to direct the Petitioner
to withdraw the Petition or otherwise to be restrained
from taking further step to prosecute the Petition on
the ground that the Petition is an abuse of process of
the court. On 23 March 2020, leave was granted to
the Company to withdraw the Originating Motion.
As to the winding up proceedings itself, due to the
General Adjournment of the Court business, there has
been no hearing during the last couple of months.
The winding up petition will be heard before the
Companies Master on 29 July 2020. Details of which
were disclosed in the announcement of the Company
dated 15 May 2020.
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(iii)

(iv)

MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

On 21 August 2019, the Company received a writ of
summons issued on behalf of United Target Finance
Company Limited (“United Target”) under HCA
1520 of 2019. According to the Statement of Claim,
United Target being the plaintiff, claims against the
Company for the sum of HK$10,055,772.96. Our legal
representatives filed an Acknowledgment of Service on
27 August 2019 and stated our intention to contest
the proceedings. A Case Management Summons
hearing has been fixed to be held before a Master on
31 August 2020.

On 28 August 2019, our legal representatives filed
a Notice of Originating Summons to the Court
(under HCMP 1348 of 2019) to apply to the Court
to dispute a Statutory Demand dated 24 July 2019
issued on behalf of Madam 75%& & for the sum of
HK$20,094,520.55. The case has been adjourned sine
die.

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a writ
of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019) issued on
behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for an order to direct
the Company to deliver up the share certificate of
5,000,000 (Bonus) Shares issued in January 2016
and damages to be assessed. The said Gemini Funds
Limited has also taken out an application for summary
judgment against the Company returnable before a
Master of the High Court on 9 April 2020. Our legal
representative filed an Acknowledgment of Service
on 6 November 2019, and the Company has retained
a Counsel to draft the Defence and an affidavit in
opposition to the application. There is not yet a date
fixed for the hearing.

(iii)

(iv)
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
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(vi)

(vii)

Pursuant to the Petition under item (i) above, the
Company successfully obtained a Validation Order
of the Court dated 17 January 2020, under which
any transfer of the issued and fully paid up shares
in the Company since 13 August 2019 shall not be
avoided by s5.182 of the Companies (Winding Up and
Miscellaneous Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) in the
event of a winding-up order being made against the
Company. Upon the end of the General Adjournment
of the court business, the sealed copy order has been
obtained. Details of which were disclosed in the
announcement of the Company dated 15 May 2020.

The Company is aware that two civil litigations in
relation to its cooperation contracts were filed with
the People’s Court of Qianhai Cooperation Zone,
Guangdong Province against the Company, and a
bank account of one of its subsidiaries was frozen as
a result thereof. A writ of summons was issued by
the court and the hearing was held on 18 October
2019. The maximum claim under the two civil
litigations is RMB20 million. As the court has not yet
made judgement after the hearing, the Company is
still seeking PRC legal advice for further information
regarding the situation.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICY

As at 31 December 2019, the Group had approximately 157
(2018: 174) employees in Hong Kong and the PRC with
total staff costs amounting to approximately HK$14.2 million
(2018: HK$28.85 million). Remuneration of employees is
offered at competitive standards, generally structured with
reference to market terms and individual qualifications. The
Company has adopted the share option schemes aiming to
provide incentives to participants for their contributions to
the Group, and to enable the Group to recruit and retain
quality employees to serve the Group on a long-term basis.
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CORPORATE GOVERNANCE REPORT

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICES

The Company has always recognised the importance of
shareholders’ transparency and accountability. It is the belief
of the board of directors (the “Board”) of the Company
that shareholders can maximise their benefits from good
corporate governance.

The Company has complied with all code provisions of the
Corporate Governance Code (the “CG Code”) as set out in
Appendix 14 to the Rules Governing the Listing of Securities
(the “Listing Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”) during the year ended 31
December 2019, except where otherwise stated.

THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for the leadership and control of
the Company and oversees the Group'’s businesses, strategic
decisions and performances. Daily operations and execution
are delegated to the management. The Board is also
responsible for performing the corporate governance duties
as set out below:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and
practices on corporate governance;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous
professional development of directors and senior
management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and
practices on compliance with legal and regulatory
requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct
and compliance manual (if any) applicable to directors
and employees; and

(e)  to review the Company’s compliance with the CG Code
and disclosure in the Corporate Governance Report.
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/_LEs/'_‘q\Ai&tt:

The executive directors are responsible for running the Group
and executing the strategies adopted by the Board. The non-
executive directors (including independent non-executive
directors) provide the Group with a wide range of expertise
and experience. Their participation in Board meetings bring
independent judgment on issues relating to the Group's
strategy, performance, conflicts of interests and management
process, to ensure that the interests of all shareholders are
taken into account. The independent non-executive directors
ensure that the Board accounts for the interests of all
shareholders and that all issues are considered in an objective
manner.

The Board believes that the balance between executive
and non-executive directors is reasonable and adequate to
provide checks and balances that safeguard the interests of
shareholders and the Group. The Company considers that the
Board has the necessary skills and experience appropriate for
discharging their duties as directors in the best interests of
the Company and that the current Board size is adequate for
its present operations.

At 31 December 2019, the Board comprised three executive
directors, namely Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman), Mr. Ke Xionghan
and Mr. Huang Wuguang; one non-executive director, namely
Ms. Ho Wing Yan; and three independent non-executive
directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha Hwa, Mr. Ho Man Fai
and Mr. Yang Yunguang. Biographical details of the current
directors are set out on pages 48 to 50 of this annual report.

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Board at all
time met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to
the appointment of at least three independent non-executive
directors with at least one independent non-executive
director possessing appropriate professional qualifications or
accounting or related financial management expertise.
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During the period from 3 January 2019 to 28 January 2019,
the Company had not complied with the requirement under
Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules that independent non-
executive directors shall represent at least one-third of the
Board, following the resignation of Mr. Zhang Xianming as an
independent non-executive director on 3 January 2019. On
29 January 2019, Mr. Zeng Fanxiong and Mr. Wang Jianguo
resigned as executive director and non-executive director
respectively. As a result, the Board comprises nine members
with five executive directors, one non-executive director and
three independent non-executive directors. As the number of
independent non-executive directors represents one-third of
the Board, the Company has complied with the requirement
under Rule 3.10A of the Listing Rules as from 29 January
2019.

The Company has received annual confirmation of
independence from each of the independent non-executive
directors and considers them to be independent in
accordance with the independence guidelines set out in Rule
3.13 of the Listing Rules.

The Board members have no financial, business, family or
other material/relevant relationships with each other.

The Company has put in place appropriate insurance cover in
respect of directors’ liability.

CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE OFFICER

Code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code requires that the roles
of chairman and chief executive should be separate and
should not be performed by the same individual.

The Company did not officially have a position of chief
executive officer since 24 June 2016. Mr. Li Jiehong, the
Chairman of the Company, provides leadership to the
Board to ensure that the Board works effectively and all the
important issues are discussed and dealt with in a timely
manner. The Board will continue to review the effectiveness
of the Group’s structure as business continues to grow and
develop in order to assess whether any changes, including
the appointment of a chief executive officer, are necessary.
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TRER/®RE

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF
DIRECTORS

The procedures of appointment, re-election and removal
of directors are laid in the articles of association of the
Company. The procedures for shareholders to propose a
person for election as a director are available on the website
of the Company.

In accordance with article 116 of the Company’s articles of
association, one-third of the directors, including the non-
executive directors, shall retire from office by rotation at
each annual general meeting. The non-executive directors
and independent non-executive directors are appointed for a
period of three years.

Article 99 of the Company's articles of association provides
that directors appointed either to fill a casual vacancy or as
an addition to the Board shall hold office only until the next
following general meeting after their appointment, and shall
be subject to re-election by the shareholders.

BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has set up three committees, namely the
Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee to oversee different aspects of the
Company's affairs. The most up-to-date terms of reference of
these committees are available on the websites of the Stock
Exchange and the Company.

Audit Committee

The Company has established an Audit Committee since
2001. The Audit Committee is responsible for reviewing the
Group's financial statements, overseeing the Group’s financial
reporting, risk management and internal control systems,
and making recommendations to the Board. Meetings of the
Audit Committee shall be held at least twice a year.
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At 31 December 2019, the Audit Committee comprised three
independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chong Cha
Hwa, Mr. Ho Man Fai and Mr. Yang Yunguang. Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa is the chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were two
meetings held by the Audit Committee to (i) review with
external auditors the external audit findings, the accounting
principles and practices adopted by the Group, and the
Listing Rules and statutory compliance; (ii) discuss auditing
and financial reporting matters, including the review of
the audited financial statements for the year ended 31
December 2018 and the unaudited financial statements for
the six months ended 30 June 2019 with recommendations
to the Board for approval; (iii) review the independence of
the auditors; (iv) review and make recommendations to the
Board on the auditors’ re-appointment and remuneration;
(v) review the Group's risk management and internal control
systems; and (vi) propose the adoption of the revised terms of
reference of the Audit Committee.

Remuneration Committee

The Remuneration Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Remuneration Committee is
responsible for making recommendations to the Board on the
Company'’s policy and structure for the remuneration of all
directors and senior management and on the establishment
of a formal and transparent procedure for developing
remuneration policy. No individual director or any of his/
her associates is involved in decisions relating to his’her own
remuneration. The Remuneration Committee has adopted
the model under code provision B.1.2(c)(ii) of the CG Code
to make recommendations to the Board on the remuneration
packages of individual executive directors and senior
management. Meetings of the Remuneration Committee
shall be held at least once a year.

At 31 December 2019, the Remuneration Committee
comprised one executive director, namely Mr. Li Jiehong; and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Chong
Cha Hwa and Mr. Ho Man Fai. Mr. Chong Cha Hwa is the
chairman of the committee.
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For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were two
meetings held by the Remuneration Committee to (i)
review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the directors and senior management; and
(ii) review and make recommendations to the Board on the
remuneration of the proposed director.

Details of the remuneration paid to directors and members
of senior management by band for the year ended 31
December 2019 are disclosed in notes 9 and 10 to the
financial statements.

Nomination Committee

The Nomination Committee was established on 15
September 2005. The Nomination Committee is responsible
for reviewing the structure, size and composition of the
Board, assessing the independence of independent non-
executive directors, making recommendations to the Board
on nominations, appointment of directors and Board
succession. The Board adopted a board diversity policy and a
nomination policy.

Board Diversity Policy

The Company recognises the benefits of having a diverse
Board to enhance the quality of its performance. With a view
to achieving a sustainable and balanced development, the
Company sees increasing diversity at the Board level as an
essential element in supporting the attainment of its strategic
objectives and its sustainable development.

Selection Criteria: Selection of candidates will be based on
the Company’s Nomination Policy as well as the following
factors, including but not limited to gender, age, cultural and
educational background, ethnicity, professional experience,
skills, knowledge and length of service. The ultimate decision
will be based on merit and contribution that the selected
candidates will bring to the Board, having due regard to
the benefits of diversity on the Board and also the needs
of the Board without focusing on a single diversity aspect.
The Board’'s composition will be disclosed in the Corporate
Governance Report annually.
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Review: The Nomination Committee will review the Board
Diversity Policy from time to time. It will discuss any revisions
to the Board Diversity Policy and make recommendation to
the Board for approval.

Nomination Policy

The Nomination Policy sets out the key selection criteria and
nomination procedures of the Nomination Committee in
making recommendations to the Board on the appointment
of directors and succession planning for directors.

Nomination Criteria: In assessing the suitability of the
candidate to the Board regarding the appointment or re-
appointment of any existing director(s), the Nomination
Committee will consider the following factors: the
candidate’s character, integrity and competent to act as
director, skills, knowledge, and experience in the commercial
and professional fields which are relevant to the principal
business of the Group, availability to devote time and
attention to the Board; and with due regard to the Board
Diversity Policy.

Nomination Procedures and Requirements: The Nomination
Committee shall convene a meeting to invite nominations
of candidates from directors (if any) or it may also nominate
candidates for its consideration. The Nomination Committee
shall use adequate due diligence in making recommendation
regarding the appointment or re-appointment of any existing
director(s) for the Board’s consideration and approval. The
procedures for shareholders’ nomination of any proposed
candidate for election as a director should follow the
"Procedures for Shareholders to Propose a Person for Election
as a Director”. The Board shall have the final decision on all
matters relating to its recommendation of candidates to stand
for election at a general meeting.

Review: The Nomination Committee will review the
Nomination Policy from time to time. It will discuss any
revisions to the Nomination Policy and make recommendation
to the Board for approval.
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The Nomination Committee considered that the Board
has sufficient diverse expertise, particularly in corporate
management, financial control, business development and
human resources management, for the Company’s business.
Meetings of the Nomination Committee shall be held at least
once a year.

At 31 December 2019, the Nomination Committee
comprised the Chairman of the Board, Mr. Li Jiehong, and
two independent non-executive directors, namely Mr. Ho
Man Fai and Mr. Chong Cha Hwa. Mr. Li Jiehong is the
chairman of the committee.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, there were two
meetings held by the Nomination Committee to (i) review
the structure, size, composition and diversity of the Board;
(i) assess the independence of independent non-executive
directors with reference to the requirements under the Listing
Rules; (iii) nominate the retiring directors for re-election at the
annual general meeting held on 6 June 2019; (iv) nominate
a proposed director for appointment to the Board; and (v)
propose adoption of the nomination policy and revision to
the board diversity policy and the terms of reference of the
Nomination Committee.

The directors’ attendance at the meetings held in 2019 is set
out in the section below.
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MEETINGS AND DIRECTORS’ ATTENDANCE

The Board meets at least four times each year and more
frequently as the needs of the business demand. For
the year ended 31 December 2019, there were twenty-
one Board meetings held by the directors, four of which
were regular Board meetings to (i) review and discuss the
Group's development strategies, investment projects and the
operational and financial performance of the Group, and (ii)
approve the annual report for 2018 and the interim report
for 2019. The other seventeen Board meetings were held to
consider certain ad hoc and other corporate matters. Under
code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code, notice of at least 14
days should be given of a regular board meeting to give all
directors an opportunity to attend. During the Year, certain
regular Board meetings were convened with less than 14
days' notice to enable the directors to react timely and make
expeditious decisions in respect of transactions which were of
significance to the Group’s business. As a result, the aforesaid
regular Board meetings were held with a shorter notice
period than required with no objection by the directors. The
Board will do its best endeavours to meet the requirement of
code provision A.1.3 of the CG Code in future. In addition
to Board meetings, the Chairman of the Board met with the
independent non-executive directors without the presence of
other directors.

The Company Secretary assists the Chairman in preparing the
agenda for meetings and ensures that all applicable rules and
regulations are followed. The Company Secretary also keeps
minutes of each meeting with appropriate details, which
are available to all directors. Draft minutes are circulated to
all directors for comment and approval after the Board and
committee meetings.
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All directors have access to relevant and timely information,
and they can ask for further information or retain independent
professional advisers if necessary. They also have unrestricted
access to the advice and service of the Company Secretary,
with a view to ensuring that Board procedures and all
applicable rules and regulations are followed.

Should a potential conflict of interest involving a substantial
shareholder or director arise, the matter is discussed in an
actual meeting, as opposed to being dealt with by written
resolution. Independent non-executive directors with no
conflict of interest are present at meetings dealing with
conflict issues. Board committees, including the Audit,
Remuneration and Nomination Committees, follow all the
applicable practices and procedures used in Board meetings
for committee meetings.

Details of directors’ attendance at the Board meetings, Board
committees meetings and general meetings held during the
year ended 31 December 2019 are set out as follows:

MEESHZEABIMERER YA EEH
BZENTREE-—FERASIBIERR
AZBR -FIEESNATRRGBEIE QA
MEZBRRRE  UEREBEESSRTF N
Ko P A T R AR A R AR

EIZRRIETHRBEN TR FRF
HERNERSHE AR LBEBEERESR
BRI WS KA SER 2 BIIFRITESH
ghFes MRETGREE-EXZE8 (8
mERZEBe THZBEERRERZES)RE
ZEggR LOeKRESEERH0AZME
ERERRRNRERF-

BEEHFERNEHE-_ZT—NAF+-_A=1+—H1t
FERTzEECSH BEEL8ega R
RREZEREHIMT :

Attendance/Eligible to attend

HERY SERERERY
Audit  Remuneration Nomination
Committee Committee Committee General
Board Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings Meetings
ERZEE FHEEE REZE8

Name of directors EEHE Ezeed = g% g3 TN
Executive Directors HITEE
Mr. Li Jiehong® (Chairman) THEEEO(FE) 20/21 - 1" 22 112
Mr. Ke Xionghan [api3 Pt 17721 - - - 012
Mr. Huang Wuguang BERAEE 321 - - - 012
Mr. Jiang Jianjun® TRE LA 15/16 - 11 - /1
Mr. Gu Chunyang® (Vice Chairman) AEBZREY (FEE) 1/9 - - - 0/1
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong® RIEEAED 01 - - - 0/0
Non-executive Directors FHTEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan kM &+ 2121 - - - 0
Mr. Wang Jianguo® FREgE on - - - 0/0
Independent Non-executive Directors BV F#177ZE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRELAE 14/21 212 22 22 12
Mr. Ho Man Fai X ERE 14721 212 12 112 072
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEXLE 17721 22 - - 072
Mr. Zhang Xianming"” RERHEED 0/0 - - - 0/0
— The director is not a committee member - HESWIHFLZEEKE
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Notes:

(@ Mr. Li Jiehong was appointed as a member of the
remuneration committee of the Company with effect from 16
August 2019.

(b)  Mr. lJiang Jianjun resigned as an executive director of the
Company and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company with effect from 16 August 2019.

(0 Mr. Gu Chunyang resigned as the Vice Chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company with effect from 14
June 2019.

(d) Mr. Zeng Fanxiong resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 29 January 2019.

(e)  Mr. Wang Jianguo resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 29 January 2019.

(f)  Mr. Zhang Xianming resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 3 January
2019.

Under code provision E.1.2 of the CG Code, the chairman of
the board should attend the annual general meeting. Mr. Li
Jiehong, the Chairman of the Board, was unable to attend
the annual general meeting of the Company held on 6 June
2019 due to his engagement of the Group's other pressing
business.

DIRECTORS’ INDUCTION AND CONTINUOUS
PROFESSIONAL DEVELOPMENT

Each newly appointed director is provided with an induction
on the first occasion of his/her appointment so as to ensure
that he/she has appropriate understanding of the business
and operations of the Company and that he/she is fully aware
of his/her responsibilities and obligations under the Listing
Rules and the relevant regulatory requirements.
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Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous
professional development to develop and refresh their
knowledge and skills. The Company has devised a training
record in order to assist the directors to record the training
they have undertaken and they are requested to provide a

training record to the Company.

According to the records maintained by the Company, the
training that the directors received for the year ended 31

December 2019 is summarized as follows:

ARABBEFL2NBEEXRER UERK
B AN KRR o A AR B RE AL B AR
BEELHEREMBEZEIRE W EKRE
FRAR AR HIFIIALE

BEARAREZLEE EFREBEE_Z—N
FT_A=T R LFEEXZHFIH ML
T

Attending expert
briefings/seminars/
conferences/readings
relevant to

the business,
corporate governance
or directors’ duties

SHEBER-
CEERARESREZ
EXENG EBHE
Name of directors Exns mee HEEBEME
Executive Directors HITEF
Mr. Li Jiehong IR A v
Mr. Ke Xionghan 1] 7 3 5 A v
Mr. Huang Wuguang mRMEE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun® IREL A
Mr. Gu Chunyang® ABFGRED
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong®© B NI T A ©
Non-executive Directors FHITEE
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Al sk IR & & v
Mr. Wang Jianguo®@ FREEES
Independent Non-executive Directors BIIHNITEE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRESLE v
Mr. Ho Man Fai Al SO pB o A& v
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEXEE v
Mr. Zhang Xianming® SREEER LA
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Notes:

(@  Mr. lJiang Jianjun resigned as an executive director of the
Company and a member of the remuneration committee of
the Company with effect from 16 August 2019.

(b)  Mr. Gu Chunyang resigned as the Vice Chairman of the Board
and an executive director of the Company with effect from 14
June 2019.

(€0 Mr. Zeng Fanxiong resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 29 January 2019.

(d)  Mr. Wang Jianguo resigned as a non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 29 January 2019.

(e)  Mr. Zhang Xianming resigned as an independent non-
executive director of the Company with effect from 3 January
2019.

Under code provision A.6.5 of the CG Code, all directors
should participate in continuous professional development to
develop and refresh their knowledge and skills, and should
provide a record of the training they received to the issuer.
The Company did not receive the training records from those
directors including Mr. Zhang Xianming, Mr. Wang Jianguo,
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong, Mr. Gu Chunyang and Mr. Jiang Jianjun,
all of whom resigned during the reporting year, and Mr.
Huang Wuguang, who resigned on 2 January 2020.

DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted a code on ethics and securities
transactions (the “Code”), which incorporates a code of
conduct regarding directors’ securities transactions on terms
no less exacting than the required standard set out in the
Model Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed
Issuers (the “Model Code”) of the Listing Rules. Specified
employees who are likely to be in possession of unpublished
inside information of the Company are also subject to the
compliance with the Code. Having made specific enquiry of
all existing directors, the Company confirms that the directors
have complied with the required standard set out in the
Code and the Model Code throughout the year ended 31
December 2019.
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DIRECTORS’ AND AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR
ACCOUNTS

The Board is responsible for presenting a clear, balanced
assessment of the Group's performance and prospects. The
directors also acknowledge their responsibility to prepare
the financial statements that give a true and fair view of
the state of affairs of the Group. The Group incurred a
consolidated net loss of approximately HK$340,909,000
during the year ended 31 December 2019 and, as of that
date, the Group had default payment included i) default
convertible bond of approximately HK$201,897,000 (the
“Default Convertible Bond”) to convertible bondholders; ii)
default secured bond of approximately HK$139,810,000 (the
“Default Secured Bond”) to secured bondholder; iii) default
unsecured bonds of approximately HK$86,416,000 to six
unsecured bondholders and iv) default loan of approximately
HK$10,056,000 to a loan holder. In addition, the Group had
outstanding bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$541,962,000 which were due for repayment or renewal
in the next twelve months after 31 December 2019. These
events or conditions, along with other matters as set forth
in note 2 to the financial statements for the year ended
31 December 2019, indicate that a material uncertainty
exists that may cast significant doubt on the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern. Save for disclosed above,
for the purpose of the Company’s financial year ended 31
December 2019, the Board was not aware of any other
events or conditions that might cast significant doubt upon
the Group's ability to continue as a going concern.

In the light of the following various measures or
arrangements to improve the working capital and liquidity
and cash flow position of the Group together with the
expected results of the other measures, including:

(a) Management has been endeavoring to improve the
Group’s operating results and cash flows through
various cost control measures and will focus on the
existing business;

(b)  The Group has successfully obtained new bank
facilities of RMB40,000,000 (approximately
HK$44,700,000) from a bank in the PRC after the
reporting year;
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(c) The Group has recently entered into an extension
agreement with an agent of convertible bondholders
of the Default Convertible Bond pursuant to which
the maturity date of the Default Convertible Bond
was extended to 31 December 2020. The Group is
negotiating with secured bondholder to extend the
Default Secured Bond:;

(d) The Group had budgeted and laid out its business
plan for pre-sale of the properties for sale on Seafood
Phase One Houses included in consolidated statement
of financial position in the second half of 2020. These
business plans are expected to generate operating
cash inflows to the Group; and

(e) The Group endeavours to identify investors and
arrange fund raising activities,

the Company is of the view that it will have sufficient
working capital for its current requirements and it is
reasonable to expect the Group to remain a commercially
viable concern. Accordingly, the directors are satisfied
that it is appropriate to prepare the consolidated financial
statements on a going concern basis.

The responsibilities of the auditors with respect to these
financial statements are set out in the Independent Auditors’
Report on pages 67 to 80 of this annual report.

AUDITORS' REMUNERATION

During the Year, the fees paid/payable to the external
auditors of the Company, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited, in respect of their audit services provided to the
Group was HK$1,250,000.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

Goals and Obijectives

The Board acknowledges that it is responsible for the risk
management and internal control systems and reviewing their
effectiveness on an ongoing basis. Such risk management
and internal control systems are designed for managing
risks rather than eliminating the risk of failure to achieve
business objectives, and can only provide reasonable and
not absolute assurance against material misstatement or
loss. The Board has delegated its responsibilities of risk
management and internal control to the Audit Committee.
The Audit Committee oversees management in the design,
implementation and monitoring of the risk management and
internal control systems, and the management has to ensure
the effectiveness of these systems.

Main Features of the Risk Management and Internal
Control Systems

The Group’s risk governance structure and the main
responsibilities of each level of the structure are summarized
below:

The Board is responsible to determine the business strategies
and objectives of the Group, and evaluates and determines
the nature and extent of risks it is willing to take in achieving
the Group's strategic objectives; ensures that the Group
establishes and maintains appropriate and effective risk
management and internal control systems; and oversees
management in the design, implementation and monitoring
of the risk management and internal control systems.

Audit Committee is responsible for assisting the Board to
perform its responsibilities of risk management and internal
control systems; overseeing the Group's risk management
and internal control systems on an ongoing basis; reviewing
the effectiveness of the Group's risk management and
internal control systems at least annually, and such review
should cover all material controls including financial,
operational and compliance control; ensuring the adequacy
of resources, staff qualifications and experience, training
programmes and budget for the Group’s accounting, internal
audit and financial reporting functions; and considering major
findings on risk management and internal control matters,
and reports and makes recommendations to the Board.
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The senior management designs, implements and maintains
appropriate and effective risk management and internal
control systems; identifies, evaluates and manages the risk
that may potentially impact the major processes of the
operations; monitors risk and take measures to mitigate risk
in the day-to-day operations; gives prompt responses to and
follow up the findings on risk management and internal
control matters raised by the internal auditor or external
risk management and internal control adviser; and provides
confirmation to the Board and Audit Committee on the
effectiveness of the risk management and internal control
systems.

Internal auditor is responsible for reviewing the adequacy and
effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal
control systems; and reports to the Audit Committee on the
findings of the review and makes recommendations to the
Board and management to improve the material systems
deficiencies or control weaknesses identified.

The Board has conducted a review of the effectiveness of the
risk management and internal control systems for the year
ended 31 December 2019 and considers them effective and
adequate.

Risk Management Process

In addition to the Board's responsibilities, the Company has
developed a risk management process to identify, evaluate
and manage significant risks and to resolve material internal
control defects. Senior management is responsible for the
annual risk reporting process. Internal auditor will meet with
various members of the senior management to review and
assess risks and discuss solutions to address material internal
control defects, including any changes relevant to a given
year. Risks are compiled, ratings are assigned and mitigation
plans are documented. The risk assessment is reviewed by
certain members of senior management and presented to the
Audit Committee and the Board for their review.
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Risks are evaluated by the Board and senior management
based on (i) the severity of the impact of the risk on the
Company’s financial results; (i) the probability that the risk
will occur; and (iii) the velocity or speed at which a risk could
occur.

Based on the risk evaluation, the Company will manage the
risks as follows:

o Risk elimination — senior management may identify and
implement certain changes or controls that in effect
eliminate the risk entirely.

o Risk mitigation — senior management may implement a
risk mitigation plan designed to reduce the likelihood,
velocity or the severity of the risk to an acceptable level.

o Risk retention — senior management may decide that
the risk rating is low enough that the risk is acceptable
for the Company and that no action is required. The
risk would continue to be monitored as part of the risk
management program to ensure the level of risk does
not increase to an unacceptable level.

Internal Audit Function

The Group’s internal audit function is performed by the
internal auditor who reports directly to the Audit Committee.
Internal auditor plays an important part in the assessment
of the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control systems of the Group and reports directly to the Audit
Committee on a regular basis.

The internal auditor conducts internal reviews on material
controls and compliance with policies and procedures of the
Group at both operational and corporate levels. Plans and
tools for corrective actions and control improvement are
identified and communicated with operations management
to address an issue, non-compliance or deficiencies identified.
The internal auditor monitors the implementation of his
recommendations by operations management and reports
the outcomes to the Audit Committee.
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COMPANY SECRETARY

The Company Secretary of the Company is Mr. Chan Kwong
Leung, Eric, who is engaged and appointed by the Company
from an external secretarial services provider and his primary
corporate contact person at the Company is Mr. Li Kwok
Pong, the Financial Controller of the Company. For the year
ended 31 December 2019, Mr. Chan Kwong Leung, Eric has
complied with the relevant professional training requirement
under Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules.

DIVIDEND POLICY

Under code provision E.1.5 of the CG Code, the issuer
should have a policy on payment of dividends and should
disclose it in the annual report. As the Company is still in its
development phase and the performance will continue to be
impacted by the relevant industry’s and economic outlook
in the foreseeable future, the Board is of the opinion that it
is not appropriate to adopt a dividend policy at this stage.
The Board will review the Company’s status periodically and
consider to adopt a dividend policy if and when appropriate.

SHAREHOLDERS' RIGHTS

Procedures for convening an extraordinary general
meeting and putting forward proposals

Pursuant to article 72 of the Company’s articles of
association, any two or more shareholders or any one
shareholder which is a recognised clearing house (or
its nominee) holding, as at the date of deposit of the
requisition, not less than one-tenth of the paid up capital
of the Company which carries the right of voting at general
meetings of the Company can deposit a written request
at the head office and principal place of business of the
Company in Hong Kong at Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube, 8
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong Kong, or
the registered office of the Company at PO. Box 309, Ugland
House, Grand Cayman, KY1-1104, Cayman Islands for the
attention of the Board or Company Secretary to convene an
extraordinary general meeting (“EGM").
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TRER/®RE

The Company will verify the request with the Company’s
branch share registrar and transfer office in Hong Kong
and upon their confirmation that the request is proper and
in order, the Board will be asked to convene an EGM by
serving sufficient notice to all the registered shareholders in
accordance with the requirements set out in the Listing Rules
and the Company’s articles of association. In the event that
the request has been verified as not in order, the shareholders
concerned will be advised of this outcome and accordingly,
an EGM will not be convened as requested.

If within 21 days from the date of deposit of the requisition,
the Board does not proceed duly to convene an EGM, the
requisitionist(s) themselves or any of them representing more
than one-half of the total voting rights of all of them, may
convene the EGM in the same manner, as nearly as possible,
as that in which meetings may be convened by the Board
provided that any meeting so convened shall not be held
after the expiration of three months from the date of deposit
of the requisition, and all reasonable expenses incurred by the
requisitionist(s) as a result of the failure of the Board shall be
reimbursed to them by the Company.

Procedures for sending enquiries to the Board
Shareholders may at any time send their enquiries to the
Board in writing for the attention of the Board or Company
Secretary via the followings:

Address :  Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube,
8 Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay,
Kowloon, Hong Kong

Fax : (852) 2880 5398

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

There was no significant change in the Company’s
constitutional documents for the year ended 31 December
2019.
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COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Company follows a policy of disclosing relevant
information to shareholders in a timely manner. The
Company also recognises that people other than
shareholders, such as potential investors and the investment
community generally may have an interest in information
about the Company.

Annual and interim reports offer comprehensive operational
and financial performance information to shareholders and
the annual general meeting provides a forum for shareholders
to exchange views directly with the Board. The Company
regards the annual general meeting as an important event
and all directors, senior management and external auditors
make an effort to attend the annual general meeting of
the Company to address shareholders’ queries. All the
shareholders of the Company are given a minimum of 20
clear business days' notice of the date and venue of the
annual general meeting of the Company. The Company
supports the CG Code's principle to encourage shareholders’
participation. The Company has also complied with the
requirements concerning voting by poll under the Listing
Rules. Details of the poll voting procedures and the rights of
shareholders to demand a poll are explained by the chairman
of general meeting at the meeting. All resolutions proposed
at general meeting are voted separately.

All the annual and interim reports, circulars, announcements
and notices of general meetings, as well as the terms of
reference of Board committees can be downloaded from the
websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company.

The shareholder communication policy is reviewed regularly
by the Company’s management to reflect current regulatory,
community and investor requirements. In particular, the
policy will be updated in response to the changes in internal
structure, legislative, regulatory and market developments.
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The directors of the Company as at the date of this annual
report are as follows:

Mr. LI Jiehong, aged 46, was appointed as the Chairman
of the Board and an executive director of the Company
in December 2018. He is the joint chairman of the board
of directors of Phoenix (Dongguan) Animals Nutrition
Limited* (EER (R=)#WEEBR A A) and was
the founding shareholder of the company when it was
established in 2014. Mr. Li graduated from the Department
of Administrative Management of China Central Radio and
Television University. He is a Certified International Senior
Business Manager and has accumulated extensive experience
in various financial sectors for over 20 years, including
banking, securities and investment.

Mr. KE Xionghan, aged 55, was appointed as an executive
director of the Company in June 2016. He is also a director
of certain subsidiaries of the Company. Mr. Ke graduated
from the Department of Law of Huazhong University of
Science and Technology. He is the president of Shenzhen
Tiantianwang Taige Technology Co. Ltd.* (GRIIIK KL Z=AEES
K ABMRAF]), acompany mainly engaged in the import and
export business of electronic products and mineral products.
Mr. Ke was the general manager of Indonesia Huaming Yang
International Trading Company* (EJJEZERGERE 5 A
7)) and worked in the Bank of China, Zhanjiang Branch for
over 20 years, during which period, he served as the section
chief of Retail Business Department, Company Business
Department and Credit Management Department as well as
the president of the sub-branch.

*  For identification purposes only
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Ms. HO Wing Yan, aged 38, was appointed as a non-
executive director of the Company in April 2015. She holds
a Bachelor Degree of Business Administration in Applied
Economics from Hong Kong Baptist University and a Master
Degree of Corporate Governance from The Open University
of Hong Kong. Ms. Ho is an Associate Member of both The
Hong Kong Institute of Chartered Secretaries (“HKICS") and
The Chartered Governance Institute (formerly known as The
Institute of Chartered Secretaries and Administrators). She
is also a holder of the Practitioner's Endorsement issued
by HKICS. Ms. Ho is a director of BMI Listed Corporate
Services Limited and is responsible for managing the business
operations of the company secretarial and administrative
services for the reputable listed groups in various industries.
She has extensive experience in a diversified range of
professional corporate services for Hong Kong and offshore
companies from various business sectors. Ms. Ho particularly
specializes in corporate governance advisory, corporate
restructuring, corporate financing and directors’ professional
development with emphasis on listed companies and she
continues to advise on these matters on a consultancy basis.
Ms. Ho actively participates in the formulation and execution
of strategy at the companies. She has been providing
practical professional services to companies listed on the
Main Board and the GEM of the Stock Exchange for over 10
years.
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Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa, aged 53, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in
December 2018. He is a fellow member of the Association
of Chartered Certified Accountants and a member of the
Malaysian Institute of Accountants. Mr. Chong holds a
bachelor degree of management with honours from the
University of Science, Malaysia. He has more than 20 years
of experience in the accounting and finance area servicing
private and publicly listed companies in Hong Kong and the
Southern Asia region. Mr. Chong was an independent non-
executive director of China Mining Resources Group Limited
(presently known as Tongguan Gold Group Limited) from
November 2011 to July 2017. He was also an executive
director of China Shanshui Cement Group Limited from
December 2015 to February 2016 and was then re-
designated to a non-executive director of that company from
February 2016 to May 2017. The shares of the aforesaid
companies are listed on the Main Board of the Stock
Exchange.

Mr. HO Man Fai, aged 56, was appointed as an independent
non-executive director of the Company in June 2014. He
is the chairman of California Restaurant and has extensive
experience in catering and management. Mr. Ho is a
director of New Territories General Chamber of Commerce,
a director of Hong Kong Food Science and Technology
Association Limited, a director of Yuen Long Merchants
Education Promotion Limited, a school manager of Yuen
Long Merchants Association Primary School and a general
affairs officer of Hong Kong Love & Care Charity Foundation
Limited.

Mr. YANG Yunguang, aged 56, was appointed as an
independent non-executive director of the Company in July
2018. He holds a Master’s Degree in National Economics
from Northwest University. Mr. Yang has served as senior
management positions of insurance companies in the PRC
since 1989. He has 30 years of experience in the financial
industry and corporate management.
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The directors present their report and the audited financial
statements of the Company and the Group for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The principal activity of the Company is investment holding.
Details of the principal activities of the subsidiaries are set
out in note 44 to the financial statements. There were no
significant changes in the nature of the Group’s principal
activities during the Year.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The Group's loss for the year ended 31 December 2019 and
the state of affairs of the Company and the Group at that
date are set out in the financial statements on pages 81 to
239.

The directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend in respect of the Year.

SUMMARY FINANCIAL INFORMATION

A summary of the published results and of the assets,
liabilities and non-controlling interests of the Group for
the last five financial years, as extracted from the audited
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,
is set out on page 240. This summary does not form part of
the audited financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

The business review of the Group for the year ended
31 December 2019 is provided in the section headed
“Management Discussion and Analysis” of this annual report.

An analysis of the Group’s performance during the Year
using financial key performance indicators is provided in the
Financial Highlights on page 4 of this annual report.

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Details of movements in the property, plant and equipment
of the Group during the Year are set out in note 14 to the
financial statements.

SHARE CAPITAL AND SHARE OPTIONS

Details of movements in the Company’s share capital and
share options during the Year are set out in notes 35 and 36
to the financial statements.

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEEHE

EXEURENRES BRAQRFALAEERE
TE-NAFT AT RIEFEZRERM
K -

ETBEXRK

ARFRZEBRRBREARKR -WBARZE
RRBABHRYBHREM T4 - ARE 2 E
EXBUERFRALBEEAES -

RERRE
AEBBRE_T-NF+_A=1T—"HILFE
ZEBRIARARR RAEERZ B Z MR
BN HRAREB1E239A °

EETEBRRNERNFARE -

MBERBE
AEEBEREMBFEZEAMELE &
E BENIFEREEMERNE2408 - BH
BRFEEEEZMBHRE X TAEEET
BN ZB BN R BRI BRER A
B BB ©

RO
AEBBE-_T-NF+_A=1T—"HILFE
ZERBOBEENAFR[EIRE w0

— 8o

EAMBREREIIEFREAREFARBEIFD
ZAMEBRAFRFABZ M EHE -

M- BERRE
AEBFRZYE BEEREZHFHAN
BIF¥RR IR 14 -

BR AN &2 B AR R
AR RVE N 2 %A K BB AR e
HRARMIFF35/%36 ©

BAEE AN R

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§

51



52

REPORT OF THE DIRECTORS
EEERE

CONVERTIBLE BONDS
Details of the Company’s convertible bonds are set out in
note 33 to the financial statements.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the
Company's articles of association or the laws of the Cayman
Islands which would oblige the Company to offer new shares
on a pro rata basis to existing shareholders.

PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF LISTED
SECURITIES OF THE COMPANY

Neither the Company nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
sold or redeemed any of the listed securities of the Company
during the year ended 31 December 2019. However, on
31 May 2019, the Company cancelled 17,000,000 shares
in respect of the shares repurchased on 28 May 2018, 18
September 2018, 10 October 2018 and 19 October 2018
and the number of issued shares of the Company was
reduced accordingly.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Company and the
Group during the Year are set out in note 45 to the financial
statements and in the consolidated statement of changes in
equity, respectively.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

At 31 December 2019, the Company’s reserves available
for distribution amounted to approximately HK$502.36
million, representing the share premium account of the
Company of approximately HK$1,669.3 million less the
accumulated losses as at 31 December 2019 of approximately
HK$1,166.94 million. Under the Companies Law, Cap. 22
(as amended) of the Cayman Islands, the share premium
account of the Company is distributable to the shareholders
of the Company provided that immediately following the
date on which the dividend is proposed to be distributed, the
Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as they fall
due in the ordinary course of business. The share premium
account may also be distributed in the form of fully paid
bonus shares.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

For the year ended 31 December 2019, sales attributable
to the largest customer of the Group amounted to
approximately 20.04% of the total sales and the five largest
customers of the Group accounted for 31.02% of the
Group's total sales.

For the year ended 31 December 2019, purchases
attributable to the largest supplier of the Group amounted
to approximately 28.01% of the total purchases and the five
largest suppliers of the Group accounted for 61.64% of the
Group's total purchases.

None of the directors of the Company or any of their close
associates or any shareholders (which to the knowledge
of the directors own more than 5% of the total number
of issued shares of the Company) had any interest in the
Group's five largest customers and suppliers.

DIRECTORS
The directors of the Company during the Year and up to the
date of this report were:

Executive Directors

Mr. LI Jiehong
(Chairman)

Mr. KE Xionghan

Mr. HUANG Wuguang

Mr. JJANG Jianjun

Mr. GU Chunyang
(Vice Chairman)

Mr. ZENG Fanxiong

(resigned on 2 January 2020)
(resigned on 16 August 2019)
(resigned on 14 June 2019)

(resigned on 29 January 2019)

Non-executive Directors
Ms. HO Wing Yan

Mr. WANG Jianguo (resigned on 29 January 2019)
Independent Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHONG Cha Hwa

Mr. HO Man Fai

Mr. YANG Yunguang

Mr. ZHANG Xianming (resigned on 3 January 2019)
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In accordance with article 116 of the Company's articles of
association,Mr. Ke Xionghan and Ms. Ho Wing Yan will retire
by rotation and being eligible, have offered themselves for re-
election at the forthcoming annual general meeting.

The term of office for the executive directors is the period up
to their retirement in accordance with the Company’s articles
of association. The non-executive directors and independent
non-executive directors are appointed for a period of three
years.

DIRECTORS’ BIOGRAPHIES
Biographical details of the directors of the Company are set
out on pages 48 to 50 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

No director proposed for re-election at the forthcoming
annual general meeting has a service contract with the
Company which is not determinable by the Company within
one year without payment of compensation, other than
statutory compensation.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION

The directors’ fees are subject to shareholders’ approval at
general meetings. Other emoluments are determined by the
Company'’s board of directors with reference to directors’
duties, responsibilities and performance and the results of the
Group.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN CONTRACTS

No director had a material interest, either directly or indirectly,
in any contract of significance to the business of the Group
to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party
subsisted at any time during the Year or at the end of the
Year.
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MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning management or administration
of the whole or any substantial part of the business of the
Company were entered into or existed during the Year.

There was no contract of significance between the Company
or any of its subsidiaries and a controlling shareholder or any
of its subsidiaries during the Year.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN
SHARES

At 31 December 2019, the interests and short positions of
the directors in the shares of the Company or its associated
corporations (within the meaning of Part XV of the Securities
and Futures Ordinance (the “SFO")), as recorded in the
register required to be kept by the Company pursuant to
Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code for Securities Transactions by Directors of Listed Issuers
(the "Model Code"”) as set out in Appendix 10 to the Listing
Rules, were as follows:

Long positions in ordinary shares of the Company:
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FA-BREFT L RFERRBAR R EEK M
ERAEHZEELITRAL
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REQRRAEBRTZHR:

Number of shares held, capacity and nature of interest

HERGEE FHRERNE

Approximate
Directly Through percentage of
beneficially controlled the Company's
owned Through spouse corporation Total issued shares
HANEERT
Name of directors Bt EREBRER EBER BRTEHEE &t RBeBOEAM
Mr. Li Jiehong FERE 224,000 44,592,000¢ 13,752,0000 58,568,000 0.94%
Mr. Huang Wuguang AERAAE 5,300,000 - - 5,300,000 0.09%
Mr. Ho Man Fai fxELE 2,000,000 - - 2,000,000 0.03%
Mr. Ke Xionghan fEREE 1,000,000 - - 1,000,000 0.02%
8,524,000 44,592,000 13,752,000 66,868,000 1.08%

Notes: B RE

(a) These 44,592,000 shares were held by Ms. Deng Xiaohe, the
spouse of Mr. Li Jiehong.

(b) These 13,752,000 shares were held by Sino Insight Holdings
Limited (“Sino Insight”). As Sino Insight was wholly owned
by Mr. Li Jiehong, Mr. Li Jiehong was deemed to be
interested in the 13,752,000 shares held by Sino Insight by
virtue of the SFO.

() %% 44,592,0000% iz 17 B3 246 58 4 2 Bl i@
BERLZLTIHHE-

(b) 5%5513,752,0000 R B ERIZER B R A A
(TERFB BRERBFEBTELRE
%A AL RIBEFREE KD TEBE
R RN ERFTFE A 213,752,0000% A% 17
RHEA RS-
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Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, none
of the directors had registered an interest or short position
in the shares of the Company or any of its associated
corporations that was required to be recorded pursuant
to Section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to the
Company and the Stock Exchange pursuant to the Model
Code.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS' AND OTHER PERSONS’
INTERESTS IN SHARES

At 31 December 2019, the following interests in shares
of 5% or more of the issued shares of the Company were
recorded in the register of interests required to be kept by the
Company pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO:

R EXPrEEEIN N

T-nE+=A

=t+— B SEFHMERA QB HEMAR
BB Z BT - A REE 7 LB RPI5352

{fR78 T Ro sk RIRIRAE

ETAIZARTTAE AR

A MR EBOR R ©

FTERRREMATRROP ZES

RZB-—NF+ZA=+—HB UTREERR
AR BHITRMS%HIA LRI 2 EAED R ER
RRAMREE S LB GRIIEIB6HKAETFE

ZERAMmA:

Long positions:

A

Approximate

Number of  percentage of
ordinary the Company’s
Name Capacity and nature of interest shares held issued shares
BERAERT
225 3704
HE/EH B RESME EERYE BABAH
Jiang Jianjun Beneficial owner 510,066,667 8.19%
IEE BEREEA
Interest of controlled corporation 418,561,044@ 6.72%
REGEE R
Li Zhuoxun Interest of spouse 928,627,7110 14.91%
R fofdiE s
Beidahuang (HK) International Trade Co., Limited Beneficial owner 660,000,000 10.60%
AR (BB)ERESARAR BEnBEAA
Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 10.60%
Liability Group Co., Ltd* LG EEER
BRIRBLARHESEEREMR
Heilongjiang Beidahuang Agribusiness Group Interest of controlled corporation 660,000,000 10.60%

Corporation*
ERILARREEEANRA

*  For identification purposes only
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Notes:

These 418,561,044 shares were held by King Wei Group
(China) Investment Development Limited (“King Wei")
as to 258,013,044 shares and China Silver Investments
Development Limited (“China Silver”) as to 160,548,000
shares. As King Wei and China Silver were wholly owned by
Mr. Jiang Jianjun (“Mr. Jiang”), Mr. Jiang was deemed to be
interested in the 258,013,044 shares held by King Wei and
the 160,548,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by
virtue of the SFO.

These 928,627,711 shares were held by Mr. Jiang, the
spouse of Ms. Li Zhuoxun, as to 510,066,667 shares,
King Wei as to 258,013,044 shares and China Silver as to
160,548,000 shares. As King Wei and China Silver were
wholly owned by Mr. Jiang, Mr. Jiang was deemed to be
interested in the 258,013,044 shares held by King Wei and
the 160,548,000 shares held by China Silver respectively by
virtue of the SFO. Accordingly, Ms. Li Zhuoxun was deemed
to be interested in the shares held by Mr. Jiang, King Wei and
China Silver by virtue of the SFO.

These 660,000,000 shares were held by Beidahuang (HK)
International Trade Co., Limited, which was wholly owned
by Heilongjiang Nongken Beidahuang Business Trade Liability
Group Co.,
in turn was wholly owned by Heilongjiang Beidahuang
Agribusiness Group Corporation* (“Beidahuang Group”).
Accordingly, each of Beidahuang Business Group and
Beidahuang Group was deemed to be interested in the
660,000,000 shares held by Beidahuang (HK) International
Trade Co., Limited by virtue of the SFO.

Ltd* (“Beidahuang Business Group”) which

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 December 2019, no person,
other than the directors of the Company whose interests are
set out in the section headed "Directors’ Interests and Short
Positions in Shares” above, had registered an interest or short
position in the shares of the Company that was required to
be recorded pursuant to Section 336 of the SFO.

*  For identification purposes only
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SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes for the
purpose of providing incentives and rewards to eligible
participants for their contribution to, and continuing efforts
to promote the interests of, the Group. A share option
scheme (the “2007 Scheme") was adopted by the Company
on 23 May 2007 and terminated on 22 May 2017, and a
new share option scheme (the “2017 Scheme”) was adopted
by the Company pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June
2017 (the "Adoption Date”). The 2017 Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force for 10
years from the Adoption Date. Further details of the 2007
Scheme and the 2017 Scheme are disclosed in note 36 to the
financial statements.

Upon the termination of the 2007 Scheme, no further share
option has been granted, but the share options granted prior
to such termination continue to be valid and exercisable in
accordance with the provisions of the 2007 Scheme. No
share option was granted under the 2017 Scheme since its
adoption.

During the Year, no share options were granted, exercised or
cancelled and 198,000,000 share options were lapsed under
the 2007 Scheme. There were no outstanding share options
under the 2007 Scheme as at 31 December 2019.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019

fE R RESt &
RARIREMBERESE EEREERLKS
HEARNEBIEEMRIBFES NRERNER
FIRmRE SRR ERE - —BERETE (=2
§t¢+ﬂ) A—ETHFRA-—+ZHER
REFERMT R T —tFRA BRI
miRE—EHR_Z—tFANA ([HEHA
H]) @Bz RER —ENBRETE (=2
—EFEE ) BARR BN - RIESTTEUE K
EHIELT BRI —E—+EH 2 ¥R s R
HE10FRA—EHEAER T LFHE R
Tt FHEICE—F BRI BHREM 36
AR o

TELFFERUER RE-_ZFTLEF5
RS AN R BEE B h R AR - SRR
t&ﬁZ%k%E%ﬁﬁ&T%ﬁﬁ B
“E L FEFEIERAE AR A EREE

FR BERBE-_ZSZTLFHFEBRD THEX
T 85 1T {a] B8 A% 4 12.198,000,00017) i A% # 2 %k
MR —_T—hhE+_A=+—8B —TZT+
FRIEETHENRITEZ BRE-



The following table discloses movements in the Company’s
outstanding share options granted under the 2007 Scheme

during the Year:
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TERBRENAAARB-_TTLFHTHE
A R AT 2 AR A

Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grantof
1 January during during during during  31December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019  options”  share options share options®
RZZ-0E RZZ2-NE ERE
SRERENER -A-H ERRH ERfTR EREH ER&¥ TZAZt-B RUBHY BRETKS BRETHEY
HKS per share
BRAET
Directors
Es
Mr. Ke Xionghan 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
WEBEE 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 141016 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - (4,000,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) -
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
ML 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 141016 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
Mr. Ho Man Fai 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
AREL 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 141016 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
12,000,000 - - - (12,000,000) -
Ex-directors®
HEZO
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
IRERE 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
Dr. Loke Yu 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
EEnEL 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) -
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Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019  options?  share options share options®
RZB-1E RZB-1E BRE
SHRENEAER -B-H ERRA FRfTR FREH FRXN TZA=t-B REBEY BREGER BRETERY
HKS per share
BRET
Other Employees
HibfEs
In aggregate 17,250,000 - - (17,250,000 - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
@zt 17,250,000 - - - (17,250,000) - 141016 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
23,000,000 - - (23,000,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
57,500,000 - - (57,500,000) -
Consultants
s
In aggregate 37,950,000 - - - (37,950,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
ait 37,950,000 - - (37,950,000) - 141016 141017 -13-10-19 0.436
50,600,000 - - - (50,600,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
126,500,000 - - - (126,500,000 -
198,000,000 - - - (198,000,000) -

Notes to the table of outstanding share options granted under the
2007 Scheme during the Year:

(a

The vesting period of the share options is from the date of
grant until the commencement of the exercise period.

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in case of rights or bonus issues, or other similar
changes in the Company'’s share capital.

Mr. Jiang Jianjun resigned as an executive director of the
Company with effect from 16 August 2019 and Dr. Loke Yu
resigned as an independent non-executive director of the
Company with effect from 1 November 2018. According to
the 2007 Scheme, the share options granted to them may be
exercised within three months from their respective date of
resignation.
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The Group did not incur share option expenses during the
Year (2018: HK$1,063,000).

Save as disclosed above, at no time during the Year were
rights to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of
shares in or debentures of the Company granted to any of
the directors or their respective spouses or children under
18 years of age, or were any such rights exercised by them;
or was the Company or any of its subsidiaries a party to any
arrangement to enable the directors to acquire such rights in
any other body corporate.

CONNECTED AND CONTINUING CONNECTED
TRANSACTIONS

Connected Transactions

Details of the connected transactions are disclosed in note 40
to the financial statements.

During the Year, the Group's bank loan of HK$78,253,000
was guaranteed by the investment property of the Group, Mr.
Jiang Jianjun (the ex-director and substantial shareholder of
the Company) and his wife.

The personal guarantees made by Mr. Jiang Jianjun
and his wife as guarantors in favour of the Group in
the abovementioned bank loan constituted connected
transaction of the Company in the form of financial
assistance under the Listing Rules. According to Rule 14A.90
of the Listing Rules, such financial assistance received by the
Group is fully exempt from the reporting, announcement
and independent shareholders’ approval requirements under
Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules as the directors consider
that it is conducted on normal commercial terms or better
and it is not secured by the assets of the Group.
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Continuing Connected Transactions

On 10 June 2019, the Company entered into a new
framework agreement (“New Framework Agreement”) with
BEAKRTIEEBR AR (Tongliao Beidahuang Cereals
Trading Co., Ltd.*, the “Supplier”) and its subsidiaries (the
“Supplier Group”) in relation to the supply of green and
organic food products including but not limited to corn,
cooking oil, and cereals and oils. The Supplier is a subsidiary
of IERFRE M B R AT (Beidahuang Marketing Co.
Ltd.*) which is a substantlal shareholder of J#III4b KAk
BRMEEABR QA (Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food
Distribution Limited* ) (@ non-wholly owned subsidiary of the
Company). Thus, the Supplier Group is a connected person of
the Company and the transactions contemplated under the
New Framework Agreement constitute continuing connected
transactions for the Company under the Listing Rules.

The New Framework Agreement was duly passed by way
of poll at the extraordinary general meeting held on 8
October 2019. The aggregated annual caps for transactions
contemplated under the New Framework Agreement for
each of the three years ending 31 December 2019, 2020
and 2021 are RMB150 million, RMB150 million and RMB150
million respectively as disclosed in the announcement of
the Company dated 10 June 2019 and the circular of the
Company dated 19 September 2019. During the year ended
31 December 2019, there was a total purchase of staple food
amounting to RMB74,974,000.

The independent non-executive directors of the Company
have reviewed the above continuing connected transactions

and confirmed that the transactions have been entered into:

a) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the
Group;

b) on normal commercial terms; and
Q) according to the agreement governing them on terms

that were fair and reasonable and in the interests of
the shareholders of the Company as a whole.

*  For identification purposes only
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For the purpose of Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the
Company'’s auditor, HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited,
has been engaged to report on the continuing connected
transactions for the year ended 31 December 2019 in
accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other
Than Audits or Reviews of Historical Financial Information”
and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s Letter on
Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong
Listing Rules” issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified
Public Accountants. The auditor has issued its unqualified
letter containing its findings and conclusions in respect
of the continuing connected transactions of the Group in
accordance with Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules and a
copy of the auditor’s letter has been provided to the Stock
Exchange. The auditor has confirmed the above continuing
connected transactions as follows:

1. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions have not been approved by the
Company's board of directors;

2. for transactions involving the provision of goods
or services by the Group, nothing has come to its
attention that causes it to believe that the disclosed
continuing connected transactions were not, in all
material respects, in accordance with the pricing
policies of the Group;

3. nothing has come to its attention that causes it to
believe that the disclosed continuing connected
transactions were not entered into, in all material
respects, in accordance with the relevant agreements
governing such transactions; and

4. with respect to the aggregate amount of the
continuing connected transactions, nothing has come
to its attention that causes it to believe that the
continuing connected transactions disclosed above
have exceeded the annual cap as set by the Company.
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The related party transactions as disclosed in note 40
to the financial statements also fell under the definition
of “connected transactions” or “continuing connected
transactions” in Chapter 14A of the Listing Rules. The
Group has complied with the disclosure requirements, where
applicable, in accordance with Chapter 14A of the Listing
Rules.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on information that is publicly available to the
Company and within the knowledge of the directors, at least
25% of the Company’s total number of issued shares was
held by the public as at the date of this report.

DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS IN COMPETING BUSINESS

At 31 December 2019, none of the directors was interested
in any business, apart from the Group’s business, which
competes or is likely to compete, either directly or indirectly,
with the business of the Group.

EQUITY-LINKED AGREEMENTS

Save for the share option schemes and the Subscription of
New Shares disclosed in the Company’s announcement dated
21 March 2019, the Company has not entered into any
equity-linked agreement during the Year.

ENVIRONMENTAL POLICIES AND PERFORMANCE
Details of the discussion on the environmental policies
and performance of the Company are set out in the
Environmental, Social and Governance Report 2019.

RELATIONSHIPS WITH EMPLOYEES

Employees are one of the most important assets and
stakeholders of the Group, their contribution and support are
values at all times. The Group regularly reviews compensation
and benefits policies accordingly to industry benchmark
as well as the individual performance of employees. Share
options are granted to retain loyal employees with the aim
to form a professional staff and management team that can
bring the Group to different levels of success.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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The Group encourages its staff to participate in external
seminars and lectures to keep abreast of changes and
updates on areas of legal, compliance, financial accounting
and reporting, and market industry practices. Through these
types of training, we believe that the Group can increase
its efficiency and productivity while in general, the risk and
uncertainties of the Group can be reduced.

The Company encourages continuous professional
development training for the directors and senior
management to develop and refresh their knowledge and
skills which includes seminars and workshops, updates on
regulatory requirements and development and corporate
governance practices.

The Group also strives to provide a healthy and safe working
environment to the employees.

COMPLIANCE WITH LAWS AND REGULATIONS

During the Year, the Company was not aware of any non-
compliance with any relevant laws and regulations that have
a significant impact on the business and operation of the
Company and its subsidiaries.

INDEMNITY OF DIRECTORS

A permitted indemnity provision that provides for indemnity
against liability incurred by directors and other officers of the
Group is currently in force and was in force throughout the
year ended 31 December 2019.
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AUDITOR

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited was appointed as the
auditor of the Company by the Board on 29 December 2017
to fill the causal vacancy following the resignation of CHENG
& CHENG LIMITED. Save for the above, there was no other
change in the auditor of the Company in the past three years.

The financial statements for the year ended 31 December
2019 have been audited by HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng
Limited. HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited will retire
and, being eligible, offer themselves for re-appointment. A
resolution to re-appoint HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited
as the auditor of the Company will be proposed at the
forthcoming annual general meeting.

On behalf of the Board

Li Jiehong
Chairman

Hong Kong, 15 May 2020
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

B #F &6 E 5 A BRAF
HODGSON IMPEY CHENG LIMITED

HLB

To the shareholders of China Beidahuang Industry
Group Holdings Limited
(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

We have audited the consolidated financial statements of
China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited (the
“Company”) and its subsidiaries (“the Group”) set out
on pages 81 to 239, which comprise the consolidated
statement of financial position as at 31 December 2019,
and the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income, the consolidated statement of
changes in equity and the consolidated statement of cash
flows for the year then ended, and notes to the consolidated
financial statements, including a summary of significant
accounting policies.

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a
true and fair view of the consolidated financial position of
the Group as at 31 December 2019, and of its consolidated
financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the
year then ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) issued by the Hong Kong
Institute of Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA") and have
been properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure
requirements of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance.
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MATERIAL UNCERTAINTY RELATED TO GOING CONCERN
We draw attention to Note 2 to the consolidated financial
statements, which indicates that as of 31 December 2019,
the Group recorded a consolidated net loss of approximately
HK$340,909,000. As at 31 December 2019, the Group had
default payment for other borrowings of approximately
HK$438,179,000, including the additional interests and
penalties (the “Default Payment”). In addition, the Group
had outstanding bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$541,962,000 which were due for repayment or renewal
in the next twelve months after 31 December 2019.As
stated in Note 2, these events or conditions, along with
other matters as set forth in Note 2, indicate that a material
uncertainty exists that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. Our opinion is
not modified in respect of this matter.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong
Standards on Auditing (“HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA.
Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditors’ Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Consolidated Financial Statements section of our report.
We are independent of the Group in accordance with the
HKICPA's Code of Ethics for Professional Accountants (“the
Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities
in accordance with the Code. We believe that the audit
evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional
judgment, were of most significance in our audit of the
consolidated financial statements of the current period. These
matters were addressed in the context of our audit of the
consolidated financial statements as a whole, and in forming

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
B RHENRE

FAREREE
FREZFASREBERMNEXAE Ao
ARG AMBRENBECR/EENFTH %
FEETERMNBRERGEVTRRLEA
EABETREN RMATEHZEFTHER
EEER-

our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate

opinion on these matters.

Key Audit Matter
HRERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

Impairment assessment of trade receivables

JEWE 58502 B 1AV

F2REE M BRERME2S

Refer to note 25 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group had trade receivables with gross carrying
amount of approximately HK$118,814,000 (2018:
HK$133,460,000) and allowance for expected credit
losses of approximately HK$22,133,000 (2018:
2,598,000).

EEECENRE ZHRAEmMATEL /118,814,000
Bt (ZZ—)\F :133,460,000870) * MariR 2 78
M= BBEEEN522,133,0008 T (ZZT— )\ F:
2,598,000/ 7T,) °

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment of the trade receivables as at
31 December 2019 included:

BMEHERER _ZE-—NF+_A=+—HEKE
SERFORET R ZF B

o obtain understanding and evaluating the key
controls that the Group has implemented
to manage and monitor its credit risk, and
validating the control effectiveness on a sample
basis;

. TRIE BSXEREERERAFEERR
Bz EEEZ WA E TR

o Checking, on a sample basis, the ageing profile
of the trade receivables as at 31 December
2019 to the underlying financial records and
post year-end settlements to bank receipts;

. MEBRER _E-NF+_A=+—HEKE
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZSEE

Management performed periodic assessment on
the recoverability of the trade receivables and
the sufficiency of allowance for expected credit
losses based on information including credit
profile of different customers, ageing of the trade
receivables, historical settlement records, subsequent
settlement status, expected timing and amount of
realisation of outstanding balances, and on-going
trading relationships with the relevant customers.
Management also considered forward-looking
information that may impact the customers’ ability to
repay the outstanding balances in order to estimate
the expected credit losses for the allowance for
expected credit losses assessment.
ERETHENRTRZEF ZEERR BREHER
ZBREL B E WK A 8% - HR GG - RIEE &8k
EHEERELREBUREEETE P ZHEE S H
FREEHTHEKE SRR AT EMS KTz T8
HEEBERE L RHAL - RTEREE BB ERE
ETEEERER BERENTERIGTERTPE
BANERERNBEE N ZATEMLER

We focused on this area due to the allowance for
expected credit losses assessment of trade receivables
under the expected credit losses model involved
the use of significant management judgements and
estimates.
BHMBRELSEENRBEBPEEBEELIRE
WEZERZAREEBRAGBEINERERE
BH e Rt ER -

o Inquiring of management for the status of each
of the material trade receivables past due as at
year end and corroborating explanations from
management with supporting evidence, such
as performing public search of credit profile
of selected customers, understanding on-
going business relationship with the customers
based on trade records, checking historical and
subsequent settlement records of and other
correspondence with the customers; and

. MERESHEENFRAEFEBIZ EREY
BIEFTMN WA HEBRREERE 2@
B I REsSEERPZ2EERLSE ERN
Bk TREREFPZHEEKBGR BEER
Pz AEREEEFRLEARERP 2 bR
&

o Assessing the appropriateness of
the expected credit loss provisioning
methodology, examining the key data
inputs on a sample basis to assess their
accuracy and completeness, and challenging
the assumptions, including both historical
and forward-looking information, used to
determine the expected credit losses.

. AHEEHEERERRE A/ EIRE
BEE T EWABBRATEEERERTRBML
URERETEHEEBREREAZBR (2
FEREL RATEEER) -

We found that the management judgment and
estimates used to assess the recoverability of the trade
receivables and determine the impairment provision to
be supportable by available evidence.
BPEREREEANTEEKE ZEFRAIKERE
LMETRERGBSERZEREHE AR
FREB X FFo
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

Impairment assessment of loan receivables and deposit and other receivables

EW B s KR A fE W 50R 2 B 18 A1

Refer to notes 18 and 26 to the consolidated financial statement

BESHEEEM B RRME18%26

As at 31 December 2019, the Group’s gross loan
receivables amounted to HK$384,004,000 (2018:
HK$380,949,000) and allowance for expected credit
losses of loan receivables of HK$23,966,000 (2018:
HK$4,520,000).

RZZE-NF+_A=+—H  EBEEZEKERK
#4258 %3384,004,0007% 7T ( —F — J\4F : 380,949,000
B TT) - M B TR B S B B 1B B & /823,966,000
BT (ZZF—/\% :4,520,000 7T) °

The Group had deposit and other receivables
with gross carrying amount of approximately
HK$506,211,000 and allowance of expected credit
losses of approximately HK$143,915,000.
EEENRENEAEMBERRELEREAELOR
506,211,000 T R FEHEEBEREBLH R
143,915,000/ 7t °

The balance of allowance for expected credit losses
of loan receivables and deposit and other receivables
represents the management’s best estimates at the
end of the reporting date of expected credit losses
under Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standard 9:
Financial Instruments expected credit losses models.
EWE R 1me REAMEYIE BHEEBEEE
REAEEERBNME B ARBREEBV Bk E £
EoN eI ACRMEEERRAUHBREREE
BEL 2 & EMET-

Our procedures in relations to management’s
impairment assessment of the loans receivables and
deposit and other receivables as at 31 December 2019
included:

BMHEBER _Z-—NF+_A=1t—HZEK
B me REMBEYFIE RENGRRZIZEFE
R

o understood and tested the key control
procedures performed by management,
including its procedures on periodic review
on overdue receivables and the assessment of
expected credit losses allowance on the loan
receivables and deposit and other receivables;

. THILTAFHEEECETZIRERREF B8
5 F B 2R B8 HA B W R TE ST R E K~ 1R
ehEMEYRFIBEZ BREEBERE R
% :

o understood and evaluated the modelling
methodologies for expected credit losses
measurement, assessed the reasonableness
of the model selection and key measurement
parameters determination;

. THRENEBAERMEEBBE KA A T
MRAERIEREARAELEATEZEEN
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZSEE

Management assesses whether the credit risk of
loan receivables have increased significantly since
their initial recognition, and apply a three-stage
impairment model to calculate their expected credit
losses. The measurement models of expected credit
losses involves significant management judgments and
assumptions, primarily including the following:
EEENEERKRERZEERRED 8V FERIA
RAMEIEIN WA =FERRERAAELAHREE
BE-RREEEENERA PR ERNEREHE
REFZ FEREUATEE:

- Selection of appropriate model and
determination of relevant key measurement
parameters, including probability of default,
loss given default and exposure at default;
HEHERENETHEEIEFE28 5
BRRTREM - BAIBRE R QR D

- Criteria for determining whether or not there
was a significant increase in credit risk or a

default; and
ETEERRESDANRBIZENNESELHNIE
PN

- Economic indicator for forward-looking
measurement, and the application of economic
scenarios and weightings.

FIAE St BB ER BB R &g

}Eﬁo
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

We focus on this area due to the magnitude of the
loan receivables and the significant estimates and
judgement involved in determining the expected
credit losses allowance on the loan receivables.
BMBRER BB ENEETRKEFEBEEEE
B P Moz BYE TR E A R E R 5T S 1 -

o for the historical information, discussed with
management to understand the management'’s
identification of significant increase in credit
risk, defaults and credit-impaired loans,
corroborated management’s explanation with
supporting evidence;

. HERENRELERN UWTHEREEHES
REREE EA BORBEHBREEREERZ
Bl WA FHBBEREEIRE 2

° for forward-looking measurement, we assessed
the reasonableness of economic indicator
selection, economic scenarios and weightings
application, assessed the reasonableness of the
estimation by comparing with industry data;
and

. AT L S EEERRER  CBEBAN

MERAZ &I BB BT RBURR (A

AT EM R

o checked major data inputs used in the
expected credit losses models on sample basis
to the Group’s record.

. MERERREEBERRVURAZ T 2R AR
BE EEECLHK-

Based on the above, we found that the estimates
and judgement made by management in respect
of the expected credit losses allowance and the
collectability of the loan receivables and deposit and
other receivables were supportable by the available
evidence.

A PR AER RMEREEEREHERER
e REAMEYIE 2 REE B RERE LA
REZ M A ARG BE -

FEEAREEXEEEZERERAA
2019 &£3§

73



74

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
B RHBENRE

Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZSEE

BERAEMEFEE BT

Impairment assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets

BESHEEEM B RRME20/%21

Refer to notes 20 and 21 to the consolidated financial statements

The Group has goodwill and other intangible assets of
approximately HK$34,646,000 and HK$62,990,000,
respectively. Management performed impairment
assessment of goodwill and other intangible assets
based on value in use model that required significant
management judgement with respect to the discount
rate and underlying cash flows, in particular future
revenue growth and capital expenditure. Independent
external valuation were obtained in order to support
management’s estimates.

BEEE 2 HENEMELEED B /A#)34,646,000/8
7. 162,990,0008 T EREH M B R EMELEE
ELREREDENEREEREGL EPFEE
BEMTEXREBARRE  LERRKKRIER
ERERRAZEHEXRHE - D BB INE L ERD
EITHE NFEREMME -

This conclusion was based on value in use model that
required significant management judgement with
respect to the discount rate and the underlying cash
flows, in particular future revenue growth and capital
expenditure. Independent external valuation were
obtained in order to support management’s estimates.
ZERDERNEREERESLH BEPFEEEEN
FREREEARERE LEARRRKRERERE
AAXEHEXAE - B RRRB ML EMETHE
B AXFHEEBHME-

Our procedures in relation to management’s
impairment assessment included:

HMEEEEEETT  RENEZEFEE:

o Evaluating of the independent valuer’s
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. AHA BN B ER 2 EIE - BE ) REBIE

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumption based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts;

. BIEFRPIERETE 2 NBMERRMNMEE
BER AHMEERTERERBREERE

o Challenging the reasonableness of key
assumptions based on our knowledge of the
business and industry; and

. RBHRMEHBEEBRITENT B DREHER
BENEEN: &

o Checking, on a sampling basis, the accuracy
and relevance of the input data used.

. MR EMRA 2 WA BIE 2 £ N AEA
/|\g_: °

We consider the management conclusion to be
consistent with the available information.

BRPRREEENAmEAREGER —B
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Key Audit Matter
HARERER

How the matter was addressed in our audit

BMHERNMEEZEE

Valuation of investment properties

REYZEIGE

Refer to note 15 to the consolidated financial statements

SHGREMBHRMES

Management has estimated the fair value of the
Group's investment properties to be approximately
HK$395,602,000 as at 31 December 2019, with net
gain in fair value for the year ended 31 December
2019 recorded in the consolidated statement of
profit or loss and other comprehensive income of
approximately HK$6,152,000.
RZE-NF=ZA=+—HB EEEMHT EXEK
B2 A AERR395,602,00087T  HE_T— 1
Ftr+_A=+—BLEFEFAGaERREMEME
WA Z 2 RSB F W w49 76,152,000 7T

Independent external valuations were obtained
in order to support management’'s estimates. The
valuations are dependent on certain key assumptions
that require significant management judgement,
including market unit value of comparable properties,
market rental and assuming the properties are capable
of being sold in the existing status.
EZRBIMNMEEMETHE X HERENMG
o MERARERZEEBHB AT EERR &
BALBEME 2 TS EMEE  mHRREDEIR
BRHE

Our procedures in relation to management’s
determination of the valuation of the investment
properties included:

B EEEETRENEREELET ZRFBHE:

o Evaluation of the independent valuer's
competence, capabilities and objectivity;

. AR ER 2 BIE - BE S REBIE

o Assessing the methodologies used and the
appropriateness of the key assumptions based
on our knowledge of the relevant industry and
using our valuation experts; and

. RIBRPIERETTR 2 MBMERRAINGE
BER AMERERTELRERBREERE
M

o Checking, on sample basis, the accuracy and
relevance of the input data used.

. MEIREPTERA 2 A BIE 2 E R AR
o

We found the key assumptions were supported by the
available evidence.

BPBERERBRREAGREEF-
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The
other information comprises the information included in the
annual report, but does not include the consolidated financial
statements and our auditors’ report thereon (the “Other
Information™).

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does
not cover the Other Information and we do not express any
form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial
statements, our responsibility is to read the Other Information
and, in doing so, consider whether the Other Information
is materially inconsistent with the consolidated financial
statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated. If, based on
the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a
material misstatement of this Other Information, we are
required to report that fact. We have nothing to report in this
regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT
COMMITTEE FOR THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The directors are responsible for the preparation of the
consolidated financial statements that give a true and fair
view in accordance with HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA and
the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors
determine is necessary to enable the preparation of
consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the
directors are responsible for assessing the Group’s ability
to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going
concern basis of accounting unless the directors either intend
to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or have no
realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the
Group's financial reporting process.

AUDITORS’ RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about
whether the consolidated financial statements as a whole
are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud
or error, and to issue an auditors’ report that includes our
opinion. We report our opinion solely to you, as a body,
and for no other purpose. We do not assume responsibility
toward or accept liability to any other person for the contents
of this report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of
assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted
in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from
fraud or error and are considered material if, individually
or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to
influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis
of these consolidated financial statements.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
B RHBENRE

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise
professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

o Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement
of the consolidated financial statements, whether
due to fraud or error, design and perform audit
procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain
audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not
detecting a material misstatement resulting from fraud
is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud
may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

o Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant
to the audit in order to design audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the
purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Group's internal control.

o Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies
used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates
and related disclosures made by the directors.

o Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’
use of the going concern basis of accounting and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether
a material uncertainty exists related to events or
conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we
conclude that a material uncertainty exists, we are
required to draw attention in our auditors’ report to
the related disclosures in the consolidated financial
statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to
modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on
the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our
auditors’ report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

° Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and
content of the consolidated financial statements,
including the disclosures, and whether the
consolidated financial statements represent the
underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

o Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding
the financial information of the entities or business
activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We
are responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the group audit. We remain solely
responsible for our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding,
among other matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audit findings, including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our
audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement
that we have complied with relevant ethical requirements
regarding independence, and to communicate with them
all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be
thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable,
related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee,
we determine those matters that were of most significance
in the audit of the consolidated financial statements of the
current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We
describe these matters in our auditors’ report unless law or
regulation precludes public disclosure about the matter or
when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a
matter should not be communicated in our report because
the adverse consequences of doing so would reasonably be
expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’' REPORT
B RE

The engagement director on audit resulting in this HEARBIZHBMBRE BT EEESTABRT
independent auditors’ report is Hon Koon Fai, Alex. o

HLB Hodgson Impey Cheng Limited BEEESHMEKMERAT

Certified Public Accountants R EFED

Hon Koon Fai, Alex BEE

Practising Certificate number: P05029 BMEFZERI : P05029

Hong Kong, 15 May 2020 EE —_ZT-_TFRATEHA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
GEREREMZEBARR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z—hNEF+-A=1+—HULFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FHET FET
Revenue WA 5 779,305 1,267,140
Cost of sales THE AN (666,373) (1,097,213)
Gross profit EF 112,932 169,927
Other income, gains or losses EMU A - W s EiE 6 40,327 32,767
Selling and distribution expenses HERDHERAX (18,407) (21,212)
Administrative expenses THFAX (100,249) (120,301)
Profit from operation £ A 34,603 56,757
Impairment losses under expected BHEEEEBERNIET
credit loss model B EE (177,991) (4,424)
Other operating expense HhgeE Mz (89,575) -
Finance costs Bl E K AN 8 (111,086) (51,592)
Share of loss of associates DIREE N R E 18 (334) (2,084)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAR WS 37 2,490 9,547
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREiA (&), & F 7 (341,893) 12,628
Taxation Bi1E 11 984 (851)
(LOSS)/PROFIT FOR THE YEAR FE(FB) B (340,909) 11,777
Other comprehensive gain/(loss) Hih2EBA (EE)
ltems that may be reclassified HigrlgbEFHEE
subsequently to profit or loss: Bz IEE
Release of exchange differences upon & B & A &) B 5 0]
disposal of subsidiaries PE 7 == 825 6,611)
Exchange differences arising on MEBINETE R E R F]
translation of foreign operations and ~ E4AZIE N =58
associates (51,488) (49,560)
Total comprehensive loss for the year ~ FE & EEEET (391,572) (44,394)

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT 81
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS AND OTHER COMPREHENSIVE INCOME

GeBRBEREMEEBARR

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z—NEF+-A=1+—HLFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
Bt 5T FET FH&T
(Loss)/profit attributable to: THIEG (B518) & :
Owners of the Company ZIN/NEIEZ ZS DN (291,072) 4,650
Non-controlling interests FEVERR M (49,837) 7,127
(340,909) 11,777
Total comprehensive loss Ty EEEEEEERE:
attributable to:
Owners of the Company ZAN/NETEZ =N (339,652) (51,457)
Non-controlling interests FEVERR B = (51,920) 7,063
(391,572) (44,394)
(LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE Bk (F5E) BR 13
— Basic and diluted (in HK cents) —EARREE (B) (4.94) 0.08
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

A PR R

31 December 2019

—E-NF+ZA=+—H

2019 2018
Notes HK$°000 HK$'000
ks FTET FHET
NON-CURRENT ASSETS FRBEE
Property, plant and equipment S E RN 14 75,010 321,173
Investment properties KEME 15 395,602 398,065
Right-of-use assets ETRAEEE 16 748,469 -
Rental deposits paid ENHeEe 19 10,263 30,413
Goodwill EES 20 34,646 47,266
Other intangible assets HihmEEE 21 62,990 123,495
Interests in associates NI 22 278,734 286,450
1,605,714 1,206,862
CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Inventories FE 23 48,393 57,169
Properties for sale HEME 24 202,813 -
Trade receivables EUE 5 EER 25 96,681 130,862
Loan receivables JEW &R 18 360,038 376,429
Prepayments, deposits and FBRHIE - RE K
other receivables H h fE R IR 26 537,387 628,431
Financial assets at fair value through FRBEREANBYESZ
profit or loss EREE 17 33,857 27,355
Pledged deposits [ELECRES 27 47,777 83,584
Cash and cash equivalents B NMIREEEY 27 79,995 37,277
1,406,941 1,341,107
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBAE
Trade and bills payables ENESERRRENEE 28 173,506 244,915
Other payables and accruals HmENRIBEREFTER 29 172,324 142,628
Contract liabilities BHBE 30 85,200 51,471
Bank and other borrowings RITRAMEE 31 541,962 333,424
Convertible bonds AR &S 33 - 195,378
Amount due to related party J& < BA Bk 75 FRIE 40 6,639 12,655
Bank overdraft RITEX 27 = 5,032
Tax payable FET IR 1,823 3,032
Lease liabilities HEAE 34 105,289 -
1,086,743 988,535
NET CURRENT ASSETS RBEERE 320,198 352,572
TOTAL ASSETS LESS CURRENT EERERRDERE
LIABILITIES 1,925,912 1,559,434

FEEAREEXEEEZERERAA
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION

e MR R R
31 December 2019
—F-AETZA=+-R

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FETT
NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES FkREBEMS
Deferred tax liabilities RERHIEEE 32 43,896 47,445
Lease liabilities HEARE 34 652,760 -
Total non-current liabilities FEREBBERTE 696,656 47,445
Net assets BEFE 1,229,256 1,511,989
EQUITY s
Equity attributable to owners of ARREEAELER
the Company
Share capital N 35 622,513 561,726
Reserves f# 606,824 897,283
1,229,337 1,459,009
Non-controlling interests FEERER (81) 52,980
Total equity E o AR RE 1,229,256 1,511,989
Li Jiehong 4 Ke Xionghan TR
Director BE Director s

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019




CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY
mEEZBEBR

Year ended 31 December 2019

BHE_ZT-NF+_A=T—HLFE
Attributable to owners of the parent
BLAAREAEE
Share Share Convertible Exchange Non-
Issued premium option bond fluctuation  Accumulated controlling
capital account reserve reserve reserve losses Sub-total interests Total equity
THE Ex
BRIRE RiERR BRERR RERE KERE iR it FERER REEE
Notes HKS'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS'000
ik THL T TiEn F#T T T i TR Tt
At 1 January 2018 W=%-)\E-F-H 543,426 1,583,731 86,670 9,894 (110,134) (658,858) 1,454,729 57,536 1,512,265
Profit for the year FRET - - - - - 4,650 4,650 1127 177
Other comprehensive income for the year EREBZERA
Release of exchange reserve upon HENBAANKEER HiE
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - (6,611) - (6,611) - (6,611)
Exchange differences on translation BEENEHRBERR
of foreign operation and associate EEZEREE - - - - (49,496) - (49,496) (64) (49,560)
Total comprehensive income for the year FELARALE - - - - (56,107) 4,650 (51,457) 7,063 (44,394)
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares B HTRHH & TR 3 20,000 40,000 - - - - 60,000 - 60,000
Repurchase of ordinary shares EREER (1,700) (3626) - - - - (5326) - (5326)
Released upon disposal of subsidiaries HEHBAABEE - - - - - - - (11,619) (11,619)
Lapse of share options ERELN - - (49,335) - - 49,335 - - -
Equity-settled share option arrangements RiEsERRER 34 - - 1,063 - - - 1,063 - 1,063
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZF—-E+ZAZ+-AR
—T-N5-A-8 561,726 1,620,105* 38,398* 9,804* (166,241)* (604,873)* 1,459,009 52,980 1,511,989
Loss for the year FEEE = = o - - (291,072) (291,072) (49,837) (340,909)
Other comprehensive income for the year ERABRZARA
Release of exchange reserve upon HEMBAINEEOER R
disposal of subsidiaries - - - - 825 - 825 = 825
Exchange differences on translation BEBNEBREERR
of foreign operation and associate EEZEREER - - - - (49,405) - (49,405) (2,083) (51,488)
Total comprehensive loss for the year EERABRLE - - - - (48,580) - (339,652) (51,920) (391,572)
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares PR RHBEETRA 3 62,487 53,114 - - - - 115,601 - 115,601
Share issuing expenses (kG - (1,000) - - - - (1,000) - (1,000)
Repurchase of ordinary shares BRLER (1,700) (2921 - - - - (4,621) S (4621)
Transfer to accumulated losses upon mature AT R B4 5158
convertible bonds BRERZHER - - - (9.894) - 9,894 - - -
Released! upon disposal of a subsidiary HEHBARBER - - = - - - - (1,141) (1,141)
Lapse of share options BREXR - - (38,398) - = 38,398 = = =
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NE
+-A=t+-8 622,513 1,669,298* - - (214,821)* (847,653)* 1,229,337 (81) 1,229,256
* These reserve accounts comprise the consolidated reserves * ZEREERERRAUBRAR ZE

of HK$606,824,000 (2018: HK$897,283,000) in the
consolidated statement of financial position.

& #1#5606,824,0005 7T (=
897,283,000/ 7T) ©

T NF:
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-hE+-A=+—ALLFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
s FHExT FHET
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM/ K& EBFE  (FTH)
(USED IN) OPERATING ACTIVITIES HERE
(Loss)/profit before taxation BREAT (B18),a (341,893) 12,628
Adjustments for: AT R
Finance costs BE A 8 111,086 51,592
Share of loss of associates DREE N R E R 334 2,084
Interest income F B U A 6 (4,116) (321)
Net allowance for expected credit BLEWE 5 R
losses recognised for trade HREHEE
receivables S iE R F 5 19,680 (778)
Allowance for expected credit losses BLHE th FE Y SRIBTE R
recognised for other receivables TEER = E R B B G 138,701 2,784
Allowance for expected credit losses MERERERZ
recognised for loan receivables BRI E R B B G 19,610 2,418
Impairment loss on property, plant M - BB K&
and equipment VEREY ki 14 35,341 -
Impairment loss on goodwill HEREEE 20 11,864 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets BEZEEREEE 21 42,370 -
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HEMB R Rz W= 37 (2,490) (9,547)
Loss on disposal of a investment HEREMEZERE
property 120 -
Depreciation of property, ME - HWEREEITE
plant and equipment 14 18,509 18,070
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEERE 132,904 —
Amortisation of other intangible Hith B aE#E
assets 21 10,758 10,870
Unrealised fair value gain on KREWMEZ KRR
investment properties NIER = 15 (6,152) (7,088)
Unrealised fair value (gain)/loss on BREREAALE
financial assets at fair value RN EMEEZ
through profit or loss REBNNE
(Yez) /18 (7,055) 8,401
Share-based payments AR 9 2 A 5 IE 36 - 1,063
179,571 92,176
Decrease/(increase) in inventories FEERL, (&) 7,807 (42,186)
Decrease/(increase) in trade receivables FEUNE 5 EE X
() 7,667 (61,451)
Increase in prepayments, FERHRIE - RE R
deposits and other receivables H b e Y& SRIE HE 0 (118,034) (200,207)
Increase in loan receivables JE U & KL AN (21,895) (38,523)
(Decrease)/increase in trade payables BT E F R
CRd) /1 hn (5,427) 78,180
Increase in other payables and accruals — E b & < X8 &
et & g 46,240 24,537
Increase in contract liabilities EHaEEm 34,952 53,590
Cash generated from/(used in) KERR/ (TR RS
operations 130,881 (93,884)
Tax paid ERNHIE (1,469) (8,984)
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mEBHERER

Year ended 31 December 2019
HE-Z—hNEF+-A=1+—HULFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$’000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FET
Net cash generated from/(used in) KRS, (FTA)
operating activities & F R 129,412 (102,868)
CASH FLOWS GENERATED FROM REEE NG
INVESTING ACTIVITIES BHE&ERE
Bank interest received B UERTTH B 1,208 321
Purchases of property, BEWE WFEKEHE
plant and equipment (14,916) (35,747)
Proceeds from disposal of a HEREYEFTEHIE
investment property 1,161 -
Net cash inflow from HEHNBARIZRS
disposal of subsidiaries A HRE 37 67,713 59,338
(Decrease)/increase in amount due to  JE 1~ BB 77 7008
related party (B A) /18 mn (5,835) 17,134
Net cash flows generated from KEEBME
investing activities Ben= %58 49,331 41,046
CASH FLOWS (USED IN)/ mEEE (FTA)
GENERATED FROM FIBRERE
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from issue of shares, BTG TR FRIR
net of share issuing expenses BRI 1D 3175 i 35 114,601 60,000
Repurchase of shares EAEIREh) (4,621) (5,326)
New bank and other borrowings MR R EMEE 144,390 38,071
Repayment of bank and BRRITRAMEE
other borrowings (121,258) (112,588)
Repayment of convertible bond BRI MRES (5,000) -
Repayment of lease liabilities EEHEEE (163,985) -
Decrease in bills payable e =B (62,114) (57,229)
Withdrawal of pledged bank deposits ~ f2ERE I IR1TF K 104,617 124,472
Deposits pledged to bank ERTRITZTFR (70,035) -
Interest paid EERES (53,291) (45,650)
Net cash flows (used in)/generated MEES (FTA),/
from financing activities FMSIRE”RE 58 (116,696) 1,750

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

mMERERER

Year ended 31 December 2019

BE-T-hE+-A=+—ALLFE

2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B 5 FET FETT
NET INCREASE/(DECREASE) IN HeREASEEY
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS #Bi, ORd) BEE 62,047 (60,072)
Cash and cash equivalents FUMRERBEEFEY
at beginning of year 32,245 66,183
Effect of foreign exchange rate INEE R B B BT
changes, net (14,297) 26,134
CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS FRNEERESEEY
AT END OF YEAR 79,995 32,245
ANALYSIS OF BALANCES OF CASH HRE&RBEELSZEY
AND CASH EQUIVALENTS EER DA
Represented by: &
Cash and cash equivalents as stated RirE M BIRRERZES 2
in the consolidated statement of HekReEED
financial position 27 79,995 37,277
Bank overdraft stated in the R BIRAKRES 2
consolidated statement RITEX
of financial position 27 - (5,032)
79,995 32,245
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2.1.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CORPORATE INFORMATION

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
is a public limited liability company incorporated in
the Cayman Islands. Its shares are listed on The Stock
Exchange of Hong Kong Limited. Mr. Jiang Jianjun and
Ms. Li Zhuoxun are the substantial shareholders of
the Company. The registered address of the Company
is P.O. Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands. The address of its principal
place of business is Room 225, 2/F, Mega Cube, 8
Wang Kwong Road, Kowloon Bay, Kowloon, Hong
Kong.

The Company is an investment holding company. The
principal activities of its subsidiaries are set out in note
43 to the financial statements.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

These consolidated financial statements have been
prepared in accordance with Hong Kong Financial
Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs”) (which include
all Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards,
Hong Kong Accounting Standards (“HKASs") and
Interpretations) issued by the Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants (“HKICPA"), accounting
principles generally accepted in Hong Kong and the
disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance. They have been prepared under the
historical cost convention, except for certain financial
instruments and investment properties are stated
at their fair value. These consolidated financial
statements are presented in Hong Kong dollars and
all values are rounded to the nearest thousand except
when otherwise indicated.

2.1

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—Z-NEt=A=+—F
NEER
PRI AREESEERER AR AR —
MERERETIMAIZARERA
Al ERNREBBBERSAER A A
EFH - IRERERBRENLTR/RAR
AR EERRE - AR A FE M it APO.
Box 309, Ugland House, Grand Cayman,
KY1-1104, Cayman Islands o 2 T Z &%
B MU R BB LB SLBEIE R B8R
Bl = 5218225 % -

AARA—EREZEERAR EHB A
A BRBEN P RRM T3

mREE

BEREMBHRR VBB E SR
& ([BASFEAg]) R 2 BB/
WELEL ([HFEMBREER]) (BF
FRERAMBRERER FEGTER
(IFEest ) kRl BEIR
B RAIRE AR EED 2 BT E R
MK -BRETEBTEAMEEMETS
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—F-AF+=A=+—H

2.1.

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis

During the year ended 31 December 2019, the Group
recorded a consolidated net loss of approximately
HK$340,909,000. As at 31 December 2019, the
Group had Default Payments included i) default
convertible bond of approximately HK$201,897,000
(the “Default Convertible Bond”) to convertible
bondholders (note 31I); ii) default secured bond
of approximately HK$139,810,000 (the “Default
Secured Bond”) to secured bondholder (note 31m);
iii) default unsecured bonds HK$86,416,000 to six
unsecured bondholders (note 31n) and iv) default loan
of approximately HK$10,056,000 to a loan holder
(note 31k). In addition, the Group had outstanding
bank and other borrowings of approximately
HK$541,962,000 which were due for repayment or
renewal in the next twelve months after 31 December
2019.

However, the Group’s cash and cash equivalents
of approximately HK$79,995,000 and the financial
resources available to the Group as at 31 December
2019 may not be sufficient to repay the Default
Payments. In preparing the consolidated financial
statements, the Directors have given careful
consideration to the future liquidity of the Group. The
Directors adopted the going concern basis for the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements
and implemented the following measures in order to
improve the working capital and liquidity and cash
flow position of the Group:

1) Existing business
Management has been endeavoring to improve
the Group’s operating results and cash flows
through various cost control measures and will
focus on the existing business.

2) New banking facilities
Subsequent to 31 December 2019, the
Group successfully obtained new bank
facilities of RMB40,000,000 (approximately
HK$44,700,000) from a bank in the PRC.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

2.1. BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Going concern basis (continued)

3)

4)

5)

Negotiating with creditors’ new terms of other
borrowings

On 28 April 2020 (the “Renewal Date”),
the Group has entered into an extension
agreement with an agent of convertible
bondholders of the Default Convertible Bond
pursuant to which the maturity date of the
Default Convertible Bond was extended to
31 December 2020 and the extended Default
Convertible Bond will be bearing interest at
12% per annum till 31 December 2020.

The Group is negotiating with secured
bondholder to extend the Default Secured
Bond. In the opinion of the Directors, the
Default Secured Bond will not be recalled until
agreeing the new terms by the Group and the
secured bondholder.

Generate operating cash inflows

The Group had budgeted and laid out its
business plan for pre-sale of the properties for
sale on Seafood Phase One Houses included
in consolidated statement of financial position
in the second half of 2020. These business
plans are expected to generate operating cash
inflows to the Group.

Financial support

A substantial shareholder of the Company
has agreed to continuously provide financial
support for the continuing operations of the
Group so as to enable it to meet its liabilities
when they fall due and carry on its business
without a significant curtailment of operations
in the twelve months from 31 December 2019.

In the opinion of the Directors, in light of the various
measures or arrangements implemented after the
end of reporting period together with the expected
results of the other measures, the Group will have
sufficient working capital for its current requirements
and it is reasonable to expect the Group to remain a
commercially viable concern. Accordingly, the Directors
are satisfied that it is appropriate to prepare the
consolidated financial statements on a going concern

basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
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2.1

NF+=ZA=+—H

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)

Going concern basis (continued)

Should the Group be unable to continue to operate as
a going concern, adjustments would have to be made
to write down the value of assets to their recoverable
amounts, to provide for any future liabilities which
might arise and to reclassify non-current assets and
liabilities as current assets and liabilities respectively.
The effect of these adjustments has not been reflected
in the consolidated financial statements.

Basis of consolidation

The consolidated financial statements include
the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries (collectively referred to as the “Group”)
for the year ended 31 December 2019. The
financial statements of the subsidiaries are prepared
for the same reporting period as the Company,
using consistent accounting policies. The results
of subsidiaries are consolidated from the date of
acquisition, being the date on which the Group
obtains control, and continue to be consolidated until
the date that such control ceases. All intra-group
balances, transactions, unrealised gains and losses
resulting from intra-group transactions and dividends
are eliminated on consolidation in full.

Total comprehensive income within a subsidiary is
attributed to the non-controlling interest even if that
results in a deficit balance.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary,
without a loss of control, is accounted for as an equity
transaction.

If the Group loses control over a subsidiary, it
derecognises (i) the assets (including goodwill) and
liabilities of the subsidiary, (ii) the carrying amount of
any non-controlling interest and (iii) the cumulative
translation differences recorded in equity; and
recognises (i) the fair value of the consideration
received, (i) the fair value of any investment retained
and (iii) any resulting surplus or deficit in profit or
loss. The Group's share of components previously
recognised in other comprehensive income is
reclassified to profit or loss or retained profits, as
appropriate.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
(“HKFRSs")

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatory effective for the current year

The Company and its subsidiaries (collectively referred
to as the “Group”) has applied the following new and
amendments to HKFRSs issued by the HKICPA for the
first time in the current year:

HKFRS 16 Leases

HK(IFRIC) — Int 23 Uncertainty over Income Tax Treatments

Amendments to  Prepayment Features with
HKFRS 9 Negative Compensation

Amendments to  Plan Amendment, Curtailment or

HKAS 19 Settlement
Amendments to  Long-term Interests in Associates and
HKAS 28 Joint Ventures

Amendments to  Annual Improvements to
HKFRSs HKFRSs 2015-2017 Cycle

Except as described below, the directors of the
Company anticipate that the application of all other
new and amendments to HKFRSs in the current year
has had no material impact on the Group's financial
performance and positions for the current and prior
years and/or on the disclosures set out in these
consolidated financial statements.

The above new HKFRSs have been applied in
accordance with the relevant transition provisions
in the respective standards and amendments which
results in changes in accounting policies, amounts
reported and/or disclosures as described below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
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2.2

NF+ZA=+—H

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatory effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases

Transition and summary of effects arising from initial
application of HKFRS 16

On 1 January 2019, the Group has applied HKFRS
16. HKFRS 16 superseded HKAS 17, and the related
interpretations. The Group applied the HKFRS 16 in
accordance with the transition provisions of HKFRS 16.

Definition of a lease

The Group has elected the practical expedient to
apply HKFRS 16 to contracts that were previously
identified as leases applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) —
Int 4 Determining whether an Arrangement contains
a Lease and not apply this standard to contracts that
were not previously identified as containing a lease.
Therefore, the Group has not reassessed contracts
which already existed prior to the date of initial
application.

For contracts entered into or modified on or after 1
January 2019, the Group applies the definition of a
lease in accordance with the requirements set out in
HKFRS 16 in assessing whether a contract contains a
lease.

As a lessor
During the year ended 31 December 2019, application
of HKFRS 16 by the Group as a lessor has no
material impact on the Group’s consolidated financial
statements.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatory effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee

The Group has applied HKFRS 16 retrospectively with
the cumulative effect recognised at the date of initial
application, 1 January 2019. As at 1 January 2019, the
Group recognised additional lease liabilities and right-
of-use assets at amounts equal to the related lease
liabilities adjusted by any prepaid or accrued lease
payments by applying HKFRS 16.C8(b)(ii) transition.
Any difference at the date of initial application is
recognised in the opening retained earnings and
comparative information has not been restated.

When applying the modified retrospective approach
under HKFRS 16 at transition, the Group applied the
following practical expedients to leases previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17, on lease-
by-lease basis, to the extent relevant to the respective
lease contracts:

i. excluded initial direct costs from measuring
the right-of-use assets at the date of initial
application;

ii. applied a single discount rate to a portfolio of
leases with a similar remaining terms for similar
class of underlying assets in similar economic
environment. Specifically, discount rate for
certain leases of properties was determined on
a portfolio basis;

2.2
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019

—F-hF+-A=+-A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatory effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

2.2

used hindsight based on facts and circumstances
as at date of initial application in determining
the lease term for the Group’s leases with
extension options;

elected not to recognise right-of-use assets
and lease liabilities for leases with lease term
ends within 12 months of the date of initial
application; and

relied on the assessment of whether lease
are onerous by applying HKAS 37 Provision,
Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets as
an alternative of impairment review.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are
mandatory effective for the current year
(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

On transition, the Group has made the following
adjustments upon application of HKFRS16:

When recognising the lease liabilities for leases
previously classified as operating leases, the Group has
applied incremental borrowing rates of the relevant
group entities at the date of initial application. The
weighted average incremental borrowing rates applied
by relevant group entities was ranged from 6.48% to

2.2

B RS ER R M AL
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7.00%.

At 1 January

2019
R-ZE-N#F
—HA—H
HK$'000
FHET
Operating lease commitments disclosed asat RZE—N\F+_A=+—HHEZEH
31 December 2018 RETHE AR 1,108,541
Less: total future interest expenses AR B 2R (214,456)
Present value of remaining lease RBEEENRURNKRTHEREN
payments, discounted using the RERR-ZF-NF—A—HEIN
incremental borrowing rate and HESE
lease liabilities recognised as
at 1 January 2019 894,085
Less: practical expedient-leases with lease term & : AJfT#EE 5% — HHHAR ¥14 FE 3 H
ending within12 months from date of BB 12EANERNEE
initial application (13,914)
Less: low-value leases not recognised as B AERRBENREEEE
liability (46)
Lease liabilities as at 1 January 2019 R-ZE-—NF—A—HWMHEEaE 880,125
Analysed as: WA
Current mE 109,939
Non-current FEMEN 770,186
880,125
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019

2.2

—NE+=A=+—A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.2
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)

New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are

mandatory effective for the current year

(continued)

HKFRS 16 Leases (continued)

As a lessee (continued)

The carrying amount of right-of-use assets for own use

as at 1 January 2019 comprises the following:

R EEMBRELARER
B mEER BT A (&)

RAEFERFEMZHITERBMBRE
HEARBBUBREEN ZBTE
(&)

BB S ERF 169 HE (&)
ERAMBEAN (B)
R-ZZE-NF—F—REEBRAZERE
BEZERAEBFENTEE:

Right-of-use
assets
EREEE
Notes HK$'000
Bt aE FHET
Right-of-use assets relating to operating ~ fEFA & %ﬁﬁ%# HERFE165
leases recognised EERNELCEHERA
upon application of HKFRS 16 E’Jﬁﬂﬁéé? (a) 880,125
Add: Right-of-use assets relating to m:EREEVBREER
deposits of operating leases F16581&8 TR Ay
recognised upon application of KEHERSBEN
HKFRS 16 EREEE (b) 14,295
894,420
By class: LR
Leased premises HEWE 894,420
Notes: B aE
(a) The right-of-use assets in relation to leases previously (a) LRIt AKLIBE  HERBEA

classified as operating leases have been recognised
at an amount equal to the amount recognised
for the remaining lease liabilities, adjusted by the
amount of any prepaid or accrued lease payments
relating to that lease recognised in the statement of
consolidated financial position at 31 December 2018.

(b) Before the application of HKFRS 16, the Group
considered refundable rental deposits paid as
rights and obligations under leases to which HKAS
17 applied under other receivables. Based on the
definition of lease payments under HKFRS 16, such
deposits are not payments relating to the right to use
of the underlying assets and were adjusted to reflect
the discounting effect at transition. Accordingly,
approximately HK$14,295,000 was adjusted to
refundable rental deposits paid and right-of-use
assets.
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2.2

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-hEF+=A=+—A

APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 22 FEAIIEANBEREENRES
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS Bt #& 3R &5 #E H|| Z{I AR (48])
("HKFRSs") (continued)
New and Amendments to HKFRSs that are RAEEREER 2 HITEBHERE
mandatory effective for the current year ERREBHEREER ST AR
(continued) (&)
HKFRS 16 Leases (continued) BB IR ER 165 E (42)
As a lessee (continued) EBEFE A (B8)
The following table summarises the impacts of the TR Bt B AN E & B TR IR BN Z 1658
adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's consolidated HAERR-_E—-NE—A—HBHHGES
statement of financial position at 1 January 2019. Line BRI RSB AT A S E)
items that were not affected by the changes have not SERIBBEWARBIEENRN-
been included.
Carrying Carrying
amounts amounts
previously under
report at HKFRS 16 at
31 December 1 January
2018  Adjustments 2019
®
ZB-NF
—RA—H
KRR BREERE
—E-N\f BREE
+=ZA=+-H ERIE165
EHE2EESE AR HENRESHE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
BT TET TEX
Non-current assets ERBEE
Right-of-use assets FREEE - 894,420 894,420
Rental deposits paid BEfeke 30,413 (10,473) 19,940
Current assets RBEE
Prepayment, deposit and other receivables ~ BB & K
H R RIA 628,431 (3.822) 624,609
Current liabilities nEBEE
Lease liabilities HERE - (109,939) (109,939)
Non-current liabilities kRBER
Lease liabilities HEAE - (770,186) (770,186)
Note: BEE
The application of HKFRS 16 to leases previously classified as A RRIES A ERNFI17R 0B AR
operating leases under HKAS 17 resulted in the recognition HENHEERBEESMBRELENE1655E
of right-of-use assets of HK$894,420,000 and lease liabilities EH A H RN E S ISR R 516506

of HK$880,125,000 at the initial adoption of HKFRS 16.

TERE A 894,420,000 T M E A E
880,125,000/% T ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—Z-NFEt=A=+—A
2.2  APPLICATION OF NEW AND AMENDMENTS TO 2.2
HONG KONG FINANCIAL REPORTING STANDARDS
("HKFRSs") (continued)
New and amendments to HKFRSs in issue but not
yet effective
The Group has not early applied the following new
and amendments to HKFRSs that have been issued but
are not yet effective:

HKAS 1 and HKAS 8 Definition of Material'
(Amendments)

HKFRS 9, HKAS 39 and Interest Rate Benchmark
HKFRS 7 (Amendments) Reform'

HKFRS 3 (Amendments) Definition of a Business?

HKFRS 10 and HKAS 28  Sale or contribution of Assets
(Amendments) between an Investor and its
Associate or Joint Venture*

HKFRS 17 Insurance Contracts®

! Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2020.

2 Effective for business combinations and asset
acquisitions for which the acquisition date is on
or after the beginning of the first annual period
beginning on or after 1 January 2020.

3 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after 1
January 2021.
4 Effective for annual periods beginning on or after a

date to be determined.

In addition to the above new and amendments
to HKFRSs, a revised “Conceptual Framework
for Financial Reporting” was issued in 2018. Its
consequential amendments, the “Amendments
to References to the Conceptual Framework” in
HKFRS Standards, will be effective for annual periods
beginning on or after 1 January 2020. The directors
of the Company anticipate that the application of
all other new and amendments to HKFRSs will have
no material impact on the consolidated financial
statements in the foreseeable future.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

Subsidiaries and non-controlling interests
Subsidiaries are entities controlled by the Company.
The Company controls an entity when it is exposed,
or has rights, to variable returns from its involvement
with the entity and has the ability to affect those
returns through its power over the entity. When
assessing whether the Company has power, only
substantive rights (held by the Company and other
parties) are considered.

An investment in a subsidiary is consolidated into the
consolidated financial statements from the date that
control commences until the date that control ceases.
Intra-group balances, transactions and cash flow
and any unrealised profits arising from intra-group
transactions are eliminated in full in preparing the
consolidated financial statements. Unrealised losses
resulting from intra-group transactions are eliminated
in the same way as unrealised gains but only to the
extent that there is no evidence of impairment.

Non-controlling interests represent the equity in a
subsidiary not attributable directly or indirectly to
the company, and in respect of which the Group has
not agreed any additional contractual obligation in
respect of those interests that meets the definition
of a financial liability. For each business combination,
the Group can elect to measure any non-controlling
interests either at fair value or at the non-controlling
interests’ proportionate share of the subsidiary’s net
identifiable assets.

The results of subsidiaries are included in the
Company's statement of profit or loss to the extent
of dividends received and receivable. The Company’s
investments in subsidiaries that are not classified as
held for sale in accordance with HKFRS 5 are stated at
cost less any impairment losses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates

An associate is an entity over which the Group has
significant influence and that is neither a subsidiary
nor an interest in a joint venture. Significant influence
is the power to participate in the financial and
operating policy decisions of the investee but is not
control or joint control over those policies.

The results and assets and liabilities of associates
are incorporated in these consolidated financial
statements using the equity method of accounting,
except when the investment, or a portion thereof,
is classified as held for sale, in which case it is
accounted for in accordance with HKFRS 5. Under
the equity method, an investment in an associate
is initially recognised in the consolidated statement
of financial position at cost and adjusted thereafter
to recognise the Group’s share of profit or loss and
other comprehensive income of the associate. When
the Group's share of losses of an associate exceeds
the Group's interest in that associate (which includes
any long-term interests, that, in substance, form
part of the Group’s net investment in the associate),
the Group discontinues recognising its share of
further losses. Additional losses are recognised only
to the extent that the Group has incurred legal or
constructive obligations or made payments on behalf
of that associate.

An investment in an associate is accounted for using
the equity method from the date on which the
investee becomes an associate. On acquisition of the
investment in an associate, any excess of the cost of
the investment over the Group's share of the net fair
value of the identifiable assets and liabilities of the
investee is recognised as goodwill, which is included
within the carrying amount of the investment. Any
excess of the Group's share of the net fair value of
the identifiable assets and liabilities over the cost of
the investment, after re-assessment, is recognised
immediately in profit or loss in the period in which the
investment is acquired.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

The requirements of HKAS 39 are applied to
determine whether it is necessary to recognize
any impairment loss with respect to the Group’s
investment in an associate. When necessary, the entire
carrying amount of the investment (including goodwill)
is tested for impairment in accordance with HKAS 36
“Impairment of assets” as a single asset by comparing
its recoverable amount (higher of value in use and fair
value less costs of disposal with its carrying amount.
Any impairment loss recognised forms part of the
carrying amount of the investment. Any reversal of
that impairment loss is recognised in accordance with
HKAS 36 to the extent that the recoverable amount of
the investment subsequently increases.

The Group discontinues the use of the equity method
from the date when the investment ceases to be
an associate. When the Group retains an interest
in the former associate and the retained interest is
a financial asset, the Group measures the retained
interest at fair value at that date and the fair value
is regarded as its fair value on initial recognition in
accordance with HKAS 39. The difference between
the carrying amount of the associate at the date the
equity method was discontinued, and the fair value of
any retained interest and any proceeds from disposing
of a part interest in the associate is included in the
determination of the gain or loss on disposal of the
associate. In addition, the Group accounts for all
amounts previously recognised in other comprehensive
income in relation to that associate on the same
basis as would be required if that associate had
directly disposed of the related assets or liabilities.
Therefore, if a gain or loss previously recognised in
other comprehensive income by that associate would
be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal of
the related assets or liabilities, the Group reclassifies
the gain or loss from equity to profit or loss (as a
reclassification adjustment) when the equity method is
discontinued.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Associates (continued)

When the Group reduces its ownership interest in an
associate but the Group continues to use the equity
method, the Group reclassifies to profit or loss the
proportion of the gain or loss that had previously been
recognised in other comprehensive income relating to
that reduction in ownership interest if that gain or loss
would be reclassified to profit or loss on the disposal
of the related assets or liabilities.

When a group entity transacts with an associate
of the Group, profits and losses resulting from the
transactions with the associate are recognised in the
Group's consolidated financial statements only to the
extent of interests in the associate that are not related
to the Group.

Business combinations and goodwiill

Business combinations are accounted for using the
acquisition method. The consideration transferred is
measured at the acquisition date fair value which is
the sum of the acquisition date fair values of assets
transferred by the Group, liabilities assumed by the
Group to the former owners of the acquiree and
the equity interests issued by the Group in exchange
for control of the acquiree. For each business
combination, the Group elects whether to measures
the non-controlling interests at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the
acquiree’s identifiable net assets. Acquisition related
costs are expensed as incurred.

When the Group acquires a business, it assesses the
financial assets and liabilities assumed for appropriate
classification and designation in accordance with
the contractual terms, economic circumstances and
pertinent conditions as at the acquisition date. This
includes the separation of embedded derivatives in
host contracts by the acquiree.

If the business combination is achieved in stages, the
previously held equity interest is remeasured at its
acquisition date fair value and any resulting gain or
loss is recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Goodwill is initially measured at cost, being the excess
of the aggregate of the consideration transferred, the
amount recognised for non-controlling interests and
any fair value of the Group’s previously held equity
interests in the acquiree over the identifiable net assets
acquired and liabilities assumed. If the sum of this
consideration and other items is lower than the fair
value of the net assets acquired, the difference is, after
reassessment, recognised in profit or loss as a gain on
bargain purchase.

After initial recognition, goodwill is measured at cost
less any accumulated impairment losses. Goodwill is
tested for impairment annually or more frequently if
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the
carrying value may be impaired. The Group performs
its annual impairment test of goodwill as at 31
December. For the purpose of impairment testing,
goodwill acquired in a business combination is, from
the acquisition date, allocated to each of the Group's
cash-generating units, or groups of cash-generating
units, that are expected to benefit from the synergies
of the combination, irrespective of whether other
assets or liabilities of the Group are assigned to those
units or groups of units.

Impairment is determined by assessing the recoverable
amount of the cash-generating unit (group of cash-
generating units) to which the goodwill relates. Where
the recoverable amount of the cash-generating unit
(group of cash-generating units) is less than the
carrying amount, an impairment loss is recognised.
An impairment loss recognised for goodwill is not
reversed in a subsequent period.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Business combinations and goodwill (continued)
Where goodwill has been allocated to a cash-
generating unit (or group of cash-generating units)
and part of the operation within that unit is disposed
of, the goodwill associated with the operation
disposed of is included in the carrying amount of the
operation when determining the gain or loss on the
disposal. Goodwill disposed in these circumstances is
measured based on the relative values of the disposed
operation and the portion of the cash-generating unit
retained.

Impairment of non-financial assets

Where an indication of impairment exists, or when
annual impairment testing for an asset is required the
asset’s recoverable amount is estimated. An asset’s
recoverable amount is the higher of the asset’s or
cash-generating unit’s value in use and its fair value
less costs of disposal,
individual asset, unless the asset does not generate
cash inflows that are largely independent of those
from other assets or groups of assets, in which case

and is determined for an

the recoverable amount is determined for the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

An impairment loss is recognised only if the carrying
amount of an asset exceeds its recoverable amount. In
assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows
are discounted to their present value using a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market assessments
of the time value of money and the risks specific to
the asset. An impairment loss is charged to the profit
or loss in the period in which it arises in those expense
categories consistent with the function of the impaired
asset.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)
An assessment is made at the end of each reporting
period as to whether there is an indication that
previously recognised impairment losses may no
longer exist or may have decreased. If such an
indication exists, the recoverable amount is estimated.
A previously recognised impairment loss of an asset
other than goodwill is reversed only if there has
been a change in the estimates used to determine
the recoverable amount of that asset, but not to an
amount higher than the carrying amount that would
have been determined (net of any depreciation/
amortisation) had no impairment loss been recognised
for the asset in prior years.

At the end of the reporting period, the Group reviews
the carrying amounts of its property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, intangible assets with
finite useful lives and contract costs to determine
whether there is any indication that these assets have
suffered an impairment loss. If any such indication
exists, the recoverable amount of the relevant asset
is estimated in order to determine the extent of
the impairment loss (if any). Intangible assets with
indefinite useful lives and intangible assets not yet
available for use are tested for impairment at least
annually, and whenever there is an indication that they
may be impaired.

The recoverable amount of property, plant and
equipment, right-of-use assets, and intangible assets
are estimated individually. When it is not possible
to estimate the recoverable amount individually, the
Group estimates the recoverable amount of the cash-
generating unit to which the asset belongs.

2.3

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F

TESTHBEBE (&)

FEMEERE (&)

AEBEREE RS ARG G EH G
NEEREETRBTINBEFERER
HUREE B N B FEX A EE &R -
WA I ERBR - Bl fEEt A=/
TR -LRRRBEE (BERIN) BHE
ROBEBERESERFETEEN R
Ol & 8B A A EHHIR BB T IABE - H
BENBENSBEL MR BEFELE
A EERRRERERM A EC EE
MR S8 (MR ERIITE ) -

REREMR NEBEHEYE W
FEREE EREEE EEARARE
RERZELEERANRAZEREAS
B UREESENRBRLEFEED
HIRREEER - HFEETAZFTR
AlghstEREEC MRS BEAEE
AEEE () IEE - BAERAE R
FHIZ BB E K AR AR BT
BEEVEBFRNEHRRAREHR
TR B ST TR (E R A o

ME BELEE EREEENRET
BE 2 I E & 58 R E B T ARG R © 1
AR ATRE B B f 5 AT W Bl & 58 - A&
e EREEMBRSELEMZ A
Wi o <5 B o

PELAREXEEZRERD A
2019 F3§

107



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Impairment of non-financial assets (continued)

In addition, the Group assesses whether there is
indication that corporate assets may be impaired.
If such indication exists, corporate assets are also
allocated to individual cash-generating units, when
a reasonable and consistent basis of allocation can
be identified, or otherwise they are allocated to the
smallest group of cash-generating units for which
a reasonable and consistent allocation basis can be
identified.

Related parties
A party is considered to be related to the Group if:

(@) the party is a person or a close member of that
person’s family and that person

(i) has control or joint control over the
Group;

(i) has significant influence over the Group;
or

(iii) is a member of the key management
personnel of the Group or of a parent of
the Group;

or

(b)  the party is an entity where any of the
following conditions applies:

(i) the entity and the Group are members
of the same group;

(i) one entity is an associate or joint venture
of the other entity (or of a parent,
subsidiary or fellow subsidiary of the
other entity);
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Related parties (continued)

(b) (continued)

(ii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

the entity and the Group are joint
ventures of the same third party;

one entity is a joint venture of a third
entity and the other entity is an associate
of the third entity;

the entity is a post-employment benefit
plan for the benefit of employees of
either the Group or an entity related to
the Group;

the entity is controlled or jointly
controlled by a person identified in (a);

a person identified in (a)(i) has significant
influence over the entity or is a member
of the key management personnel of the
entity (or of a parent of the entity); and

The entity, or any member of a group
of which it is a part, provides key
management personnel services to the
Group or to the Group's parent.

BARE TS (%)

(&
(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
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2.3
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
Property, plant and equipment, other than
construction in progress, are stated at cost less
accumulated depreciation and any impairment losses.
The cost of an item of property, plant and equipment
comprises its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of bringing the asset to its working
condition and location for its intended use.

Expenditure incurred after items of property, plant
and equipment have been put into operation, such as
repairs and maintenance, is normally charged to the
profit or loss in the period in which it is incurred. In
situations where the recognition criteria are satisfied,
the expenditure for a major inspection is capitalised
in the carrying amount of the asset as a replacement.
Where significant parts of property, plant and
equipment are required to be replaced at intervals, the
Group recognises such parts as individual assets with
specific useful lives and depreciates them accordingly.

Depreciation is calculated on the straight-line basis
to write off the cost of each item of property, plant
and equipment to its residual value over its estimated
useful life. The principal annual rates used for this
purpose are as follows:
Leasehold improvements, Over the shorter of the
furniture and fixtures lease terms or 33%
10%-25%

10%

Motor vehicles
Infrastructure

Where parts of an item of property, plant and
equipment have different useful lives, the cost of that
item is allocated on a reasonable basis among the
parts and each part is depreciated separately. Residual
values, useful lives and the depreciation method are
reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at least at each
financial year end.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Property, plant and equipment and depreciation
(continued)

An item of property, plant and equipment including
any significant part initially recognised is derecognised
upon disposal or when no future economic benefits
are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or
loss on disposal or retirement recognised in the profit
or loss in the year the asset is derecognised is the
difference between the net sales proceeds and the
carrying amount of the relevant asset.

Construction in progress represents buildings,
plant and machinery and other fixed assets under
construction, which is stated at cost less any
impairment losses, and is not depreciated. Cost
comprises the direct costs of construction and
capitalised borrowing cost on related borrowed funds
during the period of construction. Construction in
progress is reclassified to the appropriate category of
property, plant and equipment when completed and
ready for use.

Investment properties
Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation.

Investment properties are initially measured at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition, investment
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
or losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment property are included in profit or loss for
the period in which they arise.
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2.3

NE+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the asset (calculated as the
difference between the net disposal proceeds and the
carrying amount of the asset) is included in the profit
or loss in the period in which the item is derecognised.

Intangible assets (other than goodwill)

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on
initial recognition at cost. The cost of intangible assets
acquired in a business combination is the fair value at
the date of acquisition. The useful lives of intangible
assets are assessed to be either finite or indefinite.
Intangible assets with finite lives are subsequently
amortised over the useful economic life and assessed
for impairment whenever there is an indication that
the intangible asset may be impaired. The amortisation
period and the amortisation method for an intangible
asset with a finite useful life are reviewed at least at
each financial year end.

Trademarks

Trademarks with definite useful lives are stated at cost
less any impairment losses and are amortised on the
straight-line basis over their estimated useful lives of
10 to 30 years.

Trademarks with indefinite useful lives are not
amortised and is reviewed annually to determine
whether events and circumstances continue to support
the indefinite useful life assessment for that asset.

Contracts

Contracts are stated at cost less any impairment losses
and are amortised on the straight-line basis over 5
years.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2)

Definition of a lease

A contract is a contract contains, a lease if the
contract conveys the right to control the use of an
identified asset for a period of time in exchange for
consideration.

For contracts entered into or modified or arising
from business combinations on or after the date
of initial application, the Group assesses whether a
contract is or contains a lease based on the definition
under HKFRS 16 at inception, modification date or
acquisition date, as appropriate. Such contract will not
be reassessed unless the terms and conditions of the
contract are subsequently changed.

The Group as a lessee

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

For a contract that contains a lease component
and one or more additional lease or non-lease
components, the Group allocates the consideration in
the contract to each lease component on the basis of
the relative stand-alone price of the lease component
and the aggregate stand-alone price of the non-lease
components, including contract for acquisition of
ownership interests of a property which includes both
leasehold land and non-lease building components,
unless such allocation cannot be made reliably.

The Group also applies practical expedient not
to separate non-lease components from lease
component, and instead account for the lease
component and any associated non-lease components
as a single lease component.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

—F-hF+-A=+-A

2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in

accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Short-term leases and leases of low-value assets

The Group applies the short-term lease recognition
exemption to leases of properties that have a lease
term of 12 months or less from the commencement
date and do not contain a purchase option. It also
applies the recognition exemption for lease of low-
value assets. Lease payments on short-term leases and
leases of low-value assets are recognised as expense
on a straight— line basis or another systematic basis

over the lease term.

Right-of-use assets
The cost of right-of-use asset includes:

o the amount of the initial measurement of the
lease liability;

o any lease payments made at or before the
commencement date, less any lease incentives
received;

o any initial direct costs incurred by the Group;
and

o an estimate of costs to be incurred by the

Group in dismantling and removing the
underlying assets, restoring the site on which
it is located or restoring the underlying asset
to the condition required by the terms and
conditions of the lease, unless those costs are

incurred to produce inventories.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Right-of-use assets (continued)

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost, less any
accumulated depreciation and impairment losses, and
adjusted for any remeasurement of lease liabilities.

Right-of-use assets in which the Group is reasonably
certain to obtain ownership of the underlying leased
assets at the end of the lease term are depreciated
from commencement date to the end of the useful
life. Otherwise, right-of-use assets are depreciated on
a straight-line basis over the shorter of its estimated
useful life and the lease term.

The Group presents right-of-use assets as a separate
line item on the consolidated statement of financial
position.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits paid are accounted under
HKFRS 9 Financial Instruments (“HKFRS 9”) and
initially measured at fair value. Adjustments to fair
value at initial recognition are considered as additional
lease payments and included in the cost of right-of-use
assets.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities

At the commencement date of a lease, the Group
recognises and measures the lease liability at the
present value of lease payments that are unpaid at
that date. In calculating the present value of lease
payments, the Group uses the incremental borrowing
rate at the lease commencement date if the interest
rate implicit in the lease is not readily determinable.

Lease payments included in the measurement of the
lease liability comprise:

o fixed lease payments (including in-substance
fixed payments), less any lease incentives
receivable;

o variable lease payments that depend on an

index or rate, initially measured using the index
or rate at the commencement date;

o the amount expected to be payable by the
lessee under residual value guarantees;

o the exercise price of purchase options, if the
lessee is reasonably certain to exercise the
options; and

o payments of penalties for terminating the lease,

if the lease term reflects the exercise of an
option to terminate the lease.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)
The Group as a lessee (continued)

Lease liabilities (continued)

After the commencement date, lease liabilities are
adjusted by interest accretion and lease payments.

The Group remeasures lease liabilities (and makes a
corresponding adjustment to the related right-of-use
assets) whenever:

o the lease term has changed or there is a change
in the assessment of exercise of a purchase
option, in which case the related lease liability
is remeasured by discounting the revised lease
payments using a revised discount rate at the
date of reassessment.

o the lease payments change due to changes
in market rental rates following a market rent
review/expected payment under a guaranteed
residual value, in which cases the related lease
liability is remeasured by discounting the revised
lease payments using the initial discount rate.

The lease liability is presented as a separate line in the
consolidated statement of financial position.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—hF+ZA=+—H
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in

accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)

The Group as a lessee (continued)
Lease modifications

The Group accounts for a lease modification as a

separate lease if:

o the modification increases the scope of the
lease by adding the right to use one or more

underlying assets; and

o the consideration for the leases increases by
an amount commensurate with the stand-
alone price for the increase in scope and
any appropriate adjustments to that stand-
alone price to reflect the circumstances of the

particular contract.

For a lease modification that is not accounted for as a
separate lease, the Group remeasures the lease liability
based on the lease term of the modified lease by
discounting the revised lease payments using a revised
discount rate at the effective date of the modification.

The Group as a lessor

Leases for which the Group is a lessor are classified as
finance or operating leases. Whenever the terms of
the lease transfer substantially all the risks and rewards
of ownership to the lessee, the contract is classified
as a finance lease. All other leases are classified as

operating leases.

Amounts due from lessees under finance leases are
recognised as receivables at the commencement date
at amounts equal to the Group’s net investment in
the leases, measured using the interest rate implicit
in the respective lease. Initial direct costs (other than
those incurred by manufacturer or dealer lessors)
are included in the initial measurement of the net
investments in the leases. Interest income is allocated
to accounting periods so as to reflect a constant
periodic rate of return on the Group’s net investment

outstanding in respect of the leases.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Rental income from operating leases is recognised in
profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the term
of the relevant lease. Initial direct costs incurred in
negotiating and arranging an operating lease are
added to the carrying amount of the leased asset, and
such costs are recognised as an expense on a straight-
line basis over the lease term except for investment
properties measured under fair value model.

Interest and rental income which are derived from the
Group's ordinary course of business are presented as
revenue.

Allocation of consideration to components of a
contract

When a contract includes both lease and non-
lease components, the Group applies HKFRS 15 to
allocate the consideration under the contract to each
component. Non-lease components are separated
from lease component on the basis of their relative
stand-alone selling prices.

Refundable rental deposits

Refundable rental deposits received are accounted for
under HKFRS 9 and initially measured at fair value.
Adjustments to fair value at initial recognition are
considered as additional lease payments from lessees.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019
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2.3

NE+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Leases (upon application of HKFRS 16 in
accordance with transitions in note 2) (continued)
The Group as a lessor (continued)

Lease modification

The Group accounts for a modification to an operating
lease as a new lease from the effective date of the
modification, considering any prepaid or accrued lease
payments relating to the original lease as part of the
lease payments for the new lease.

Leases (prior to adoption of HKFRS 16 on 1
January 2019)

Leases where substantially all the rewards and risks
of ownership of assets remain with the lessor are
accounted for as operating leases. Where the Group is
the lessor, assets leased by the Group under operating
leases are included in non-current assets, and rentals
receivable under the operating leases are credited to
the profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the
lease terms. Where the Group is the lessee, rentals
payable under the operating leases are charged to the
profit or loss on the straight-line basis over the lease
terms.

Financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised
when the group entity becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument.

Recognised financial assets and financial liabilities
are initially measured at fair value except for trade
receivable arising from contracts with customers
which are initially measured in accordance with
HKFRS 15 since 1 January 2018. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue
of financial assets and financial liabilities are added
to or deducted from the fair value of the financial
assets or financial liabilities, as appropriate, on initial
recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to
the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities
at FVTPL are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at amortised cost:

° the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is to collect contractual
cash flows; and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

Financial assets that meet the following conditions are
subsequently measured at FVTOCI:

o the financial asset is held within a business
model whose objective is achieved by both
selling and collecting contractual cash flows;
and

o the contractual terms give rise on specified
dates to cash flows that are solely payments of
principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

All other financial assets are subsequently measured
at FVTPL, except that at the date of initial application/
initial recognition of a financial asset the Group may
irrevocably elect to present subsequent changes in
fair value of an equity investment in OCI if that equity
investment is neither held for trading nor contingent
consideration recognised by an acquirer in a business
combination to which HKFRS 3 Business Combinations
applies.
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2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets (continued)

Classification and measurement of financial assets at
amortised cost (continued)

A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

o it has been acquired principally for the purpose
of selling in the near term; or

o on initial recognition it is a part of a portfolio of
identified financial instruments that the Group
manages together and has a recent actual
pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

o it is a derivative that is not designated and
effective as a hedging instrument.

In addition, the Group may irrevocably designate a
financial asset that are required to be measured at
the amortised cost or FVTOCI as measured at FVTPL
if doing so eliminates or significantly reduces an
accounting mismatch.

Amortised cost and interest income

Interest income is recognised using the effective
interest method for financial assets measured
subsequently at amortised cost. Interest income is
calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset, except for
financial assets that have subsequently become credit-
impaired (see below). For financial assets that have
subsequently become credit-impaired, interest income
is recognised by applying the effective interest rate
to the amortised cost of the financial asset from the
next reporting period. If the credit risk on the credit-
impaired financial instrument improves so that the
financial asset is no longer credit-impaired, interest
income is recognised by applying the effective interest
rate to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset
from the beginning of the reporting period following
the determination that the asset is no longer credit
impaired.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Financial assets at FVTPL

Financial assets that do not meet the criteria for being
measured at amortised cost or FVTOCI or designated
as FVTOCI are measured at FVTPL.

Financial assets at FVTPL are measured at fair value at
the end of each reporting period, with any fair value
gains or losses recognised in profit or loss. The net
gain or loss recognised in profit or loss excludes any
dividend or interest earned on the financial asset and
is included in the “other revenue and other income”
line item.

Impairment of financial assets

The Group recognises a loss allowance for ECL on
financial assets which are subject to impairment
under HKFRS 9 (including trade and other receivables,
pledged bank deposit and cash and bank balances).
The amount of ECL is updated at each reporting
period to reflect changes in credit risk since initial
recognition.

Lifetime ECL represents the ECL that will result from
all possible default events over the expected life of the
relevant instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents
the portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result
from default events that are possible within 12 months
after the reporting period. Assessment are done
based on the Group's historical credit loss experience,
adjusted for factors that are specific to the debtors,
general economic conditions and an assessment of
both the current conditions at the reporting period as
well as the forecast of future conditions.

For all other instruments, the Group measures the
loss allowance equal to 12m ECL, unless when there
has been a significant increase in credit risk since
initial recognition, the Group recognises lifetime ECL.
The assessment of whether lifetime ECL should be
recognised is based on significant increases in the
likelihood or risk of a default occurring since initial
recognition.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk

In assessing whether the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition, the Group
compares the risk of a default occurring on the
financial instrument as at the reporting period with the
risk of a default occurring on the financial instrument
as at the date of initial recognition. In making this
assessment, the Group considers both quantitative
and qualitative information that is reasonable and
supportable, including historical experience and
forward-looking information that is available without
undue cost or effort.

In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly:

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the financial instrument’'s external (if
available) or internal credit rating;

o significant deterioration in external market
indicators of credit risk, e.g. a significant
increase in the credit spread, the credit default
swap prices for the debtor;

o existing or forecast adverse changes in business,
financial or economic conditions that are
expected to cause a significant decrease in the
debtor’s ability to meet its debt obligations;

o an actual or expected significant deterioration
in the operating results of the debtor;

o an actual or expected significant adverse
change in the regulatory, economic, or
technological environment of the debtor that
results in a significant decrease in the debtor’s
ability to meet its debt obligations.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Significant increase in credit risk (continued)
Irrespective of the outcome of the above assessment,
the Group presumes that the credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition when contractual
payments are more than 30 days past due, unless the
Group has reasonable and supportable information
that demonstrates otherwise.

The Group regularly monitors the effectiveness of
the criteria used to identify whether there has been a
significant increase in credit risk and revises them as
appropriate to ensure that the criteria are capable of
identifying significant increase in credit risk before the
amount becomes past due.

Definition of default

For internal credit risk management, the Group
considers an event of default occurs when information
developed internally or obtained from external sources
indicates that the debtor is unlikely to pay its creditors,
including the Group, in full.

Irrespective of the above, the Group considers
that default has occurred when a financial asset
is more than 90 days past due unless the Group
has reasonable and supportable information to
demonstrate that a more lagging default criterion is
more appropriate.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—NWF+ZA=+—H
2.3 SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)
Financial instruments (continued)
Credit-impaired financial assets

A financial asset is credit-impaired when one or more
events of default that have a detrimental impact on
the estimated future cash flows of that financial asset
have occurred. Evidence that a financial asset is credit-
impaired includes observable data about the following

events:

(a) significant financial difficulty of the issuer or the

borrower;

(b) a breach of contract, such as a default or past

due event;

(0 the lender(s) of the borrower, for economic or
contractual reasons relating to the borrower’s
financial difficulty, having granted to the
borrower a concession(s) that the lender(s)

would not otherwise consider;

(d) it is becoming probable that the borrower
will enter bankruptcy or other financial

reorganisation; or

(e) the disappearance of an active market for that
financial asset because of financial difficulties.

Write-off policy

The Group writes off a financial asset when there
is information indicating that the counterparty is
in severe financial difficulty and there is no realistic
prospect of recovery, for example, when the
counterparty has been placed under liquidation or
has entered into bankruptcy proceedings. Financial
assets written off may still be subject to enforcement
activities under the Group's recovery procedures,
taking into account legal advice where appropriate.
A write-off constitutes a derecognition event. Any
subsequent recoveries are recognised in profit or loss.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL

The measurement of ECL is a function of the
probability of default, loss given default (i.e. the
magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the
exposure at default. The assessment of the probability
of default and loss given default is based on historical
data adjusted by forward-looking information.
Estimation of ECL reflects an unbiased and probability-
weighted amount that is determined with the
respective risks of default occurring as the weights.

Generally, the ECL is the difference between all
contractual cash flows that are due to the Group
in accordance with the contract and the cash flows
that the Group expects to receive, discounted at the
effective interest rate determined at initial recognition.

Where ECL is measured on a collective basis or
cater for cases where evidence at the individual
instrument level may not yet be available, the financial
instruments are grouped on the following basis:

o Nature of financial instruments (i.e. the Group's
trade receivable, loan receivables and other
receivables) are each assessed as a separate
group. Loans to related parties are assessed for
ECL on an individual basis);

° Past-due status;
° Nature, size and industry of debtors; and
o External credit ratings where available.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial instruments (continued)

Measurement and recognition of ECL (continued)

The grouping is regularly reviewed by management
to ensure the constituents of each group continue to
share similar credit risk characteristics.

Interest income is calculated based on the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset unless the
financial asset is credit impaired, in which case interest
income is calculated based on amortised cost of the
financial asset.

The Group recognises an impairment gain or loss in
profit or loss for all financial instruments by adjusting
their carrying amount, with the exception of trade
receivables where the corresponding adjustment is
recognised through a loss allowance account.

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
Classification as financial liabilities or equity

Financial liabilities and equity instruments issued by a
group entity are classified as either financial liabilities
or as equity in accordance with the substance of the
contractual arrangements and the definitions of a
financial liability and an equity instrument.

Equity instruments

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences
a residual interest in the assets of an entity after
deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued
by the Company are recognised at the proceeds
received, net of direct issue costs.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Effective interest method

The effective interest method is a method of
calculating the amortised cost of a financial liability
and of allocating interest income and interest expense
over the relevant period. The effective interest rate
is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future
cash payments (including all fees and points paid or
received that form an integral part of the effective
interest rate, transaction costs and other premiums or
discounts) through the expected life of the financial
asset or financial liability, or, where appropriate, a
shorter period, to the net carrying amount on initial
recognition.

Interest expense is recognised on an effective interest
basis.

Financial liabilities
All financial liabilities are subsequently measured at
amortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial liabilities at amortised cost

Financial liabilities (including trade and other payables,
bills payables, lease liabilities and bank borrowings) are
subsequently measured at amortised cost, using the
effective interest method.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value at the
date when derivative contracts are entered into and
are subsequently remeasured to their fair value at the
end of the reporting period. The resulting gain or loss
is recognised in profit or loss.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

— =
=

2.3

NE+ZA=+—H

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Financial liabilities and equity instruments
(continued)

Derecognition

The Group derecognises a financial asset only when
the contractual rights to the cash flows from the asset
expire, or when it transfers the financial asset and
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of the asset to another entity. If the Group neither
transfers nor retains substantially all the risks and
rewards of ownership and continues to control the
transferred asset, the Group recognises its retained
interest in the asset and an associated liability for
amounts it may have to pay. If the Group retains
substantially all the risks and rewards of ownership
of a transferred financial asset, the Group continues
to recognise the financial asset and also recognises a
collateralised borrowing for the proceeds received.

On derecognition of a financial asset measured at
amortised cost, the difference between the asset’s
carrying amount and the sum of the consideration
received and receivable is recognised in profit or loss.

The Group derecognises financial liabilities when, and
only when, the Group’s obligations are discharged,
cancelled or have expired. The difference between the
carrying amount of the financial liability derecognised
and the consideration paid and payable is recognised
in the profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost is determined on the weighted
average basis and, in the case of work in progress
and finished goods, comprises direct materials, direct
labour, and an appropriate proportion of overheads.
Net realisable value is based on estimated selling prices
less any estimated costs to be incurred to completion
and disposal.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Properties for sale

Completed properties and properties under
development for sale are stated at the lower of cost
and net realisable value. Cost includes the cost of land,
development expenditure, borrowing costs capitalized
in accordance with the Group's accounting policy,
and other attributable expenses. Net realisable value
represents the estimated selling price for properties
for sale less all estimated costs of completion and
costs necessary to make the sale. Properties under
development for sales are transferred to completed
properties held for sales upon completion. Properties
under development for sales are transferred to
property, plant and equipment when there is a
change in use, evidenced by commencement of
owner-occupation which the carrying amount is
carried forward and transferred to property, plant and
equipment as the cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
cash flows, cash and cash equivalents comprise cash
on hand and demand deposits, and short term highly
liquid investments that are readily convertible into
known amounts of cash, are subject to an insignificant
risk of changes in value, and have a short maturity
of generally within three months when acquired,
less bank overdrafts which are repayable on demand
and form an integral part of the Group’s cash
management.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of
financial position, cash and cash equivalents comprise
cash on hand and at banks, including term deposits,
which are not restricted as to use.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Provisions

A provision is recognised when a present obligation
(legal or constructive) has arisen as a result of a past
event and it is probable that a future outflow of
resources will be required to settle the obligation,
provided that a reliable estimate can be made of the
amount of the obligation.

When the effect of discounting is material, the
amount recognised for a provision is the present
value at the end of the reporting period of the future
expenditures expected to be required to settle the
obligation. The increase in the discounted present
value amount arising from the passage of time is
included in finance costs in the profit or loss.

Income tax

Income tax comprises current and deferred tax.
Income tax relating to items recognised outside profit
or loss is recognised outside profit or loss, either in
other comprehensive income or directly in equity.

Current tax assets and liabilities for the current and
prior periods are measured at the amount expected
to be recovered from or paid to the taxation
authorities, based on tax rates (and tax laws) that
have been enacted or substantively enacted by the
end of the reporting period, taking into consideration
interpretations and practices prevailing in the countries
in which the Group operates.

Deferred tax is provided, using the liability method, on
all temporary differences at the end of the reporting
period between the tax bases of assets and liabilities
and their carrying amounts for financial reporting
purposes.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

Deferred tax liabilities are recognised for all taxable
temporary differences, except:

o when the deferred tax liability arises from
the initial recognition of goodwill or an
asset or liability in a transaction that is not a
business combination and, at the time of the
transaction, affects neither the accounting
profit nor taxable profit or loss; and

o in respect of taxable temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
when the timing of the reversal of the
temporary differences can be controlled and it
is probable that the temporary differences will
not reverse in the foreseeable future.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible
temporary differences, the carryforward of unused
tax credits and any unused tax losses. Deferred tax
assets are recognised to the extent that it is probable
that taxable profit will be available against which the
deductible temporary differences, the carryforward
of unused tax credits and unused tax losses can be
utilised, except:

o when the deferred tax asset relating to the
deductible temporary differences arises from
the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a
transaction that is not a business combination
and, at the time of the transaction, affects
neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit
or loss; and

o in respect of deductible temporary differences
associated with investments in subsidiaries,
deferred tax assets are only recognised to the
extent that it is probable that the temporary
differences will reverse in the foreseeable
future and taxable profit will be available
against which the temporary differences can be
utilised.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

2.3

—NE+=A=+—A

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Income tax (continued)

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed
at the end of each reporting period and reduced to
the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient
taxable profit will be available to allow all or part of
the deferred tax asset to be utilised. Unrecognised
deferred tax assets are reassessed at the end of each
reporting period and are recognised to the extent that
it has become probable that sufficient taxable profit
will be available to allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are measured at
the tax rates that are expected to apply to the period
when the asset is realised or the liability is settled,
based on tax rates (and tax laws) that have been
enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the
reporting period.

Deferred tax assets and deferred tax liabilities are
offset if a legally enforceable right exists to set off
current tax assets against current tax liabilities and the
deferred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and
the same taxation authority.

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax for leasing
transactions in which the Group recognises the right-
of-use assets and the related lease liabilities, the
Group first determines whether the tax deductions
are attributable to the right-of-use assets or the lease
liabilities.

For leasing transactions in which the tax deductions
are attributable to the lease liabilities, the Group
applies HKAS 12 Income Taxes requirements to right-
of-use assets and lease liabilities separately. Temporary
differences relating to right-of-use assets and lease
liabilities are not recognised at initial recognition and
over the lease terms due to application of the initial
recognition exemption.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited

Annual Report 2019

2.3

g%-l-ﬁk mg (nﬁ)

Fri&®t (&)

EEFIREE ZRE AN S RS S
Rt WHIRETBA LR BMER
Bom M IAZ A 2 B BRI BT RIRE &
ZIKF o RIERZIBELETHAHEETINE
WEHREM AN A BEH B HERT
i A LA YR B 2 B8 Sk AR 0 IR AR IR B EE
PR - FIARERR -

BEMIBEERBEDBERSEHRS
B EREITZME (RBUE) 1RE
HEAREEZRNBEEERE 2E
A =THE -

3R A AIEORATTHER] - BFAVAIT IR
BERKFENHHAEAG  MZETHEA

ﬁ&ﬂ MBERNE—HHHEE A
EREFIREEMELERBRER TAK
BH °

A EREERACAEEERBBAM
EEENHEERSNELEHEMS K
SEELEEMENRESHERER
EEESNHEARE-

RHREMRREARNEERECHER
SME AEBBEBSFERIFEI125
[FrEE ] MED RIEMINMEREEER
HERB ARERNTHRHE A
AERAREENEERB ERIEER
W ARR I HER I R AR -



2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Government grants

Government grants are recognised at their fair value
where there is reasonable assurance that the grant
will be received and all attaching conditions will be
complied with. When the grant relates to an expense
item, it is recognised as income on a systematic basis
over the periods that the costs, which it is intended to
compensate, are expensed. Where the grant relates to
an asset, the fair value is credited to a deferred income
account and is released to the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income over
the expected useful life of the relevant asset by equal
annual instalments.

Revenue recognition

Revenue from contracts with customers

Revenue is recognised when or as the control of
the good or service is transferred to the customer.
Depending on the terms of the contract and the laws
that apply to the contract, control of the good or
service may be transferred over time or at a point in
time.

Control of the good or service is transferred over time
if the Group’s performance:

o provides all of the benefits received and
consumed simultaneously by the customer;

° creates or enhances an asset that the customer
controls as the Group performs; or

o does not create an asset with an alternative use
to the Group and the Group has an enforceable
right to payment for performance completed to
date.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Revenue recognition (continued)

Revenue from contracts with customers (continued)

If control of the goods or services transfers over time,
revenue is recognised over the period of the contract
by reference to the progress towards complete
satisfaction of that performance obligation. Otherwise,
revenue is recognised at a point in time when the
customer obtains control of the goods or service.

Revenue from the sale of wine and liquor, trading of
food products and mineral products are recognised
at the point in time when control of the asset is
transferred to the customer, generally on delivery of
the products.

Rental income from properties leasing under operating
leases is recognised on a straight-line basis over the
lease terms.

A contract liability is recognised when the
consideration is received from customers before the
goods are delivered. A receivable is recognised when
the goods are delivered and accepted as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional
because only the passage of time is required before
the payment is due.

Interest income

Interest income from a financial asset is recognized
when it is probable that the economic benefits will
flow to the Group and the amount of income can be
measured reliably. Interest come is accrued on a time
basis, by reference to the principal outstanding and
at the effective interest rate applicable, which is the
rate that exactly discounts the estimated future cash
receipts through the expected life of the financial
asset to that asset’s net carrying amount on initial
recognition.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments

The Company operates share option schemes for
the purpose of providing incentives and rewards to
eligible participants who contribute to the success of
the operations of the Group. Employees (including
directors) of the Group receive remuneration in the
form of share-based payments, whereby employees
render services as consideration for equity instruments
("equity-settled transactions”).

The cost of equity-settled transactions is recognised,
together with a corresponding increase in equity,
over the period in which the performance and/or
service conditions are fulfilled. The cumulative expense
recognised for equity-settled transactions at the end
of each reporting period until the vesting date reflects
the extent to which the vesting period has expired and
the Group’s best estimate of the number of equity
instruments that will ultimately vest. The charge or
credit to the profit or loss for a period represents the
movement in the cumulative expense recognised as at
the beginning and end of that period.

No expense is recognised for awards that do not
ultimately vest, except for equity-settled transactions
where vesting is conditional upon a market or non-
vesting condition, which are treated as vesting
irrespective of whether or not the market or non-
vesting condition is satisfied, provided that all other
performance and/or service conditions are satisfied.

Where the terms of an equity-settled award are
modified, as a minimum an expense is recognised as
if the terms had not been modified, if the original
terms of the award are met. In addition, an expense
is recognised for any modification that increases the
total fair value of the share-based payments, or is
otherwise beneficial to the employee as measured at
the date of modification.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Share-based payments (continued)

Where an equity-settled award is cancelled,
treated as if it had vested on the date of cancellation,
and any expense not yet recognised for the award
is recognised immediately. This includes any award
where non-vesting conditions within the control
of either the Group or the employee are not met.
if a new award is substituted for the

it is

However,
cancelled award, and is designated as a replacement
award on the date that it is granted, the cancelled and
new awards are treated as if they were a modification
of the original award, as described in the previous
paragraph.

The dilutive effect of outstanding options is reflected
as additional share dilution in the computation of
earnings per share.

Other employee benefits

Pension schemes

The Group operates a defined contribution Mandatory
Provident Fund retirement benefit scheme (the
“MPF Scheme”) under the Mandatory Provident
Fund Schemes Ordinance for those employees
who are eligible to participate in the MPF Scheme.
Contributions are made based on a percentage of the
employees’ basic salaries and are charged to the profit
or loss as they become payable in accordance with
the rules of the MPF Scheme. The assets of the MPF
Scheme are held separately from those of the Group
in an independently administered fund. The Group’s
employer contributions vest fully with the employees
when contributed into the MPF Scheme.

The employees of the Group’s subsidiaries which
operate in Mainland China are required to participate
in a central pension scheme operated by the local
municipal government. These subsidiaries are required
to contribute a percentage of its payroll costs to
the central pension scheme. The contributions are
charged to the profit or loss as they become payable
in accordance with the rules of the central pension
scheme.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Borrowing costs

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition,
construction of qualifying assets, i.e., assets that
necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are capitalised
as part of the cost of those assets. The capitalisation
of such borrowing costs ceases when the assets
are substantially ready for their intended use or
sale. Investment income earned on the temporary
investment of specific borrowings pending their
expenditure on qualifying assets is deducted from the
borrowing costs capitalised. All other borrowing costs
are expensed in the period in which they are incurred.
Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that
an entity incurs in connection with the borrowing of
funds.

Foreign currencies

These financial statements are presented in Hong
Kong dollars, which is the Company’s functional
and presentation currency. Each entity in the Group
determines its own functional currency and items
included in the financial statements of each entity
are measured using that functional currency. Foreign
currency transactions recorded by the entities in the
Group are initially recorded using their respective
functional currency rates prevailing at the dates
of the transactions. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translated at
the functional currency rates of exchange ruling at
the end of the reporting period. Differences arising
on settlement or transaction of monetary items are
recognised in the profit or loss.
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Foreign currencies (continued)

Non-monetary items that are measured in terms of
historical cost in a foreign currency are translated
using the exchange rates at the dates of the initial
transactions. Non-monetary items measured at fair
value in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the date when the fair value was
determined. The gain or loss arising on translation of a
non-monetary item measured at fair value is treated in
line with the recognition of the gain or loss on change
in fair value of the item (i.e., translation differences on
the item whose fair value gain or loss is recognised in
other comprehensive income or profit or loss is also
recognised in other comprehensive income or profit or
loss, respectively).

The functional currency of subsidiaries in Mainland
China is Renminbi (“RMB”). As at the end of the
reporting period, the assets and liabilities of these
entities are translated into the presentation currency
of the Company at the exchange rates prevailing
at the end of the reporting period and their profit
or loss are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the
weighted average exchange rates for the year. The
resulting exchange differences are recognised in
other comprehensive income and accumulated in the
exchange fluctuation reserve. On disposal of a foreign
operation, the component of other comprehensive
income relating to that particular foreign operation is
recognised in the profit or loss.

Any goodwill arising on the acquisition of a foreign
operation and any fair value adjustments to the
carrying amounts of assets and liabilities arising on
acquisition are treated as assets and liabilities of the
foreign operation and translated at the closing rate.

For the purpose of the consolidated statement of cash
flows, the cash flows of subsidiaries in Mainland China
are translated into Hong Kong dollars at the exchange
rates ruling at the dates of the cash flows. Frequently
recurring cash flows of overseas subsidiaries which
arise throughout the year are translated into Hong
Kong dollars at the weighted average exchange rates
for the year.
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2.3

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Construction contracts

Construction contracts are contracts specifically
negotiated with a customer for the construction of an
asset or a group of assets, where the customer is able
to specify the major structural elements of the design.

When the outcome of a construction contract can be
estimated reliably, contract costs are recognised as an
expense by reference to the stage of completion of the
contract at the end of the reporting period. When it
is probable that total contract costs will exceed total
contract revenue, the expected loss is recognised as
an expense immediately. When the outcome of a
construction contract cannot be estimated reliably,
contract costs are recognised as an expense in the
period in which they are incurred.

Construction contracts in progress at the end of the
reporting period are recorded at the net amount of
costs incurred plus recognised profit less recognised
losses and progress billings, and are presented in
the statement of financial position as the “Amounts
due from contract customers” (as an asset) or the
“Amounts due to contract customers” (as a liability),
as applicable.

Investment properties

Investment properties are properties held to earn
rentals and/or for capital appreciation (including
property under construction for such purposes).

Investment properties are measured initially at cost,
including any directly attributable expenditure.
Subsequent to initial recognition,
properties are measured at their fair values. All of the
Group's property interests held under operating leases
to earn rentals or for capital appreciation purposes are
classified and accounted for as investment properties
and are measured using the fair value model. Gains
and losses arising from changes in the fair value of
investment properties are included in profit or loss in
the period in which they arise.

investment
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (continued)

Investment properties (continued)

Construction costs incurred for investment properties
under construction are capitalized as part of the
carrying amount of the investment properties under
construction.

An investment property is derecognised upon disposal
or when the investment property is permanently
withdrawn from use and no future economic benefits
are expected from its disposals. Any gain or loss
arising on derecognition of the property (calculated
as the difference between the net disposal proceeds
and the carrying amount of the asset) is included in
profit or loss in the period in which the property is
derecognised.

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES

The preparation of the Group's financial statements
requires management to make judgements, estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts
of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities, and
their accompanying disclosures, and the disclosure
of contingent liabilities. Uncertainty about these
assumptions and estimates could result in outcomes
that could require a material adjustment to the
carrying amounts of the assets or liabilities affected in
the future.

Estimation uncertainty

The key assumptions concerning the future and other
key sources of estimation uncertainty at the end of the
reporting period, that have a significant risk of causing
a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of
assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are
described below.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Estimation of expected credit losses of trade, loan and
other receivables

The loss allowances for financial assets are based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss
rates. The Group uses judgement at amortised cost in
making these assumptions and selecting the inputs to
the impairment calculation, based on the Group’s past
history, existing market conditions as well as forward-
looking estimates at the end of each reporting period.
Details of the key assumptions and inputs used are
disclosed in note 42.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group determines the estimated useful lives and
related depreciation charges for its property, plant and
equipment. This estimate is based on the historical
experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions.
Management will revise the depreciation charge where
useful lives are different to previously estimated, or will
write off or write down technically obsolete or non-
strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold.

Useful lives of other intangible assets

The Group determines the estimated useful lives
and related amortisation charges for its intangible
assets other than goodwill. This estimate is based on
the expected pattern of consumption of the future
economic benefits embodied in the asset or the
contractual or other legal rights associated with the
assets. The Group will revise the amortisation period
and the amortisation method for an intangible asset
where the useful life is different to that previously
estimated.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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—Z-NFEt=A=+—A

3. SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)
Estimation uncertainty (continued)
Provision for inventories

Provision for inventories is made based on the
assessment of net realisable value. Estimates of net
realisable value are based on the latest invoice prices
and current market conditions. Where the actual
outcome or expectation in future is different from
the original estimates, such differences will have an
impact on the carrying amounts of inventories and the
amount of provision/reversal of provision in the periods

in which such estimates have been changed.

Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments that are
not traded in an active market is determined by
using appropriate valuation techniques and making
assumptions that are based on market condition’s
existing at each reporting date. Refer to note 42 for
the fair value measurement of financial instruments.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Estimation uncertainty (continued)

Deferred taxation on investment properties

For the purposes of measuring deferred tax
liabilities arising from investment properties that
are measured using the fair value model, the
directors of the Company have determined that
all of the Group’s investment properties as at 31
December 2019 amounting to HK$395,602,000
(2018: HK$398,065,000) situated in the PRC are
held under a business model whose objective is to
consume substantially all of the economic benefits
embodied in the investment properties over time,
rather than through sale. The presumption that the
carrying amounts of certain of the Group's investment
properties situated in the PRC are recovered entirely
through sale has been rebutted and the deferred
tax on the changes in fair value of these investment
properties is recognised according to the relevant tax
rules.

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment

Right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
are stated at costs less accumulated depreciation
and impairment, if any. In determining whether an
asset is impaired, the Group has to exercise judgment
and make estimation, particularly in assessing: (1)
whether an event has occurred or any indicators that
may affect the asset value; (2) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable
amount, in the case of value in use, the net present
value of future cash flows which are estimated
based upon the continued use of the asset; and (3)
the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in
estimating the recoverable amounts including cash
flow projections and an appropriate discount rate.
Changing the assumptions and estimates, including
the discount rates or the growth rate in the cash flow
projections, could materially affect the net present
value used in the impairment test.
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SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES
(continued)

Impairment of right-of-use assets and property,
plant and equipment (continued)

As at 31 December 2019, the carrying amounts of
right-of-use assets and property, plant and equipment
amounted to HK$748,469,000 and HK$75,010,000,
respectively. The impairment losses on right-of-use
assets and property, plant and equipment are nil and
HK$35,341,000, respectively, during the year ended
31 December 2019. Details of the right-of-use assets
and property, plant and equipment are disclosed in
Notes 14 and 16.

Impairment of other intangible assets and
goodwill

The Group determines whether other intangible assets
and goodwill are impaired at least on an annual
basis. This requires an estimation of the value in use
of the cash-generating units to which the goodwill
is allocated. Estimating the value in use requires
the Group to make an estimate of the expected
future cash flows from the cash-generating units
and also to choose a suitable discount rate in order
to calculate the present value of those cash flows.
The carrying amount of other intangible assets and
goodwill at 31 December 2019 was HK$62,990,000
and HK$34,646,000,respectively. Further details are
disclosed in Notes 20 and 21.

Determining the Lease Term

As explained in note 2, the lease liability is initially
recognised at the present value of the lease payments
payable over the lease term. In determining the lease
term at the commencement date for leases that
include renewal options exercisable by the Group,
the Group evaluates the likelihood of exercising the
renewal options taking into account all relevant facts
and circumstances that create an economic incentive
for the Group to exercise the option, including
favourable terms, leasehold improvements undertaken
and the importance of that underlying assets to the
Group's operation. The lease term is reassessed when
there is a significant event or significant change in
circumstance that is within the Group’s control. Any
increase or decrease in the lease term would affect
the amount of lease liabilities and right-of-use assets
recognised in future years.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION

For management purposes, the Group is organised
into business units based on their products and
services and has six reportable operating segments as
follows:

(@) the wine and liquor segment is engaged in the
sale and distribution of wine and liquor;

(b)  the trading of food products segment is
engaged in wholesaling and retailing of staple
food, cooking oil, alcohol and beverage, frozen
and fresh food, commodity hog;

(c) the construction and development segment is
engaged in construction and land development;

(d)  the rental segment is engaged in the leasing
of logistic facilities in Hong Kong and office
facilities in the PRC;

(e) the financial leasing segment is engaged in the
provision of financial leasing services; and

(f) the mineral products segment is engaged in the
flotation selection of non-ferrous metals mines
and sales of mineral products.

The management monitors the results of the Group's
operating segments separately for the purpose of
making decisions about resources allocation and
performance assessment. Segment performance
is evaluated based on reportable segment results.
Segment results are measured consistently with the
Group's profit before tax except that interest income,
finance costs as well as head office and corporate
expenses are excluded from such measurement.

Segment assets exclude pledged deposits, cash and
cash equivalents and other unallocated head office
and corporate assets as these assets are managed on a
group basis.

Segment liabilities exclude bank and other borrowings,
amounts due to related parties and other unallocated
head office and corporate liabilities as these liabilities
are managed on a group basis.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M AT

31 December 2019

plant and equipment, investment properties and
assets arised from acquisition of subsidiaries.
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—hF+ZA=+—H
OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. R *Eé;lcl- ( ,,\§>
Trading  Construction
Wine and of food and Financial Mineral
liquor products  development Rental leasing products  Unallocated Total
BRR
EE EERM K HE HEng WE KR @zt
HKSO00  HKS000  HKS000  HKS000  HKS'000  HKS000  HKS'000  HK$'000
TET TR TET TERL THT TERL ThR a7
Year ended 31 December 2019 ~ HE-ZF-h%
tZR=t-BLER
Segment revenue: AREA:
Sales to external customers HETHREP 4,878 388,180 - 238,550 9,559 138,138 - 779,305
Revenue from contracts with EFEHBA
customers ‘
Timing of revenue recognition W AREE
Atz point n time BHE 4878 388,180 = = = 138,138 - 531,19
Revenue from other sources Rk - - - 238,550 9,559 - - 248,109
Other gains or (losses) Hrtilliad (518) 298 1,734 - 24,614 89 809 - 27,544
Other operating expenses HpER% (983) (15,136) (15) (13,172) (87,108) (6,687) - (123,101)
4193 374,778 (15) 249,992 (77,460) 132,260 - 683,748
Segment results AEXE (3,580) (12,804) (15) (39.478) (85,894) 8,378 - (133,393)
Reconciliation: & 55
Interest income gk 4116
Unallocated other operating income %5 EEH s RASER
or loss 8,667
Corporate and other unallocated PEREBRARAZ
expenses o (112,687)
Finance costs BEKA (111,086)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LERBARZ K !
Loss before taxation BHAESE (341,893)
Taxation ] 984
Loss for the Year FEFE (340,909)
Segment assets ﬁﬁﬁg 137,519 341,553 236,305 1,185,513 408,618 225,893 - 2,535,401
Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment receivables ;ﬁﬁ’ﬁ@ fEN; (793,717)
Corporate and other unallocated assets ¢¥&ﬂﬂi%@ﬂ§§ 1,270,971
Total assets AEEE 3,012,655
Segment liabilities 48,884 307,528 56,704 944,702 172,622 80,448 - 1,610,888
Reconciliation:
Elimination of intersegment payables (793,717)
Corporate and other unallocated
liabilities 966,228
Total liabilities BEGE 1,783,399
Other segment information HgpBER
Share of loss of associates MEBENAER - - - - - - (334) (334)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries LENER R hE = - - - - - 2,490 2,49
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ FLEEME ZFHBER L
recognised on trade receivables EREERERE - (14,358) - (1,276) - (4,046) - (19,680)
Allowance for expected credit SEMENARER Y
losses recognised on other BEHEERERE
receivables (983) (778) (15) (32) (67,498) (2,641) (66,754) (138,701)
Allowance for expected credit RENETER 2
losses recognised on loan receivables CEERE - - - - (19,610) - - (19,610)
Impairment loss on goodwil .Tﬁ - - - (11,864) - - - (11,864)
Impairment loss on intangible assets AEE - - - - - - (42,370) (42,370)
Impairment loss on property, plant q
and equipment . - - - - - - (35,341) (35,341)
Depreciation and amortisation RERES (1,765) (1,726) (64) (155,187) (393) (2,826) (210) (162,171)
Interests in associates RBERA 2R - - - - - - 278,734 278,734
Capital expenditure* BRGT* - - 11,697 2,434 108 677 - 14,916
Fair value loss on financial assets BRERRLAGEIRL
at fair value through profit or loss £ REE ANERR - - - - - - 7,055 7,055
Loss on disposal of a investment LERENZER
property . - - - (120) - - - (120)
Fair value gain on investment properties 1% & ¥1% 2 22 /o R3S - - - 6,152 - - 6,152
& Capital expenditure consists of additions of property, * BABYBAELREYE HERS

B REMERKBHBAREEZ
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4. RESEER (8)
Trading ~ Construction
Wine and of food and Financial Mineral
liquor products deve%rg;gﬁt Rental leasing products  Unallocated Total
R EERD ik BE HERE BE AR @
HKS000  HKSO00  HKS000  HK$000  HKS000  HKFO00  HKS000  HKS'000
THEL T TEL BT TEL BT FEL T
Year ended 31 December 2018 BHE-_Z-\5{1=R
“+-BILEE
Segment revenue: AERA:
Sales to external customers HEFHRER 8,326 772,713 - 249,967 36,561 199,573 - 1,267,140
Revenue from contracts with BEFEHBA
customers
Timing of revenue recognition Hﬁ()\ﬁ@m B
At a point in time FRE 8,326 772,713 - - - 199,573 - 980,612
Revenue from other sources H‘rM/ﬁ WA - - - 249,967 36,561 - - 286,528
Other revenue 00N 1,204 458 - 20,876 106 778 - 23422
9,530 173171 - 270,843 36,667 200,351 - 1,290,562
Segment results AEEE 1,766 22,187 - 108,003 36,667 24,726 - 193,349
Reconcilation: %
Interest income MERA 321
Unallocated other operating income & % it & A48 &\ 4,600
Corporate and other unallocated LERABRARFR
expenses o (143,597)
Finance costs BEKA (51,59)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR RS 9,547
Profit before taxation B HATEH 12,628
Taxation i (851)
Profit for the Year FEERN 1,777
Segment assets FEEE 85,059 368,531 196,578 462,410 399,971 196,624 - 1,709173
Reconcillation: 5k
Elimination of intersegment receivables %187 %8 fE Yr 78 (116,257)
Corporate and other unallocated assets £ R EBA DB EE 955,053
Total assets BEEE 2,547,969
Segment liabilities FEEE 33,073 251,095 24,241 121,214 138,070 33,706 - 601,399
Reconcilation: &
Elimination of intersegment payables ¥/ iﬁ Eﬁst 58 (116,257)
Corporate and other unallocated TPEREGRAEE
liabilities 550,838
Total liabilities EaE 1,035,980
Other segment information AAREN
Share of oss of associates DEBENARE - - - - - - (2,084) (2,084)
Gain on disposal of subsidiaries HENBAR NS - - - - - - 9,547 9,547
Reversal of allowance for expected B 5EME BEAHR L
credit losses recognised on trade BREERERE
receivables N (4) 3) - (39) - 824 - 778
Allowance for expected credit REMEUTERER BH
losses recognised on other EERERE
receivables N ) » (209) 143 - (36) 879 - (3,561) (2,784)
Allowance for expected credit ENERED  REE
losses recognised on loan receivables _ EiEEE - - - - (2,418) - - 2,418)
Depreciation and amortisation Tﬁ%&fﬁiﬁ . (166) (260) (192) (23,967) (386) (2,955) (1,014) (28,940)
Interests in associates iNACIPA - - - - - 286,450 286,450
Capital expenditure* BARY - 103 32,833 1,881 - 582 348 35,747
Unrealised fair value loss on financial -~ EBE & L2 2@
assets at fair value through SREEIRER
profit or loss ’&ﬁﬁ@i% - - - - - - (8,401) (8,401)
Fair value gain on investment properties % & %1% 2 A /o U2 - - - 7,083 - - = 7,088
* Capital expenditure consists of additions to property, * BABEYTBERNEVE HERKSD

plant and equipment, investment properties and
assets arised from acquisition of subsidiaries.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

—
—=

F-NEF+ZA=+—H
4.

OPERATING SEGMENT INFORMATION (continued) 4., RBELEEE (HF)
Geographical information i & & #
Over 90% of the Group's customers are located in REEWN% A F 7B B R -
Mainland China and revenue of the Group is mainly REFBWATFEREREANH 7KL
derived from operations in Mainland China. The o EBERAIEMRISDEE KA
management considers that it is impracticable to BB EE T NA 4T o
allocate the assets, revenue and segment results to
geographical locations.
Information about a major customer FTEEEER
During the Year, there has one external customer FR —ZHBERLOBEABANINA
related to trading of food products segment ZFEF U A49143,438,000 7T 0 14
that contributed revenue of approximately AREBBIMAI0%A F(—F— N\4F:
HK$143,438,000 that accounted for more than 10% ) o
of the Group's total revenue (2018: nil).
REVENUE 5. WA
The Group's revenue represents by wine and liquor, REBF WA BRE B8 m HE -
trading of food products, rental, financial leasing mMEEELRBEE-BRIEERMERE
and mineral products. Except for rental and finance N IRIE BB B RE R L1155
leasing, all contracts are for period of one year or less, AR R E RAEAYN T E8A
as permitted by practical expedient under HKFRS 15, —FEH AN DR EZERBYHEDN Y
the transaction price allocated to these unsatisfied REEBRTFUBE -ABEWEER Y
contracts is not disclosed. Please refer to note 2 for 15 BB N2 -
details of revenue recognition.
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with EESHKRARFD
customers
An analysis of revenue by types of goods and services BEREREERS T WALT :
as follows:
2019 2018
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FTHET FET
Revenue from contracts with BEFEHWA
Customers
Wine and liquor Nt 4,878 8,326
Trading of food products BEERMm 388,180 772,713
Mineral products BE 138,138 199,573
Total revenue recognised JA By P B B R 2 4B A
at point in time 531,196 980,612
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

REVENUE (continued)
Disaggregation of revenue from contracts with
customers (continued)

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R
WA (#8)
BEEEHWARD (&)

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FETT

Revenue from other sources H 4 3R KA
Rental e 238,550 249,967
Financial leasing mEHEE 9,559 36,561
779,305 1,267,140

Time of revenue recognition U A T 7R B ]
At a point in time NI E 531,196 980,612
Over time B& b5 - -
531,196 980,612

Geographic market: i 5

The PRC s 718,059 1,196,778
Hong Kong BB 61,246 70,362

OTHER INCOME, GAINS OR LOSSES
An analysis of other income, gains or losses is as
follows:

779,305 1,267,140

Hipg A - =R EE
Hp WA s BBz T

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Other income, gains or (losses) HaA - Wamsk (EE)
Compensation income EEWA 18,582 15,109
Interest income FMEHBA 4,116 321
Government grant X 48 BN 176 35
Fair value gain on investment REMEZ R RBERE
properties 6,152 7,088
Fair value gain on financial assets BiRBmIEANLEYERZ
at fair value through profit or loss CRMEEZANBERS 7,055 -
Loss on disposal of a investment HEREMEZEE
property (120) -
Others Hity 4,366 10,214
40,327 32,767

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

—=
—=

7.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019

E—-NF+=A=+—H
(LOSS)/PROFIT BEFORE TAXATION 7. BBiE (EE) OBR
The Group’s (loss)/profit before taxation is arrived at REEZBERT (EBB) S f&dE
after charging/(crediting): (5t X)) T &I\EBAFEEY
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Cost of inventories recognised as ERAMIZ 2 FEKA
an expenses 490,187 980,157
Depreciation of property, M- BB MEETE
plant and equipment 18,509 18,070
Depreciation of right-of-use assets CRAEEERE 132,904 -
Amortisation of other intangible assets E fib 4 72 & &= # 64 10,758 10,870
Expenses related to short term lease ~ HEHHEEREKEEEEEBN
and low value assets Fx 16,711 -
Minimum lease payments under T REFLEMEER T 2&E
operating leases in respect of EEANEN
land and buildings - 167,053
Gross rental income from REYMHE 2 HEWRAETE
investment properties (238,550) (249,967)
Less: Direct operating expenses B FRNEEHERAZ
from investment properties KREMEZBEELERX
that generated rental income
during the year 171,396 162,839
(67,154) (87,128)
Auditors’ remuneration % S AN & 1,250 1,250
Employee benefit expense BERMAX (BREESEHE) -
(including directors’ emoluments):
Wages and salaries IERF=® 14,211 20,728
Share-based payments LARR 9 2 A R IB - 1,063
Pension scheme contributions RIS FT B 1,023 1,064
Other expenses/(income): HibF% (JA) -
Fair value (gain)/loss on financial assets #i@EZIE A LEDIEE 2
at fair value through profit or loss TREEZANE
(Wz) B8 (7,055) 8,401
Allowance/(reversal of allowance) for  FLIEWE ZERERIER 2
expected credit losses recognised on  TEHA{E B E1ERE
trade receivables (BE#MD) 19,680 (778)
Allowance for expected credit losses ~ FLIEWE IR Z
recognised on loan receivables TEHIEEEIEEE 19,610 2,418
Allowance for expected credit losses i E b fE I FRIB FE R
recognised on other receivables EHEEEBRE 138,701 2,784
Impairment loss on goodwill* B REEE 11,864 -
Impairment loss on intangible assets* % 72 & 2 5l (B E5 18 * 42,370 -
Impairment loss on property, Y% BB MR EREEE
plant, and equipment* 35,341 -
& [tems included in other operating expenses * FHHEAEMKEHE S



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

FINANCE COSTS 8. HWEMRSK
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Interest on bank and other RITRHEMEREZFE
borrowings
— wholly repayable within five years —BRAFARHBEER 44,633 25,574
Interest expense on lease liabilities HMEARZMERX 54,930 -
Effective interest expenses on MR ES 2 ERFERX
convertible bonds 11,523 26,018
111,086 51,592
DIRECTORS’' REMUNERATION 0. %%%ﬁ-@ﬂ
Details of the director’'s remuneration of the Company FRNARARNREENTMFE BIELT
for the year, disclosed pursuant to Listing Rules and HA R BEBANTHEDEISIEEW T :
Section 383 of the Hong Kong Companies Ordinance
are as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET
Fees e 816 743
Other emoluments: Hie -
Salaries, allowances and Fre RAELREDHR
benefits in kind 2,661 4,080
Equity-settled share option expense MRS E B ARER - 74
Pension scheme contributions RIREETEIHR 48 55
2,709 4,209
3,525 4,952
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

— T
—=

- nE+=A=+—F
9.

DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued) 0. BEEHM(E)
Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits  share option scheme Total
Fees in kind expense (Note) contributions  remuneration
RELE
Fe o RMR  BRERX Bihe
He BNFE (MzE) HE R8T Egbeb
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
M TER TER TER TET FET
2019 “E-NF
Executive directors HiTES
Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman) FEBEE(XR) (i) 150 - - - 150
Mr. Gu Chunyang (Vice Chairman) ~ A&B &4
(BIxFR) ®) 68 - - - 68
Mr. JIANG Jianjun IRERE (i) - 2,245 - 12 2,257
Mr. KE Xionghan B EE - 416 - 36 452
Mr. Huang Wuguang ERARE () 240 - - = 240
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong BRELE (ii) 8 = = = 8
466 2,661 - 48 3,175
Non-executive directors FUTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan k&t 100 - - - 100
Mr. Wang Jianguo TRELE (vi) - - - - -
Ms. Zhang Yujie NEALZL () - - - = -
100 - - - 100
Independent non-executive directors B FFH{TEE
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRERAE (i 150 - - - 150
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEXLE (ix) 50 - - - 50
Mr. Zhang Xianming REFLE (xi) = = = = =
Mr. Ho Man Fai AXBEE 50 - - - 50
250 - - - 250
816 2,661 - 48 3,525
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—E-nEFE+=ZA=+—H

9. EEHM (&)

Salaries,
allowances  Equity-settled Pension
and benefits share option scheme Total
Fees inkind  expense (Note) ~ contributions ~ remuneration
RiEsE
Fe Rk BRERX BiRe
ne ENHla (BizE) A FMEE
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
lipd FER FER TER FER FET
2018 —E-N\F
Executive directors BIES
Mr. Li Jiehong (Chairman) THEBELE (ER) (i) 9 - - - 9
Mr. Gu Chunyang (Vice Chairman) ~ A&E5E4E
(BIZFR) ) 9 - - : ’
Mr. JIANG Jianjun TRERLE (i) - 3,600 5 18 3,623
Mr. KE Xionghan MRS - 480 54 37 571
Mr. Huang Wuguang HRAKE (v) 240 - - - 240
Mr. Zeng Fanxiong SRIERE (i 100 - - - 100
358 4,080 59 55 4,552
Non-executive directors FHTES
Ms. Ho Wing Yan Mt 100 - 5 - 105
Mr. Wang Jianguo TEE%4E (vi) - - - - -
Ms. Zhang Yujie ET Ny -, (v) 50 - - - 50
150 - 5 - 155
Independent non-executive directors B FEHITES
Mr. Chong Cha Hwa RRELE (i) 10 - - - 10
Mr. Yang Yunguang BEREE (ix) 21 - - - 21
Mr. Zhang Xianming REHLE (xi) - - - - -
Mr. Ho Man Fai ol S o & 50 - 5 - 55
Dr. Loke Yu EiEmEL (vii) 125 - - - 125
Mr. Li Xiaofeng REgLs (vi) 29 - 5 - 34
235 - 10 - 245
743 4,080 74 55 4,952
Note: These represent the estimated fair value of MsF: ZSHEERBEARTIN_ESLF

share options granted to the directors under the
Company's share option scheme adopted on 23 May
2007. The value of these share options is measured
according to the Group's accounting policies for
share-based payment transactions as set out in note
2.3. The details of these benefits in kind, including
the principal terms and number of options granted,
are disclosed under the paragraph share option
schemes in the report of the directors and note 36.

TAZT=BRABNBREABIRT
EENBRENGAANE - ZFH
BENEEREME2IMHAEE
BN RSERZNARSNE
ABERAE-REEVNEFE (8
REIEGRFRERBRERE)RE
REESHEBRAETE —RRME
36 °
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5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—Z-NFEt=A=+—A
9. DIRECTORS’ REMUNERATION (continued)

(i)

(ii)

(iif)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(x)

(xi)

Resigned on 16 August 2019.

Resigned on 29 January 2019.

Appointed on 10 December 2018.

Resigned on 2 January 2020.

Vacated from 23 March 2018.

Resigned on 29 January 2019.

Resigned on 31 July 2018.

Resigned on 1 November 2018.

Appointed on 31 July 2018.

Appointed on 10 December 2018 and resigned on
14 June 2019.

Appointed on 10 December 2018 and resigned on 3
January 2019.

There was no arrangement under which a director
waived or agreed to waive any remuneration during
the year.
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(i)

(ii)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

(vi)

(vii)

(viii)

(ix)

(xi)
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10.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FIVE HIGHEST PAID EMPLOYEES 10.
The five highest paid employees during the year
include two (2018: two) directors, details of whose
remuneration are set out in note 9 above. Details of

the remuneration for the year of the remaining three

(2018: three), highest paid employees who are not a
director of the Company, are as follows:

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—Z-NEt=A=+—F
hEEEHFES
FRN IEGReFEEREMA (ZE
—N\F - WMEB)ES HFMFHEEHT
REXMFI -RAFEAN Hp=H
(ZE-—N\F:ZR)EaFHEE (M
RRBIES) Z2HMFBOT :

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FET

Salaries, allowances and e EMEEYWTZE
benefits in kind 1,300 1,190
Pension scheme contributions RIRSFTEIH 31 18
1,331 1,208

The number of non-director and highest paid
employees whose remuneration fell within the
following bands is as follows:

FHNF T EEz&RSHIFERESR
ZEWMT:

2019 2018

Nil to HK$1,000,000 % 21,000,000/ 7T 3 3
HK$1,000,001 to HK$1,500,000 1,000,001/ 7. 21,500,000/ 7T = -
HK$1,500,001 to HK$2,000,000 1,500,001 7T £2,000,0007% 7T = -
Over HK$2,000,000 2,000,000/ 7T A £ = -
3 3

During the year and in prior years, share options
were granted to certain non-director, highest paid
employees in respect of their services to the Group,
further details of which are included in the disclosures
in note 36 to the financial statements. The fair value
of such options, which has been recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other
comprehensive income over the vesting period, was
determined as at the date of grant and the amount
included in the financial statements for the current
year is included in the above non-director, highest paid
employees’ remuneration disclosures.

REEAMATFE ETRSHIFE
EREMREMAEEEL 2 RIS T E
RERE £ PHBEHRMERERM
36 - SN ERE AR A B kA
EHPRARRERNBERE EQE
RELBMEE fFARNFEMBE®REK
MEBRA LI REFHIFEFEENS
WEREIENA -

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

— =
=

11.

NF+=ZA=+—H

TAXATION

Under the prevailing tax law in the PRC, the Enterprise
Income Tax rate of the Company and the subsidiaries
is 25% (2018: 25%).

On 21 March 2018, the Hong Kong Legislative Council
passed The Inland Revenue (Amendment.) (No. 7)
Bill 2017 (the “Bill") which introduces the two-tiered
profits tax rates regime. The Bill was signed into law
on 28 March 2018 and was gazetted on the following
day. Under the two-tiered profits tax rates regime,
the first HK$2,000,000 of assessable profits of
qualifying corporations will be taxed at 8.25%, and
assessable profits above HK$2,000,000 will be taxed
at 16.5%. The assessable profits of corporations not
qualifying for the two-tiered profits tax rates regime
will continue to be taxed at a flat rate of 16.5%.

11.

Bi1E

BREFRBITRE ARG RHBA A
ZEEMBMEAE255% (2T — \F:
25% ) °

RZE—NF=ZA=-+—B FELZE
eRB(CE—LFURBE (BET) (B
THEIGRBIBER) ([EXR]) EX5
ENEHMEH BEXR_F—\F
“AZ+NBEBNE TRERT
BoRBANEHMAL aERKARE
2,000,0007% 7T & 3¢ B 4 F1 15 128.25%
#® - 2,000,000/ 7T LA _E B ER 5 ) Bl
Z165%EH - FEHMRH T TEE
&N ERBUE A BB IR E — &
16.5% &1 °

2019 2018

HK$000 HK$'000

FERT FET

Current tax BVEARR I8 397 2,938
Deferred tax BIERIR (1.381) (2,087)
Total tax (credit)/expenses for the year FEMIE (%) FHX 4% (984) 851
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11.

12.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F

TAXATION (continued) 11. ®HB(F)
A reconciliation of the tax expenses applicable to profit HEEE (AT RENEB AT
before taxation at the statutory rate for Hong Kong in ) VK TE B 2 i PR RS BR A A s A A B 1B
which the Company and its subsidiaries are domiciled B Bl RS R & A R IE K e ¥
to the tax credit at the effective tax rate, and a BR AR EBRHER (AETHR) EER
reconciliation of the applicable rate (i.e., the statutory FEREBRINT :
tax rate) to the effective tax rate, are as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FET
(Loss)/profit before taxation AR (B518) % Fl (341,893) 12,628
Tax at the statutory tax rate AR EFTENTIA (56,412) 2,084
Effect of different tax rates of MEBARITRBENE
subsidiaries (15,471) 825
Income not taxable for tax R YN (2,858) (1,170)
Tax effect of unrecognised temporary REREREEZE 2 MEFE
difference 4,829 594
Utilization of tax losses previously not — B)FH Jc Al A MR 2 BB E 18
recognised 24,676 (4,597)
Expenses not deductible for tax AR FE 2 44,168 2,594
Loss attributable to associates sl /N Ly =] 84 521
Tax expenses at the Group's RAREEERHRTED
effective rate HIEMAX (984) 851

The share of tax expenses attributable to an associate S5 & X ) FE (R 518 ] 32 4584,000/8
amounting to HK$84,000 (2018: HK$521,000) 7T (ZZF— \F:521,0008 L) B 5t A
is included in “Share of loss of associates” in the reEakEMEEmBARREKZ [0
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other BMERRBEIET

comprehensive income.

DIVIDENDS

The Directors do not recommend the payment of any
dividend for the year ended 31 December 2019 (2018:

Nil).

12. KRE
EETEZE

—\F &) -

EmMEE_T—
=+t—BEFEIRMEMEK

jli-l- A

8 (=%

=
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—Z-NFEt=A=+—A

13. (LOSS)/EARNINGS PER SHARE 13.

The calculation of the basic and diluted (loss)/earnings
per share attributable to owners of the Company is
based in the following data:

ZR (B8 B
AREEE ARG EREARBHE
(E48) /BRI ORI T 5 gt & -

(Loss)/earnings (B1E) &R
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
(Loss)/earnings for the purpose of RARFTESREARKLEE
basic and diluted (loss)/earnings (B#R) &8z
per share (E518) /&7 (291,072) 4,650
Number of Shares i g=
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FERT FHET

Weighted average number of ordinary Rt &E &A% B A K #5585
shares for basic and diluted (loss)/ (&) BFlz L@k

earnings per share INHEF 5 8

The basic and diluted (loss)/earnings per share are the
same for years ended 31 December 2019 and 2018 as
the effect of the Group’s convertible bonds and share
options were anti-dilutive.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019

14.  PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 14. YE- -BERRKE
Leasehold Motor Construction
improvement Vehicle in progress Infrastructure Total
HE
NEZE RE HEIR BRI @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TET THR TER TER
Cost A
Asat 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H 124,073 4,388 195,244 39,020 362,725
Additions RE 3,124 101 32522 - 35,747
Disposal of subsidiaries MERBAR (HiH37)

(note 37) (12,836) (306) - - (13142)
Exchange realignment ERAE (856) (79) (11,400) (2,001) (14,356)
As at 31 December 2018 and  R=E—\E+ZA=+-AR

1 January 2019 —“Z-n%5-A-H 113,505 4,104 216,366 36,999 370,974
Additions RE 3,199 - 11,700 17 14,916
Reclassified as SN EARENE

properties for sale - - (202,813) - (202,813)
Impairment loss for the year ~ ERHERE - - (21,418) (13,923) (35,341)
Exchange realignment EiHE (324) @) (3,835) (490) (4,676)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NE+ZA=+-A 116,380 407 - 22,603 143,060
Accumulated depreciation  EiHTEREE

and impairment
Asat 1 January 2018 RZE-\E-A-H 31,210 1,715 - 3,944 36,869
Depreciation for the year ENfE 13,182 745 - 4143 18,070
Disposal of subsidiaries HERBRR (M3i37)

(note 37) (.373) (70) - - (4,443)
Exchange realignment ERA% (313) (14) - (368) (695)
As at 31 December 2018and  R-E-\E+-A=+-HkK

1 January 2019 “2-NE-A-H 39,706 2376 - 7,119 49,801
Depreciation for the year FRTE 14,096 473 - 3,940 18,509
Exchange realignment ERRE (183) " - (110) (260)
Asat31December 2019 RZT-NEFZA=+-A 53,659 284 - 11,549 68,050
Carrying amount FESE
As at 31 December 2019 RZE-NETZA=+-H 62,721 1,235 - 11,054 75,010
As at 31 December 2018 RZE-\§+ZA=+-H 73,7199 1728 216,366 29,280 21,173

Impairment Losses recognised in the current year
During the year, the Group ceased to develop of
infrastructure project in the PRC in relation to property,
plant and equipment. The Group carried out a review
of the recoverable amount of the property, plant and
equipment. HK$35,341,000 has been recognized
as impairment loss during the year. These assets are
used in the Group’s other segments. The recoverable
amount of the relevant assets has been determined on
the basis of their value in use.

REAFEERRZBERFE

FAAEEBTHRPRAZE L RD
¥ B MEEEMREEE - AEEH
FHHME BRERFZE TR B S
A B HE R R B E5 835,341,000 7T ©
ZEEBERARASEECEMD E B
BEzZIKBEENIEFEREBEEEEE

TFo

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—F-AETZA=+-R

15.  INVESTMENT PROPERTIES 15. BEY=
HK$'000
FHExT
At 1 January 2018 R_ZE—-—NF—H—H 412,633
Valuation gain on arising from AABEEZHEANHERS
changes in fair value 7,088
Exchange realignment PE o % (21,656)
At 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 RZE-—NF+_A=+—HBK
—E-NF—H—H 398,065
Valuation gain on arising from AREEBHEENGERS
changes in fair value 6,152
Disposal H & (1,281)
Exchange realignment PE W S (7,334)
At 31 December 2019 R-ZE-NF+A=+—8H 395,602
Unrealised net gain in fair value of investment &&EWMEZ AAERER KT FEE
properties, included in profit or loss (Bt AE=) 6,152
(@) Fair value measurement of the Group’s (a) AEEREVEZAAEFTE

investment properties

The fair value of the Group’s investment
properties as at 31 December 2019 has been
arrived at the basis of a valuation carried out by
independent qualified professional valuers not
connected to the Group and has appropriate
qualifications and recent experiences in the
valuation of similar properties in the relevant
locations.

The fair value was determined based on
income capitalisation approach, which involves
estimating the rental incomes of the property
and capitalizing them all on appropriate rate to
produce a capital value respectively.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued)

(a)

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—E-nEFE+=ZA=+—H

15. BEWE (E&)

Fair value measurement of the Group's (a) ATEEREVEZAAEITE
investment properties (continued) (&)
There has been no change to the valuation FR-IHEFRIEES) o
technique during the year.
In estimating the fair value of the properties, R ERN AR ER - WED
highest and best use of the properties is their SANEERGRABRIRAE-
current use.
Details of the Group’s investment properties NIERR AEFKREYWEY
and information about the fair value hierarchy HENUREEARBEESR Y ER
as at the end of the reporting period are as N
follow:
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
B -t} B=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$°000
TERT TET TERT
Investment properties REME - - 395,602
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
EF—R E_m F=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT FHET FHET
Investment properties REME - - 398,065
FEEAREEXEEEZERERAA

2019 &£3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019
—F-hF+-A=+-A
15. INVESTMENT PROPERTIES (continued) 15.
(a) Fair value measurement of the Group’s
investment properties (continued)

REWE (&)

(a)

FEERENMEZDIAENE

(&)

Fair value Valuation techniques Significant unobservable inputs ~ Range
DRE BRI EXTIERGAE &8
2019 2018
HKS'000 HK$'000
THERT TET
Investment properties 395,602 398,065  Income capitalisation approach Capitalisation rate, taking into A slight increase in the
located in the PRC account the capitalisation of rental  capitalisation rate
income potential nature used would result in a
of the property, and prevailing significant decrease in fair
market condition value and vice versa.
of 5% to 6% (2018: 6%)
iR EfRENE LON-v:X|974 MG RARCERESMA WEY FRARMOLRRA LK

There were no transfer into or from level 3
during the year.

(b) The analysis of the carrying amount of
investment properties is as follow:
All the investment properties is situated in the
PRC under medium lease term to long-term
lease arrangement.

(c) Pledge of investment properties
Investment properties with a carrying amount
in aggregate of HK$288,844,000 (2018:
HK$291,293,000) are pledged to several banks
for Group's borrowings, details of which set out
in note 31.

(d) Investment properties leased out under
leases
All of the Group's property interests held under
leases to earn rentals are measured using the
fair value model and classified accounted for
investment properties.

The Group leases out its investment properties
which is agricultural exchange markets to
various tenants. The leases typically run for an
initial period of 1 year to 5 years, at the end of
which period all terms are renegotiated. None
of the leases includes contingent rentals.
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(b)

(o)

(d)

EREATR AR ER% SHRAAEEETR R
E6% (ZF—/\F:6%) 2Tk

FR TEFARBHE=F-

REVEZGRAESHEIFTMT

THERMEERHBETZME
BREMEGLUNHE

KRR EWE

SR £ % A ££288,844,0007% 7T
—Z— )\4 :291,293,000/ T )

ZEREVECRALEZEBEIR

BT EREBT EFBHAME
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F

16.  RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS FRESE
Leased
Properties
HEMHE
HK$'000
FHET
Cost B
At 1 January 2019 (Note 2) RZF—-NF—H—H (fF2) 894,420
Exchange realignment PE 5 S (16,184)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-NF+-A=1t—H 878,236
Accumulated depreciation and R FERAESSE
impairment losses
At 1 January 2019 (Note 2) RZZE-NF—A—R (fF2) -
Charge provided for the year FRRERZ 132,904
Exchange realignment P& o 73 % (3,137)
At 31 December 2019 RZE-h&E+-A=+—H 129,767
Carrying amounts FESE
At 31 December 2019 R-B-NF+=ZA=1+—-8 748,469
At 1 January 2019 (restated) R=Z-hF—-A—8 (KEF]) 894,420

Details of total cash outflow of leases is set out in the
consolidated cash flow statements.

During the current year, the Group leases properties
for own use. Lease contracts are entered into for fixed
term of 4 to 20 years. Lease terms are negotiated
on an individual basis and contain a wide range of
different terms and conditions. In determining the
lease term and assessing the length of the non-
cancellable period, the Group applies the definition of
a contract and determines the period for which the
contract is enforceable.

HEZRSROARFBENGERS

MER-

RAFE AEEHEMEFEERR
wTHESNFIBAR 2056 MEFEHE -
HEGRFTIRENEEETER B2%
TR TR B f6R R B AR o OB T B K BT
A RH R R - ANEE R A
BHMEER UEEA TITENES O
Hif

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

—F-AETZA=+-R

17. FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH 17.
PROFIT OR LOSS

Financial assets at FVTPL as at 31 December 2019 R_E—NF+_A=+—HB #BE
comprise: RIEAABIRENEREERIE
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Listed equity investments, at fair value: EMRAEE L AE:
—in PRC — 33,857 27,355

Fair value of listed equity investments are determined
with reference to quoted market bid prices.

18. LOAN RECEIVABLES 18.
An aged analysis of the loan receivables as at the end
of the reporting period is as follows:

FHRAREZ ARETIRETISHRE

BE-

FE W& K
RmEBR BRERZERER DTN
T

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

0 - 30 days 0%30H 14,465 10,221
31 to 60 days 31£60H 26,864 17,142
61 to 90 days 61290H 21,385 3,980
91 to 180 days 912 180H 106,641 157,833
181 to 365 days 181£365H 113,398 115,494
Over 365 days 365H KA 101,251 76,279
384,004 380,949

Less: Allowance for expected credit B REEEEERE

losses (23,966) (4,520)
360,038 376,429
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18.

19.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
“F-NF+-A=t-H

LOAN RECEIVABLES (continued) 18. FEWEZ (&)
Movement in the allowance for expected credit EWEHEREEEERIEET
losses of loan receivables
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised HE - ET—-NEER-_FT—ILE+_-A4
for loan receivables in accordance with general =+ —H I FEERER S FRIRE AL
approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the years ended 31 FOSERTE N — R A EREW S T IEDR
December 2018 and 2019. R HIE = EEEEE -
Total
et
HK$'000
FET
Balance as at 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—A—HZ#& 2,197
Expected credit losses (“ECL") BHEEEE ([TEHEEEBE]) 2,323
Balance as at 31 December 2018 and RZE—NF+ZA=1T—HBK
1 January 2019 —E-NF-A—BZ&H 4,520
ECL EHEEEE 19,610
Exchange realignment bE i % (164)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+_A=+—RBz#&#H 23,966

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out on note 42.

BHEEB R G FIEHNM 42 -

RENTAL DEPOSITS PAID 19. BEfffEELEkE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHT TR
Rental deposits paid ENHEESES 10,263 30,413

Rental deposits paid related to rental deposits paid to
landlord for tenancy agreement more than 1 year in
PRC premises.

ENHEREERNTEYEBRL —F
ZHEEBZRAEEIXNzEEREH

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M AT

31 December 2019
—F-AETZA=+-R

20. GOODWILL 20 HE
Total
et
HK$'000
FET
Cost 5N
As at 1 January 2018 R-_ZE—N\F—H—H 166,876
Disposal of a subsidiary (note 37) HEHE AR (MaF37) (46,920)
Exchange realignment ME 5 (1,133)
As at 31 December 2018 and 1 January 2019 W_Z—\F+_A=+—HEK
—FT-hhF—HA—H 118,823
Exchange realignment [EPEEE (855)
As at 31 December 2019 R_E—-—NF+=_A=+—H 117,968
Accumulated impairment R2iRE
As at 1 January 2018, 31 December 2018 R_Z2—-—NF—HA—QH-
and 1 January 2019 —E-NFT+ZA=T—8BK
—FT-hhF—H—H 71,557
Impairment for the year FARE 11,864
Exchange realignment PE o 8% (99)
As at 31 December 2019 R_E—-hF+=—A=+—H 83,322
Carrying amount BRESZE
As at 31 December 2019 R_E—-hF+=_A=+—H 34,646
As at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+-_A=+—H 47,266

Goodwill acquired through business combinations
has been allocated to cash-generating unit of rental
business in PRC, mining business and the sales of

green food products for impairment testing.
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20.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GOODWILL (continued)

Impairment testing of goodwiill

Goodwill has been allocated for impairment testing
purposes to the following groups of cash generating

units:

o Rental business in PRC

o Mining business

o Sale of green food products

After recognition of impairment losses, the carrying
amount of goodwill was allocated to groups of cash-
generating units as follows:

20.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-hFT-A=+—F
mE (&)
B8 2R ERE
RRENAME BEEPEE TR
SEHEBEA:

. hEEE
. EEET
. HESERM

RERREERR HERESHEZD
FEETIREELEM:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FTET FHET

Rental business in PRC R TEE X 30,997 43,550
Mining business BB 681 693
Sale of green food products HEZBERM 2,968 3,023
34,646 47,266

The recoverable amount has been determined
based on a value in use calculation using cash flow
projections based on financial budgets covering a
five-year period prepared by independent valuers and
approved by senior management.

Construction business
The construction business was disposed during 2018.

Rental business in PRC

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 6.5% (2018: 6.5%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate
of 3% (2018: 3%),).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$11,864,000 was
recognised in respect of the goodwill within the rental
business segment. In the opinion of the Directors,
the main factor contributing to the impairment
loss was due to failure to meet expectations on the
performance of the rental business in PRC.

A E SR BERE T A EMRE R
e EEEERERDFH R
BERRReRERAUREAEEFE
& E

EREBERN_T-N\FHE-

H B HE X
ERARBESRERRZHEEB65%

TE-N\F:65%) MEBAFHZ
ReREDNEAEREI% (ZF—N
F:3% ) A

BEZE—NF+A=+—HLHE
E ERHEEERSEAR LA ERR
EE1E%11,864,0008 L - EERA &
BREBEs T ZERZATEBEESEY
R KRREZERTER-
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—NWF+ZA=+—H
20. GOODWILL (continued)
Impairment testing of goodwill (continued)
Sales of green food products

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
was 15% (2018: 15%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate

of 3% (2018: 3%).

Mining business

The discount rate applied to the cash flow projections
10%) and cash flows beyond the
five-year period were extrapolated using a growth rate

was 10% (2018:

of 3% (2018: 3%).

The key assumptions for value in use calculation
related to the estimation of cash inflows which
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such
estimation is prepared by independent valuers based
on past performance and management’s expectations.

As at 31 December 2019, there was impairment
loss of approximately HK$11,864,000 (2018:
Nil) recognised and allocated to goodwill in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss and other

comprehensive income for the year.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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e ZRERR (&)

HEFEBRm

EARESREEANZMIREAEI5%
ZE-NF:15%) MEBBRAFHZ

Bene MEAERERIN (ZT—N

F 3% ) A

EEETS

ERARRERETRANZEEE/I0%

—E-N\F:10%) mMBERFHZ
BeRENRAEEERI% (ZE—N
F 3% ) R

ﬁ%ﬁ%ﬁﬁ BZFERRIDEAR

i//|b7\1EuJF E@?ﬁ?ﬁgfﬁ%&%ﬂ
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RENEEEHEMIEL -
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21.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS 21. HtEREE
Trademarks Contract Total
[k &8 HE
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHEL FET FHEL

Cost A

As at 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—-\F—H—H 93,312 56,590 149,902
Exchange realignment TR (1,336) (740) (2,076)

As at 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF+-A=+—H

1 January 2019 kZF-NF—HA—H 91,976 55,850 147,826
Exchange realignment M 5 (5,098) (3,163) (8,261)
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=-A=+—H 86,878 52,687 139,565

Accumulated amortisation and Z 5T 85 &R E

impairment
As at 1 January 2018 RZZE—-N\F—H—H 997 13,205 14,202
Amortisation for the year F AR 138 10,732 10,870
Exchange realignment TR (57) (684) (741)

As at 31 December 2018 and RZZE—NF+-A=+—H

1 January 2019 kZE-hnF—H—H 1,078 23,253 24,331
Impairment for the year FRRE 42,370 - 42,370
Amortisation for the year FAREE 132 10,626 10,758
Exchange realignment TR (374) (510) (884)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZE-hF+-A=+—H 43,206 33,369 76,575
Carrying amount FESE
As at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+=-A=+—H 43,672 19,318 62,990
As at 31 December 2018 RZZE—-NF+=-A=+—H 90,898 32,597 123,495

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT ilwal
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

— =B
—=

E—hE+=A=+—A
21.

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued)
Amortisation charge of approximately HK$10,758,000
(2018: HK$10,870,000) for the year is included in
administrative expenses in the consolidated statement
of profit or loss and other comprehensive income.

Other intangible assets of trademark of wine and
liquor, trademark of tourism business and contract as
above amortised over its estimated useful lives, which
are 30 years, indefinite and 5 years respectively.

The trademarks of tourism business has remaining
legal life of two to five years (2018: three to six years)
but is renewable every 10 years at minimal cost. The
directors of the Company are of the opinion that the
Group would renew the trademarks continuously and
has the ability to do so. As a result, the trademarks of
tourism business are considered by the management
of the Group as having an indefinite useful life
because it is expected to contribute to net cash inflows
indefinitely.

Impairment testing of other intangible assets
Trademark

Trademark of tourism business acquired has an
indefinite useful life. The recoverable amount has
been determined based on a value in use calculation
using cash flow projections based on financial
budgets covering a five-year period prepared by
an independent valuer and approved by senior
management. The discount rate applied to the cash
flow projections was 14% (2018: 13.5%).

During the year ended 31 December 2019, an
impairment loss of approximately HK$42,370,000 was
recognised in respect of the other intangible assets
on the trademark of tourism business. In the opinion
of the directors of the Company, the main factor
contributing to the impairment loss was due to the
adverse change in the market of the tourism business
in PRC.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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21.

22.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
“F-NF+-A=t-H

OTHER INTANGIBLE ASSETS (continued) 21. HEMERSE (8)
Impairment testing of other intangible assets HiEEEERENSR (&)
(continued)
Trademark (continued) EIE (&)
The key assumptions for value in use calculation EEFEAEEASEZEM T E/RER I
related to the estimation of cash inflows which RIS R ARG EBEREKRARE
included budgeted revenue and gross margin. Such FZE - BREEE VR B I (HEEMER B
estimation is prepared by an independent valuer based ARBLEBEEBHEMEL-
on past performance and management’s expectations.
Contract =)
Contract acquired has a five year useful life. The FTEEA N A BEMARE Ol
recoverable amount has been determined based on Bl&%E R ERE Y HEMGE LK S
a value in use calculation using cash flow projections LEBEBHE Y mgﬂﬁszﬁzﬁ%—”
based on financial budgets covering five years HHERSREBRTEREEESTEN
prepared by an independent valuer and approved by BT - JERANRESREENZERRA
senior management. The discount rate applied to cash 65% (—ZE—N\HE:65%)°
flow projections was 6.5% (2018: 6.5%).
The key assumptions for value in use calculation EEEAEEASEZEM T E/REK I
related to the estimation of cash inflows which RESREAGE HBEREBEEHERE
included budgeted sales and gross margin. Such FZ - BREEE VR B I (HEEMER B
estimation is prepared by an independent valuers ARBELEEBHEMEL -
based on past performance and management'’s
expectations.
As at 31 December 2019, there was impairment —E-NE+-_A=+—H RAE
loss of approximately HK$42,370,000 (2018: Nil) rz,m/\TE SR EM 2 EIM AR EER
recognised and allocated to other intangible assets in SR EEMEREE Y REFEY
the consolidated statement of profit or loss and other 42 370,000/ (ZE— N\F ) -
comprehensive income for the year.
INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES 22. REBE NI RER
2019 2018
HKS$’000 HK$'000
THET FAET
Share of net assets DIREEFE 278,734 286,450

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—NF+=-A=+—8H

22.  INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. REE AT zjgx (&)
The Group's interests in its principal associates, which REFREFEBE AT (IELTH) 24
are unlisted, are as follows: HNT

Name

1

Registered share capital

FMEA

Place of
registration

a1 it 2

Percentage of
ownership interest
attributable to

the Group
AEEES
BEREZAOL

Principal activities

FTEEK

Hunan Laohanzun Liquor Sales
Company Limited

HEZTEREERN
BRRA

Xianxi Autonomus Prefecture
Laohanzun Liquor Company
Limited

HEBRMNETBEE
BRRA

Hunan Diancang Jiugui
Liquor Company Limited

HRAEREREHE
BRAH

Shenzhen Huayin Jinshajiang
Investment Development
Company Limited

RITERSDTIREER
BRAA

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan
E-commerce Group
Company Limited (i)
(Formerly known as Shenzhen
Dahuangyuan E-commerce
Group Company Limited)

RITRERREEFES
SEBRDAN
(FIBRINT AT
BETAKBERAF)

Shenzhen Dahuangyuan

International Trading Company

Limited (i)

(Formerly known as Shenzhen

Dahuangyuan Green Food

Distribution Company

Limited)
%Wﬁﬁﬁ%ﬁ%%%

BRR

(W%/Wﬁm%ﬁ@

RREZERAAE)

RMB79,600,000

AR #79,600,0007T

RMB600,000

AR 600,000

RMB2,000,000

AE#2,000,0007C

RMB10,000,000

AR #10,000,0007T

RMB200,000,000

A #200,000,0007T

RMB50,800,000

AR #50,800,0007T

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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PRC/Mainland China

/B

PRC/Mainland China

/B

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE/ B R

PRC/Mainland China

RE /B R

48.99

46.54

48.99

48.99

30

30

Trading of wine

BEES

Trading of wine

BEES

Trading of wine

ERES

Investment holding

RERR

Sales of food and fertilizer

HERDREH

Sales of food, fertilizer,
wine and steel

HERM LR BRREN



22.

INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

22,

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019

—E-AFT=F=1—8
REE R 2w ()

Percentage of
ownership interest

Place of attributable to
Name Registered share capital registration the Group Principal activities
AEEER

A8 HEfRA  EMEE BEEEREESL TEXH

Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 30 Guarantee
Non-Financing Guarantee
Company Limited (i)

RYTRIB ARG ERE N ARH50,000000m  HE/HERM VAL
RRBERRF0)

Shenzhen Pengrongan RMB210,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 49 Investment holding
Logistics Industrial Park
Company Limited (i)

AT ERZYREXE AR#2100000000T  FE/RERL REER
BB AF()

Shenzhen Shengsiming Trading RMB50,000,000 PRC/Mainland China 40 General trading
Limited (i)

AITEBHHE AR#50,000,000  RE/HERM —RE5
BRAF)

Notes: P5E

i) The English name of the above PRC companies is for (i) LR B AR MR X BB EHER

identification purpose only.

o

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

—E-AFt=A=+-A

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22.
For the year ended 31 December 2019

REERT 2w (&)
BE-_Z-NFT+-A=1+—-HLEFE

176

Shenzhen
Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commence
Group Company
Limited
Shenzhen  (Formerly known Shenzhen
Hunan Huayin as Shenzhen Pengrongan
Laohanzun Jinshajiang Dahuangyuan Logistics Shenzhen
Liquor Sales Investment E-commerce Industrial Park Shengsiming
Company Development  Group Company Company Trading
Limited  Company Limited Limited) Limited Limited
RYImA
BARE
ETEKER
Ry BRARA
WEETE EREVT  (AIBPITAR AT ERR Rl
BHERD RERR BETEH NREXE 2RHEE
BRARA BRAR BRAR) BRAR BRAT
2019 2019 2019 2019 2019
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TRT TR TR -7 TR
Non-current assets FnBEE 45,645 - 294 119,727 55,895
Current assets RYEE 43,134 80,448 162,370 115,030 13
Current liabilities RBaE (39,861) (69,605) (85,193) - (132)
Net assets EEFE 48,918 10,843 7741 234,757 55,776
Reconciliation to the Group's AAEERB RN 2Bk
interest in the associates:
Proportion of the Group's ownership BALEREFELD 48.99% 48.99% 30% 49% 40%
Carrying amount REGHELE
the investment 23,965 5312 23241 115,031 22,310
Revenue iy - - - - -
(Loss)/gain for the year EE(BR)/ I ) ()] 1,300 (1) =
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEXEEBEE (445) (98) (429) (1,039) (412

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019




NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019
—E-nEFE+=ZA=+—H

22. INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES (continued) 22. E’q‘ﬂﬁﬁ%@ﬂZ%ﬁ_ﬁ (,%E)
For the year ended 31 December 2018 BE_Z—N\EF+_A=+—HIEE
Shenzhen
Qianhai
Dahuangyuan
E-commence
Group Company
Limited
Shenzhen  (Formerly known Shenzhen
Hunan Huayin as Shenzhen Pengrongan
Laohanzun Jinshajiang Dahuangyuan Heilongjiang Logistics Shenzhen
Liquor Sales Investment E-commerce Dahuangyuan Industrial Park Shengsiming
Company Development  Group Company E-commerce Company Trading
Limited ~ Company Limited Limited) ~ Company Limited Limited Limited
RYITR
BAR G
ETHKER
#lm ERAA
e EREVT  (AIRRITAR FRIAT& AImERT s
EHERD REER GETES ETHK NiEXE 2R#HE
ARAR ARAR BRAR) ARAR ARAR ARAR
2018 2018 2018 2018 2018 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TEL TEL TEL TAL TAL
Non-current assets FRBEE 46,487 - 32,650 77 121933 56,925
Current assets RBAE 314 81,931 58,087 35,740 117,152 128
Current liabilities RBAE (39,417) (70,838) (16) (1,190) 2) (134)
Net assets AEFE 50,212 11,043 90,721 34,627 239,083 56,919
Reconiliation to the Group's BASERBEAR EREk:
interest in the associates:
Proportion of the Group's ownership {578 & EE B ELLfl 48.99% 48.99% 30% 21.90% 49% 40%
Carrying amount REGHESE
the investment 24,599 5410 27,216 7,583 117,151 22,768
Revenue e - - - 37 - -
Loss for the year FEER (15) 2 (219) (667) (1 (1
Total comprehensive loss for the year  F & 2 EEREE (1,353) (296) (1,582) (689) (6,400) (1,44)
The following table illustrates the financial information TEBRAER Y WIERERIE A2 B
of the Group's associates that are not individually NEZ B EER:
material:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THEx FET
Share of the associate’s loss DIERFEEE QA
for the year (g (1,629) (1,179)
Share of the associate’s total DEEE QAR EZHERALE
comprehensive income 223 39
Aggregate carrying amount of REERBERRREZ
the Group's investments HEmER
in the associate 88,875 81,723

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT 77/
2019 &£3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019
—E-hF+=ZA=+—H

23.  INVENTORIES 23. 1715

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Raw material R R 20,013 29,113
Finished goods 2= X oh 28,380 28,056
48,393 57,169

24. PROPERTIES FOR SALE 24. HEWME
2019 2018
HK$’000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Properties under development for sale 3 & 2% & A ¥ 3 202,813 -

The properties under development for sale in the PRC
are under long-term leases.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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25.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019
—F-hF+=A=t+—A

TRADE RECEIVABLES 25. BEWEFR
Trade receivables are mainly arisen from sale of goods, FEWE ZERTERAHETRREE
and rental income derived from rental business. ERELEZHSWA -
An aged analysis of the trade receivables as at the end AIREHIKR  ENE IR IREZEH
of the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is CEBOSTHMT
as follows:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
THET FHET
Within 1 month —EA R 16,329 28,622
1 to 2 months —ZE W& A 22,265 65,795
2 to 3 months M ZE =1 A 38,298 25,787
Over 3 months Bim =18 A 41,922 13,256
118,814 133,460
Less: Allowance for expected credit B TREEEEERE
losses (22,133) (2,598)
96,681 130,862
Included in the trade receivables consist of rental EUWE ZERZBIEEWAS KNEEfE
receivables. The aging analysis of the Group’s rental WHEZRESTIT

receivables are as follows:

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FHET FHET

Up to 30 days 3085 UK 4,928 3,572

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019
—E-hF+=ZA=+—H

25. TRADE RECEIVABLES (continued) 25. BEWESZKRMN (&)
Movement in the allowance for expected credit EWE SRS ERCEEEAREST
losses of trade receivables
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised HE-_ZEZ-hFt+-_A=1+—HIFE
for trade receivables in accordance with simplified BiE BB RS LR LY FTE S
approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the year ended 31 (b =G EWE SRR 2 2 HiTa B
December 2019. EEEEg.
Total
et
HK$'000
FHET
Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZE—N\F+_A=+—Hz#&% 3,297
Expected credit losses (“ECL") TEHEEEE ([TBEEEEE]) (778)
Exchange realignment B 5, 78 B 79
Adjusted balance as at 1 January 2019 RZZE—-NF—A—B2EAREH 2,598
ECL FEHEEERE 19,680
Exchange realignment B 5, 38 B (145)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 RZE-—NF+_A=+—Hz#&% 22,133
Note: Reversal of allowance of ECL is due to the Group's Mzt BEESAEEHBRERRAEBR
recovery of trade receivables. B fE W E 5 R
Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set FEEA (= B S 1B S SIS E A B 5E42 o
out in note 42.
26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER 26. FAMEZIE- 4R EMPEKSZE
RECEIVABLES
2019 2018
HK$000 HK$'000
FERT FET
Prepayments T FRIE 175,091 149,078
Deposits and other receivables e KA M I FRIE 506,211 486,011
681,302 635,089
Less: Allowance for expected credit i : 78 Hi{= & E 18 BB
losses (143,915) (6,658)
537,387 628,431

180  China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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26.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)

Movement in the allowance for expected

credit losses of deposits and other receivables
Movement in lifetime ECL that has been recognised
for deposits and other receivables in accordance with
simplified approach set out in HKFRS 9 for the year
ended 31 December 2019.

26.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019

—ZE-nE+=A=1+—A
FEANRE RERHEMERIE
(%)
RERHMERRBEAREEGERE
HE_Z-NF+_A=+—HILtFE
BEBE BB REERNFEISRAE
EER LS R EMBYRGIEER 22
HEHREEBESE-

Total

et

HK$'000

FHETT

Balance as at 31 December 2018 RZEBE-N\F+-_A=+—Hz#&%#% 3,756
Expected credit losses (“ECL") TEHEEEE ([TBEEEEE]) 2,784
Exchange realignment BE 5, 53 B 118
Balance as at 1 January 2019 RZTE-—NF—A—B 2R 6,658
ECL BEEEERE 138,701
Exchange realignment bE 5 E (1,444)
Balance as at 31 December 2019 RZEBE-—NF+_A=F+—H2Z&% 143,915

Details of assessment of expected credit losses are set
out in note 42.

Included in the above allowance for expect credit
losses is a provision for individually impaired for other
receivables of approximately HK$134,148,000 (2018:
Nil). The other receivables were past due. Though
the management of the Group has been proactively
seeking to recover these other receivables and
collection letters were sent by the Group during the
year ended 31 December 2019. However, there are
no subsequent settlements were made. Consequently,
specific impairment provision was recognised.

As at 31 December 2019, approximately
HK$196,255,000 (2018: HK$199,180,000) was paid
as trade deposit and prepayments for trading of food
and minerals products.

BHEEEEN A BN L2 -

LB E BB R AR IS E M IR
T8 2 & 51 Rk {8 55 1 £9134,148,0007% 7T

ZE-N\FE) HMEKRFIED |
H-ALEEEE —BHRBEBSREREZ
SHMBEWHIE BAEEDREEC
T-NE+_A=+—BIEFEHEHE
Bk o AT - WAL (R B FRIE -
bt BRI E R E B -

RZZTE—-NF+=A=+—H"
#9196,255,0008B L (=& — )\ F :
199,180,000 L) EX N 1EAEBER M
RBEESEE RBNRIE-

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019

—F-hF+-A=+-A

26. PREPAYMENTS, DEPOSITS AND OTHER
RECEIVABLES (continued)
Movement in the allowance for expected

credit losses of deposits and other receivables

(continued)

Rental deposits and construction deposits for the
warehouse amounting to HK$34,373,000 (2018:
HK$79,381,000) and HK$Nil (2018: HK$64,341,000)
were paid for the warehouse logistic business for the

year ended 31 December 2019 respectively.

Approximately HK$50,550,000 (2018: HK$48,593,000)
were the progress payments for the investment

targets.

During the year ended 31 December 2018, the
consideration for disposal of Hunan Meiming Wenshi

Jiuguijiu Sales Limited was fully received.

At the end of the reporting period, there were
allowance for expected credit losses amounted to
HK$143,915,000 recognised for the year ended 31

December 2019 (2018: HK$6,658,000).

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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ERUREB e RERSES RBER
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27.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND PLEDGED
DEPOSITS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F

BERRESZTEYREBEARAERK

2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FET FETT
Cash and bank balances (note) Be MIRIT4 79,995 37,277
Time deposits T HATE K 47,777 83,584
127,772 120,861
Less: Pledged deposits B B ERER (47,777) (83,584)
Cash and cash equivalents RekReF 79,995 37,277
Unsecured bank overdraft EIRIRIRITE - (5,032)
Cash and cash equivalents in the FeRenErPNEa Rk
consolidated statement of ReEED
cash flows 79,995 32,245

At the end of the reporting period, the cash and bank
balances and time deposits of the Group denominated
in Renminbi amounted to HK$66,033,000 (2018:
HK$32,638,000) and HK$47,777,000 (2018:
HK$83,584,000), respectively. The RMB is not
freely convertible into other currencies, however,
under Mainland China’s Foreign Exchange Control
Regulations and Administration of Settlement, Sale
and Payment of Foreign Exchange Regulations,
the Group is permitted to exchange RMB for other
currencies through banks authorised to conduct
foreign exchange business.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based
on daily bank deposit rates. Short term time deposits
are made for varying periods of between 1 day and 6
months depending on the immediate cash equivalents
of the Group and earn interest at the respective
short term time deposit rates. The bank balances and
pledged deposits are deposited with creditworthy
banks with no recent history of default.

Note: During the year ended 31 December 2019,
there were bank balances of approximately
HK$11,721,000 (2018: HK$11,950,000) freezed due
to litigation. For the details of the litigation, please
refer to note 46(vii).

RIBEHR AEEEZAREE
MBS RBITESRUREHTRD
7 566,033,000 . (=T — N\F:
32,638,000/ 7T ) 47,777,000/ 7T ( =
=T — J\£F : 83,584,000/ 7T ) ° AT - 1R
15 B At B9 SNEE B MR ) R S TR - B
EMMEERAE ARBTITEHRN
BREHMEE AEERESRBERE
HITINEEBRRITHARE LR AE
fth & ¥ o

RITRSIRE BRITIFRN X 2 ZBH
TPREA S o FEHIE B R 1 R =61E
AMBEEL (RFAKBEARRSEE
YME ) - WikE 8 HE BERA R R
A B - RITAE 8 M B R IF 017
AT EAI B AL ek 2 BIEEIRTT -

Mz B#E2—F—AF+=-A=+—81
FE 411,721,000 T (ZFE—N
i 11,950,000 7T ) 2 R 1T 4 84 E
FAAMERE - BRAFRZHE F
%FWTE%(VH)
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—E-hF+=ZA=+—H
28. TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES
An aged analysis of the trade payables as at the end of

28. BNEZRIRRESREE

RBERRENEZEFIRERAH

the reporting period, based on the invoice date, is as RO :
follows:

2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET TETT
Within 1 month — @A R 35,292 39,385
1 to 2 months —ZE W& A 33,749 29,780
2 to 3 months 2 =1 A 1,748 9,134
Over 3 months BB =18A 1,100 395
71,889 78,694
Bills payable NS 101,617 166,221
173,506 244,915

The trade payables are non-interest-bearing and
are normally settled on 30-day terms (2018: 30-day
terms).

As at 31 December 2019, bills payable of approximately
HK$101,617,000 (2018: HK$166,221,000) were
secured by the pledged deposits of the Group.

All the trade payables and bills payable are
denominated in Renminbi.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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ENEZERSTE  —RIZ30BR
H(ZZT—\F:30HRH)&EH-
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% 49101,617,0008 ¢ (=Z & — )\ F:
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29.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OTHER PAYABLES AND ACCRUALS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F

29. HttENRERESER

2019 2018

HK$’000 HK$'000

FERT FAT

Other payables H h fE 1~ RRIB 112,299 114,603
Accruals FEEtE R 60,025 28,025
172,324 142,628

Other payables are non-interest-bearing and have an
average term of three months.

Included in other payables are HK$58,825,000 (2018:
HK$62,604,000) rental deposits received from the
tenants of logistic warehouse and office in PRC,
HK$129,000 (2018: HK$15,448,000) related to
leasehold improvement payable.

Included in the accruals:

i) the default interest of convertible bond of
approximately HK$6,897,000 (note 31l);

i) the default interest of secured bond of
approximately HK$30,810,000 (note 31m);

iii) the default interest of unsecured bond of
approximately HK$8,116,000 (note 31n);

iv) the default interest of unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$1,056,000 (note 31k).

Hib T RIE A% 8 B FOHR A =1E
H o

T A M FE FKIER S5 + 58,825,000
BT (ZF— )\ 162,604,000/ 7T ) &
BEFEYRAEGENAEHEKEN
FEZS 129,000 (=T — \F:
15,448,000/ 7T ) TR E W) E R A FE S
BB

et ER B

i) AR ESFZENONBEY
6,897,000 & 7T (BIEE311) :

i) EREEEZENFBLY
30,810,0005% 7T (BI#E31m ) ;

i)y EBEWBESFZEHDNEBEY
8,116,000 /& 7T (BF3E31n) ;

iv) EEFEMERZENNELD
1,056,000 & 7T (Bg7E31k) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—F-AETZA=+-R

30. CONTRACT LIABILITIES 30, Aayar
2019 2018
HK$°000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Receipts in advance from customers  $t 8 & & m B E P HIE
in relation to trading of products 85,200 51,471
Movement in contract liabilities for the years ended BHE_ZT—N\FEkZZT—-NF+=ZA
31 December 2018 and 2019: =ST-HIEFEZANAGEES:
Advance
receipts
from
customers
EWEFIE
HK$'000
FET
Balance at 1 January 2018 RZEBE—N\F—A—HZ&% 24,034
Decrease in contract liabilities as HERREVFTAGHNEBZFANRAK
a result of recognising revenue Hiw A8z & 8B/
or other income during the year
that was included in the contract
liabilities at the beginning of the
year (24,034)
Increase in contract liabilities AHEBEN TREFABRAKA
excluding amounts recognised as < & FE
revenue during the year 51,471
Balance at 31 December 2018 RZE-N\F+_A=+—Hz2#&H% 51,471
Balance at 1 January 2019 RZZE-NF—-—HA—-BZ#&#H 51,471
Decrease in contract liabilities as HHERNFENFAGHNEBEZFAWAL
a result of recognising revenue HithWABE &K B ER D

or other income during the year

that was included in the contract

liabilities at the beginning of the

year (51,471)

Increase in contract liabilities EHEREN TREFABRREA
excluding amounts recognised as 2 & HE
revenue during the year 85,200
Balance at 31 December 2019 RZE—NF+_A=+—H2#&% 85,200
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31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS 31. TREMEE
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Secured bank loans EEBRITER

(notes a, b and ¢) (MfsEa- b&c) 78,761 69,449
Secured other loans (notes d and e) ERFEMER (HiFdRe) - 22,485
Unsecured other loans EIEHEMER (MEfE)

(notes f to ) 271,910 48,587
Secured bonds (note m) EEFES (MsEm) 109,000 192,903
Unsecured bonds (note n) EIERES (WeEn) 82,291 —

541,962 333,424
Carrying amounts repayable RIE R TS AT 82 5K B H

within one year based on ER—FANEENRESRE

scheduled payment dates set out

in the agreement 541,962 333,424
Carrying amounts not repayable BARERMERARE—FANER

within one year from the end BB SR EREEGRRKD

of reporting period but contain FEeE (VI TARBEE)

a repayment on demand clause

(shown under current liabilities) - -

541,962 333,424
Less: amounts due within one year BV RARBEEN
shown under current liabilities —FARE R (541,962) (333,424)

Amounts shown under
non-current liabilities

SRR B BB 25
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—F-AETZA=+-R
31. BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

Notes:

(@)

()

As at 31 December 2019, the secured bank
loan of approximately HK$78,253,000 (2018:
HK$39,848,000) was secured by investment
properties with fair value of approximately
HK$288,844,000 (2018: HK$291,293,000) and
personal guarantee by director of the Company and
related party.

As at 31 December 2019, the secured bank loan of
approximately HK$508,000 was secured by personal
guarantee of the Company’s management.

As at 31 December 2018, the secured bank loan
of approximately HK$29,601,000 were secured by
personal guarantee provided by directors of the
Company, corporate guarantees of the Company,
related party and independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2018, secured other loan of
approximately HK$2,277,000 were borrowed from
Shenzhen Qianhai Dahuangyuan Non-Financing
Guarantee Company Limited, an associate of the
Group. The secured other loans were secured by
corporate guarantee provided by subsidiary of the
Group, non-controlling shareholder and independent
third parties.

As at 31 December 2018, secured other loan of
approximately HK$20,208,000 was borrowed from
an independent third party and were secured by
corporate guarantee provided by subsidiary of the
Group.

As at 31 December 2019, unsecured other
loan of approximately HK$34,096,000 (2018:
HK$34,895,000) was borrowed from Beidahuang
Marketing Co. Ltd., the non-controlling shareholder
of a Group company. The purpose for loans were
purchasing staple food and liquor wine.

As at 31 December 2019, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$8,000,000 (2018: HK$8,000,000)
was borrowed from an independent third party.

As at 31 December 2019, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$19,563,000 was borrowed from
Dongguan Zhenyue Property Investment Company
Limited, the non-controlling shareholder of a Group
Company.
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RAT
B i :

(a

REAMESR (F)

R_ZE—NE+=-_R=+—H B2&
FRIR 1T B 7 #978,253,000/8 7T (=&
— J\ £ : 39,848,000/ 7T ) Jy A 7
{E#9288,844,000/8 T (=& — )\ & :
291,293,000/8 7T, ) W& V)3 1E K 18
KA A R EE KR A (EEAE
Re

RZE—NF+_A=+—H8 B&
R 7T B 5 #49508,000/8 7T Y R A A
AIEEEEHMEAERELRE.

R_ZE—N\E+=-_R=+—H B&
IR 1T E 7 4929,601,000/8 7T JY A
NAEEELMEARRREARAR] -
REES 7 KB B = FER B R R ER
YE#E 38 -

R-E—-NE+-A=+—8 83K
R E b B 51 492,277,0005 7T Jh £ B
ANEER LN BRI RNE K FEIE
MEEERERAR - BRFEME
KB AEENB AR - IEERBRE
MBI E = HERH R AERER
o

RZB-NE+-_A=+—0 &
HE M B 24920,208,0008 7T Jh1E B
B E = WHAAEENBARME
B R AR R VEHE 3R o

WZZE—NE+_R=+—0 &K
R E b B 5% #4934,096,0005 7T (==
— J\4F : 34,895,000/ 7T) hfE B &
E QBRI AR AL KA R D
ERAR -ZEZXTAEREERE
BEEMRAR-

R-B—AE+-A=+—0 &K
¥ E b B 31 498,000,000/ 7T ( = &
— J\£E : 8,000,000 7T ) Ty & B B L
F=H-

R_ZE—NFE+_A=+—8 8K
R E A B 3K 4919,563,000% 7T T3 18
B &£ E 2 R IEE AR IR ®Dongguan
Zhenyue Property Investment
Company Limited °



31.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(i)

(n)

As at 31 December 2019, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$559,000 was borrowed from
Dongguan Yuehe Zhiyuan Investment Development
Company Limited, the non-controlling shareholder of
a Group Company.

As at 31 December 2019, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$5,692,000 (2018: HK$5,692,000)
was borrowed from an independent third parties.

As at 31 December 2019, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$9,000,000 was borrowed from
an independent third parties. The unsecured other
loan was expired during the year and the default
interest was approximately HK$1,056,000 with
default interest rate of 18% per annum (note 29).
The Group received a writ of summon issued by he
unsecured other loan holder. Please refer to note
46(iii) for further details.

As at 31 December 2019, unsecured other loan of
approximately HK$195,000,000 was the principal
amount of convertible bonds. Details please refer to
note 33.

As at 31 December 2019, secured bond
of approximately HK$109,000,000 (2018:
HK$192,903,000) were borrowed from an
independent third party and secured by the equity
interests of two subsidiaries. The secured bond was
expired during the year and the default interest was
approximately HK$30,810,000 with default interest
rate of 10% per annum (note 29) (the "Default
Secured Bond”). The Group is negotiating with
secured bondholder to extend the Default Secured
Bond.

As at 31 December 2018, unsecured bonds
of approximately HK$82,291,000 (2018: nil)
were borrowed from independent third parties.
Approximately HK$78,300,000 of the unsecured
bonds were expired during the year. The default
interest was approximately HK$8,116,000 with
default interest rate of 2% to 6% per annum (note
29). The Group received a winding up petition issued
by one of the unsecured bondholders. Please refer to
note 46(ii) for further details.

RAT

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019

REAMESR ()

BfeE: (#8)

(i)

()

R-E-—ns+=A=+-8
B H M B 5 4559,00008 T
NEEEBEAAMNEERKRRE
Dongguan Yuehe Zhiyuan Investment
Development Company Limited °

R-ZB—-AE+-—A=+—0 &K
HH b B $0495,692,000/8 7 (=&
— J\4F : 5,692,000/ 7T ) Jy{& B B L
F=He

RZE-—NF+ZA=+—8 &
A H b B F0499,000,0007% JT T4 &
BBUE=H BEBEEMGERRE
RIER MIZENOFEFR18%:TE
# R B 49 41,056,000/ 7T (5
29) o AL E B E KR E B RS
BEABHZEMSHK-E—FFHE
5 2 B I sE46(iii) ©

W_ZE—NE+_R=+—8 &K
HHE fth B 3% #9195,000,00078 7T TY &
AR ESFZANSTE GREFS B
2EIMFE33 -

R-ZZE—-—hE+-_A=+—8'18
3 {& % 49109,000,000% 7T ( = =
— J\4F : 192,903,000/ 7T ) Jh & B 78
SEZT AR E A E 2 R
R -BERBESFREANER M
BRENE10%T EHEOFENR
30,810,000/ 7T (KI5E29) ([EHE
WIFES]) - AEEIEHEDIKHES
BEAEELERENDEMES ZH
R

RZE-NF+_A=+—H &
AR E % 4982,291,0008 7t (==
—NF E)DNEBBIYE=Z W
78,300,000/ 7T 2 EE HEH N F R
fEm o 2% E6% 2 EHFFIR B
HIE XTI B 458,116,000/8 7T (HisE
29) e AEE S| — B EEESH
EANBHZEREF - E—FFHE
B2 B sE46(i) ©
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

— T
—=

T-NF+-A=1+—H
31.

BANK AND OTHER BORROWINGS (continued)

The above bank and other borrowings that are
denominated in currencies other than the functional
currencies of the relevant group entities are set out
below:

31. S|ITRHEHMESR (F)
ERSRITTREMEREARHEEEERS
MBS BB EHE ST

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FExT FET

RMB AR 138,671 132,521
HK$ BT 403,291 200,903
541,962 333,424

The ranges of interest rates on the Group’s bank and

AEERTREMEE N & E W

other borrowings are as follows: T
2019 2018
% %

Secured bank loans BEIFRITERK

(notes a, b and ¢) (Mfsxa bkc) 5.00-566 6.31-6.65
Secured other loans (notes d and e) EEBEMER (HiEdXke) - 18.00-18.94

Unsecured other loans EEBEMER (MEIEI)
(notes f to ) 4.35-18.00 4.35-18.00
Secured bonds (note m) BHEBES (HiEm) 10.00 6-10
Unsecured bonds (note n) EIRFES (BfaEn) 2.00 - 6.00 -
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F

32. DEFERRED TAX LIABILITIES 32. EEBIEBEEE
The movements in deferred tax liabilities during the FENRERIBAEZESHNT
year are as follows:
Fair value
adjustments
arising from
Revaluation  acquisition  Accumulated Allowance
of investment of losses  Convertible for expected
property  subsidiaries  recognised bond  credit losses Total
i |
WEAR
Eff EEW 2R BHEE
RENE DAERB ZitER  TERES BRRRE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TAT TR TER TER TER TAL
Deferred tax liabilties at 1January 2018~ W=E—\F—A—HZ
BEREAR 28,046 28,948 (6,742) 1,448 (1579 50,121
Deferred tax charged/(credited) tothe ~ FAHE/ (5T A)
consolidated statement of profitorloss A EEREMEE
and other comprehensive income during WAk 2 EIER B
the year (note 11) (BizE11) 1772 (2,793) - (952) (114) (2,087)
Exchange realignment EiHE (1,175) (139) 821 - (96) (589)
Deferred tax liabiliies at 1 January 2019 R =F—-AE-A—-HZ
ERRBEE 28,643 26,016 (5,921) 4% (1,789) 47,445
Deferred tax charged/(credited) to the R/ (3t A)
consolidated statement of profitorloss ~ HAEHEREMZE
and other comprehensive income during WA R 2 BIERE
the year (note 11) (BzE) 1,530 (2,657) - (496) 242 (1,381)
Exchange realignment B RE (3,009) pLE] 107 - () (2,168)
Deferred tax liabilities at RZE-NEFTA
31 December 2019 =t-A2
ETREAR 27,164 24,102 (5.814) - (1,556) 43,89

No tax losses arising from the Group in Mainland
China (2018: HK$nil) that will expire in one to five
years for offsetting against future taxable profits.
Deferred tax assets have not been recognised
in respect of these losses as they have arisen in
subsidiaries that have been loss-making for some time
and it is not considered probable that taxable profits
will be available against which the tax losses can be
utilised.

REEN BN BN E £ 2 FIEEE
“E-N\F TET)AR-ELFR
REER R R RERBEH - HERZE
BIEBRRRENEEE RESHEBE
BhHREEEE-RERZHBAR
HLOR R 48 SR 0 ) AT PR AR I SR AR IR

B8
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

—F-AETZA=+-R
33. CONVERTIBLE BONDS 33. OBRES
The Group issued convertible bonds with a coupon REBRZZE—+FANHR—ZE
rate of 10% per annum at a total principal value of SE=ZF([EEHEEBANETERAESHA
HK$200,000,000 on 8 June 2017 to an independent %8 /200,000,000 T ZEHE R AFGE
third party (the “bondholder”). The convertible bonds 10% A EES - A R EE A B E
can be converted into 500,000,000 shares at the HiEA NEREBIRER04E T EREER
bondholder’s option at rate of HK$0.4 per share. /£500,000,0008% f% 15 ©
The convertible bonds comprise of liability component, B EEBIEAEIRS - #HIRS K
conversion component and early redemption option. R EEE IR SIS [ AR
The equity component is presented in equity heading BEBAEFEEIRNREY BRER -V FTERE
“convertible bond reserve”. The effective interest BEPHSHNERMNEREEFE13.42% o6&
rate of the liability component on initial recognition WA —_E—+EANBE-_ZT—N
is 13.42% per annum. Conversion may occur at FRATHEIEBERET - NESKE
any time between 8 June 2017 to 7 June 2019. If i BN - ENA+BHED-
the bonds have not been converted, they will be RAT A FER IR E N BB ARS8
redeemed on 7 June 2019. The Company may at ME R ARANESERESKEER
any time redeem the outstanding principal amount SR -EFRBEXFRESFFHAEAXN
of the bonds at face value together with the accrued BEI0%ZEE - MBREAER -
and unpaid coupon on the principal amount to be —hENB+BIH BT RIEE
redeemed. Coupon of 10% per annum will be paid SFEBEEHEMES (MF3E31) ©
semi-annually to the bondholder. The convertible
bonds have been matured on 7 June 2019. The
outstanding convertible bonds transfer to other
borrowing (note 31).
The movement of the equity component and liability FEXNABREEEN SR ESY N E
component of the convertible bonds for the year is set FEHNT
out below:
Liability Equity
component component Total
8RN EzHS st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET FTET FAT
At 1 January 2018 R-ZZE—N\FE—H—H 189,436 9,894 199,330
Effective interest charged BERA B 26,018 - 26,018
Interest payable JE A F) B (20,076) - (20,076)
At 31 December 2018 and R-ZZ—N\F
1 January 2019 TZA=t+T—BRK
—E—-NF—H—H 195,378 9,894 205,272
Effective interest charged BB BT 11,523 - 11,523
Interest payable A F B (8,658) - (8,658)
Mature of convertible bonds AR E S B H (198,243) (9,894) (208,137)

As at 31 December 2019, there was no outstanding
principal of the convertible bonds (2018:

HK$200,000,000).

R-ZB—hE+-_A=+—H HEX
EgzUBREFAB(ZE—N
£ : 200,000,0005 7T.) ©
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34,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

LEASE LIABILITIES

The Group’s lease liabilities arise from the lease of
properties of 4 to 20 years. Interest rate underlying for
the lease was from 6.48 to 7.00% per annum.

At 31 December 2019, the Group had lease liabilities
repayable as follows:

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—Z-NEt=A=+—F

HEESE

*XMHE-HEMRBZ2FFENT6.48%
27.00%2 -

R-Z—AE+-A=+—R A%
FERE Y RE S ENT

2019
Present value

of the Total
minimum minimum
lease lease
payments payments
REHAE RIEHEE
FTREE TR EE
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FAET
Within 1 year —FER 105,289 156,469
After 1 year but within 2 years —FEREMFA 88,803 142,649
After 2 years but within 5 years MEEBBRFRN 220,723 321,816
Over 5 years REUE 343,234 415,296
758,049 1,036,230
Less: total future interest expenses B ARRFE A B (278,181)
Present value of lease liabilities HEBERE 758,049

The Group has initially applied HKFRS 16 using the
modified retrospective approach and adjusted the
opening balances at 1 January 2019 to recognise
lease liabilities relating to leases which were previously
classified as operating leases under HKAS 17.
Comparative information as at 31 December 2018 has
not been restated. Further details on the impact of the
transition to HKFRS 16 are set out in note 2.

Lease obligations denominated in RMB was
approximately HK$691,507,000 as at 31 December
2019.

The Group does not face a significant liquidity risk
with regard to its lease liabilities. Lease liabilities are
monitored within the Group's treasury function.

AEBERRETEWEVTRAETR
HBRELENE 165 AR -ZT—N
F—HA— A ZHEHRIATER R Z ATiR
BERBGAEAFI7TROBEAKERE
ZHEEH I HERE - R-F—/\F
ToA=Z+T " HZEBERLEES -
ERBEEFEMBHmELENE 1652
FEZE-HHEBENME2

RZE-—NFE+_A=+—"H AR
Mt E 2 E & T4 A691,507,0008

ﬁo

AEEY ESEBEE R EMEEERERR
BHESER HERBNAEEEHR

B BIBIER
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—F-AETZA=+-R

35.

SHARE CAPITAL 35. B
Shares BR 14
2019 2018 2019 2018
Number Number
A R
‘000 ‘000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR’ T TET FET
Authorised: BT
Ordinary of share HK$0.10 SREEI0ETH
LiEi 8,000,000 8,000,000 800,000 800,000
Issued and fully paid: BEREIRBRRR:
Ordinary share of HK$0.10 each FREE.10BTTH
LR
At 1 January ®—HA—H 5,617,258 5,434,258 561,726 543,426
Issue of share upon subscription RREFROFETRR
new shares (note a) (MEa) 624,868 200,000 62,487 20,000
Cancellation of repurchased shares B E R G
(note b) (F3Eb) (17,000) (17,000) (1,700) (1,700)
6,225,126 5,617,258 622,513 561,726
Notes: P&
(a) On 12 April 2019, 624,867,599 ordinary shares () RZZE—NFEOA+Z=ZB KARFHA

of HK$0.23 each were issued at HK$0.185 per
subscription share as a result of the subscription
agreements dated 21 March 2019. The net
proceeds of the subscription, after deducting the
expenses payable by the Company, is approximately
HK$114,601,000 which was used by the Company
for the Group’s business development, investments,
acquisition, repayment of loans and general working
capital purpose. Details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 12 April 2019.

On 11 September 2018, 200,000,000 ordinary
shares of HK$0.10 each were issued at HK$0.3 per
subscription share as a result of the subscription
Agreements dated 27 April 2018. The net proceeds
of the subscription, after deducting the expenses
payable by the Company, is approximately
HK$60,000,000 which was used by the Company
for the Group’s business development, investments,
acquisition, repayment of loans and general working
capital purpose. Details of which were disclosed in
the Company’s announcement dated 11 September
2018.
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35.

36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE CAPITAL (continued)
Shares (continued)
Notes: (continued)

(b) On 31 May 2019, the Company cancelled
17,000,000 shares in respect of shares repurchase on
28 May 2018, 18 September 2018, 10 October 2018
and 19 October 2018.

On 6 April 2018, the Company cancelled 17,000,000
shares in respect of shares repurchase on 12
December 2017 and 13 December 2017.

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES

The Company operates two share option schemes
for the purpose of providing incentives and rewards
to eligible participants for their contribution to,
and continuing efforts to promote the interests of,
the Group. A share option scheme was adopted by
the Company on 23 May 2007 (“2007 Scheme”)
and terminated on 22 May 2017, and a new share
option scheme (“2017 Scheme”) was adopted by the
Company pursuant to a resolution passed on 9 June
2017 ("Adoption Date”). The 2017 Scheme, unless
otherwise cancelled or amended, will remain in force
for 10 years from the Adoption Date.

The maximum number of shares in respect of which
options may be granted under the 2017 Scheme and
under any other schemes of the Company must not in
aggregate exceed 10% of the total number of shares
in issue at the date of the passing of the resolution for
the adoption of the 2017 Scheme. The total number
of shares issued upon exercise of the options granted
to each eligible person in any 12-month period up
to and including the date of grant shall not exceed
1% of the shares in issue as at the date of grant. Any
further grant of share options in excess of this limit is
subject to shareholders’ approval in a general meeting.

35.

36.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—Z-NEt=A=+—F
A (%)
B (&)
MieE: (&)

(b) R-ZE—NAFERA=Z+—8 ARQA
MR- \FRAZF+N\B ==
—N\FhLATN\H ZZ—N\F+A
F+TARZZE-N\FE+ATNA#ETZ
Ji% 19 B8 2] 5% $517,000,000/% A% 15 °

RZZE—N\FNANH ARRFH
—E—+t+F+-A+ZBE-ET—+
F+ A+ =ZRETZBRDER T
17,000,000/% i% 17 °

B IR T &
RARIREMIBEBRESE 8ERHE
BERSHEELSANEEMEERMEBES
NREREEF IBHERREE - —
HEREFEN _ETLFRA-+T=
HEARBRM ([ ZEZtFE )X
R-ZE—+FRA-+ BRI KR
BRZZ—tFANB (THEMBEE])
MBRER —HEFEREE (=
T—tFFrE] ) ERABREN BRIEE
ERESHSIERIBR] — T — L F 58l
BEMBHRTI0FA—EER -

RIE—T—EFar 8 RRIFEAR UM
Hip st 8l e h 2 AR TS M 2 &%
SRNBE  EATFEBNEBIE
R Tt FFERAEREBEC#TT
B @EZ10% REERHBEH (R
BZB)AEA1R2ERBRERTEE?
RA LT Z BIRERITERRIT 2 R4
BT REANELBEHMERITRNZ
1% ° BB R 2 (B — PR B
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31 December 2019
—NF+=-A=+—8H
36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

Share options granted to a director, chief executive or
substantial shareholder of the Company, or to any of
their associates, are subject to approval in advance by
the independent non-executive directors. In addition,
any share options granted to a substantial shareholder
or an independent non-executive director of the
Company, or to any of their associates, in excess of
0.1% of the shares in issue of the Company or having
an aggregate value in excess of HK$5 million, within
any 12-month period, are subject to shareholders’

approval in advance in a general meeting.

A grant of options may not be made after inside
information has come to the knowledge of the
Company until it has been published. In particular,
no options may be granted during the period
commencing one month immediately preceding
the earlier of the date of the Board meeting for
the approval of the Company’'s results for any year,
half-year, quarterly or any other interim period
and the deadline for the Company to publish an
announcement of its results for any year, half-year,
quarterly or any other interim period. The period
during which an option may be exercised will be
determined by the Board in its absolute discretion,
save that no option may be exercised more than 10

years after it has been granted.

The subscription price of a share in respect of any
particular option granted under the 2017 Scheme shall
be such price as the Board in its absolute discretion
shall determine, save that such price must be at least
the higher of the official closing price of the shares as
stated in the Stock Exchange's daily quotations sheet
on the date of grant, the average of the official closing
prices of the shares as stated in the Stock Exchange’
s daily quotations sheets for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant and the

nominal value of a share.

Share options do not confer rights on the holders to

dividends or to vote at shareholders’ meetings.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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31 December 2019
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. EEMEE (5/)
The following share options were outstanding under FR [ - BT+ FEE 218 TR
the 2007 Scheme during the year: M ARITIE
2019 2018
Weighted Weighted
Average average
exercise exercise
price Number price Number
per share of options per share of options
ik B BRE I e
BRTEE 8B BROTEE &8
HK$ ‘000 HK$ '000
BT TR BT T
At 1 January R—A—H 0.436 198,000 0.669 345,860
Lapsed during the year FREY 0.436 (198,000) 0.982 (147,860)
At 31 December WtZA=t—H - - 0.436 198,000
The exercise prices and exercise periods of the share RIEFEHIR  RITFEERENTEEL
options outstanding as at the end of the reporting TEHT

period are as follows:

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT 197
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. N -
36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. BBIRFEEE (EF)
2019 —E-NhE
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grantof
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019 options®  share options share options ©
RZZ-hE RZB-hnE BRERL
SRERZNER -A-H EREH FRfTR FREH ER&¥ +=BZt-A BHY BRETES BREGTEEY
HKS per share
BRET
Directors
3
Mr. Ke Xionghan 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
B E 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000 - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - (4,000,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) -
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
[IEI/E:en 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
Mr. Ho Man Fai 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
WXBRE 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
12,000,000 - - - (12,000,000) -
Ex-directors ©
;ﬂg;m
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 300,000 - - = (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
TIBERE 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
Dr. Loke Yu 300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
BEMEL 300,000 - - - (300,000 - 141016 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
1,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) -
2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) -
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. BEIRMEE (H/)
2019 —E—hE
Number of share options
BREHA
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2019 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2019  options?  share options share options ©
RZZ-0E RZZ2-NE BRERL
SRERZLEH -B-H EREH ERTE FRIEH FR&¥ tZB=t-B BHY BRETES BRETEEY
HKS per share
BRAT
Other Employees
HibfEs
In aggregate 17,250,000 - - - (17,250,000 - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
st 17,250,000 - - - (17,250,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
23,000,000 - - - (23,000,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
57,500,000 - - - (5,750,000) -
Consultants
]
In aggregate 37,950,000 - - - (37,950,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
st 37,950,000 - - - (37,950,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
50,600,000 - - - (50,600,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
126,500,000 - - - (26,500,000) -
198,000,000 - - - (198,000,000) -
2018 —T—N\4F

Number of options

Exercise price*

Exercise period

FERR RSB IfEE> 171 BA
HK$
‘000 per share
Tk BB
59,400 0.436 01-07-2017 to 13-10-2019
01-07-2017213-10-2019
59,400 0.436 14-10-2017 to 13-10-2019
14-10-2017213-10-2019
79,200 0.436 14-10-2018 to 13-10-2019
14-10-2018£13-10-2019
198,000

The exercise price of the share options is subject to
adjustment in the case of rights or bonus issues, or
other similar changes in the Company'’s share capital.

* M SAL R B ITRA R RIRAE A
BUESHNIBERT BERENTTEE
AR -

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. BERMEETE (@)
2018 —E-N\F
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options®  share options share options ©/
RZZ-NE R-Z-NE BRERH
SHRERENER -B-H ERRY FRfTR FREH ER&¥ TZA=t-B A BRETES BRETEE"
HKS per share
BRET
Directors
£
Mr. Jiang Jianjun 1,830,000 - - - (1,830,000) - 2407-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
IERERE 915,000 - - - (915,000) - 240715 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
915,000 - - - (915,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
4,660,000 - - - (3,660,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Ke Xionghan 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
AR E 3,000,000 - - - - 3,000,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - - 4,000,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - - 10,000,000
Ms. Ho Wing Yan 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
[PEYS 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Ho Man Fai 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
WXBEE 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
18,660,000 - - - (5,660,000) 13,000,000
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. [ERRMELTEI (/)
2018 —ZT-)N\F
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options @ share options share options ©
RZZ-NE R-Z-NE BRERH
SRERZNER -B-H FERRH FRfTl FREH ER%¥ TZA=t-B A BRETES BRETEE"
HKS per share
BRET
Ex-directors
HESC
Mr. Jiang Jiancheng 10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
TEREE 5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000) - 240715 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
5,000,000 - - - (5,000,000 - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
21,000,000 - - - (21,000,000) -
Ms. Zhang Yujie 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
NEART 3,000,000 - - - (3,000,000 - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
4,000,000 - - - (4,000,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
10,000,000 - - - (10,000,000) -
Dr. Loke Yu 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
EEmELT 250,000 - - - (250,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 240715 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - - 300,000  14-10-16 14-10-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - - 400,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (1,000,000) 1,000,000
Mr. Li Xiaofeng 500,000 - - - (500,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
Rgle it 250,000 - - - (250,000 - 0715 2407-16-23-07-18 1.030
250,000 - - - (250,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
300,000 - - - (300,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
400,000 - - - (400,000) - 14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
2,000,000 - - - (2,000,000) -
35,000,000 - - - (34,000,000) 1,000,000

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT 2,01
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. BEIRMEETE (@)
2018 —E-N\F
Number of share options
BREHE
Date of
At Granted Exercised Cancelled Lapsed At grant of
1 January during during during during 31 December  share Exercise period of Exercise price of
Name or category of participant 2018 the Year the Year the Year the Year 2018  options®  share options share options ©/
RZZ-NE R-Z-NE BRERH
SHRERENER -B-H ERRY FRfTR FREH ER&¥ TZA=t-B A BRETES BRETEE"
HKS per share
BRET
Other Employees
HibfES
In aggregate 4,100,000 - - - (4,100,000) - 2407-15 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
it 2,050,000 - - - (2,050,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
2,050,000 - - - (2,050,000 - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
17,250,000 - - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
17,250,000 - - - - 17,250,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
23,000,000 - - - - 23,000,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
65,700,000 - - - (8,200,000) 57,500,000
Consultants
ER
In aggregate 50,000,000 - - - (50,000,000) - 240715 24-07-15-23-07-18 1.030
it 25,000,000 - - - (25,000,000) - 240715 24-07-16 - 23-07-18 1.030
25,000,000 - - - (25,000,000) - 24-07-15 24-07-17 - 23-07-18 1.030
37,950,000 - - - - 37,950,000  14-10-16 01-07-17 - 13-10-19 0.436
37,950,000 - - - - 37,950,000  14-10-16 14-10-17-13-10-19 0.436
50,600,000 - - - - 50,600,000  14-10-16 14-10-18 - 13-10-19 0.436
226,500,000 - - - (100,000,000 126,500,000
345,860,000 - - - (147,860,000) 198,000,000
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36.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued)

During the year ended 31 December 2019, all share
options have been lapsed and no new addition of
share options.

The Group recognised a share option expense of
HK$1,063,000 during the year ended 31 December
2018.

The fair value of equity-settled share options during
the year was estimated as at the date of grant, using
a binomial model, taking into account the terms and
conditions upon which the options were granted. The
following table lists the inputs to the model used:

36.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—Z-NEt=A=+—F
BRAERTE (&)
BE_ZE—NF+A=+—HILHF
ETAEERED KR E W EIEER
1 o

REBREE-_ZT—N\F+-_A=1+—
B IFF E w2 B I F 21,063,00008
7T|:O

FR-BRESGEBREALERRLA
A - HAENEL G BEEE
PR R D 15 R e Mk 1 - TR EDIFT A
BANBIRER

2016

Grant date

REBH

14-10-2016

Dividend yield (%) &% B R (%) -

Expected volatility (%) T8 HA IR 18 (%) 58

Historical volatility (%) JE 2K 18 (%) 58

Risk-free interest rate (%) £ 353 K = (%) 0.58

Expected life of options (years) B ETEHEE (F) 3
Weighted average share price MEFEIE (FRABTT)

(HK$ per share) 0.436

The expected life of the options is based on the
historical data over the past three years and is not
necessarily indicative of the exercise patterns that may
occur. The expected volatility reflects the assumption
that the historical volatility is indicative of future
trends, which may also not necessarily be the actual
outcome.

No other feature of the options granted was
incorporated into the measurement of fair value.

BRENTERFHREEE=FNESL
BEAE ERBEITERAMNER
T8 HYR 0 S R JE SE R MR A FE R R SR B 25
MRE ETRDEERGER

R E R E R AR A E
SEES

PELAREXEEZRERD A
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31 December 2019
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36. SHARE OPTION SCHEMES (continued) 36. BERRMESE (&)
At the year ended 31 December 2018, the Company HE_-Z —)\iqt B=+—8I1=
had 198,000,000 share options outstanding B AANFIR_EE+FHE B TKRIT
under the 2007 Scheme. The exercise in full of @a’\j,ﬁﬁﬁﬁgz%1gglooolooof’ﬁ AR T
the outstanding share options would, under the WEERNERBT BEITEEKITEE
present capital structure of the Company, result B% 7 7% = B AR N 7] #£77198,000,000/%
in the issue of 198,000,000 additional ordinary 8 AN @ AR - BB A IR Z19,800,0000% JT
shares of the Company and additional share & B& 19 % (B66,528,00078 7T ( & FO B 3%
capital of HK$19,800,000 and share premium of TR e

HK$66,528,000 (before issue expenses).

The total number of shares available for issue under —E L FHBEBE N HEETIIRGE
the 2017 Scheme is 509,989,000 representing 27 /5509,989,000% * HHE AN A A AN
approximately 8.2% of the Company as at the date of FIRHHZ#498.2%

this annual report.

37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES 37. HEMBRQHE
(@  On 20 May 2019, the Group entered into a @ RZE-NAFAA=-+H XK
sale and purchase agreement to disposal of its EFEIIVESEWME A —EB
equity interest in Zhongshan Jiangluo Industrial VE=ZA([EF])EEAER
Co., Limited to an independent third party Zhongshan Jiangluo Industrial
(the “Purchaser”) for cash consideration of Co., Limitedz i RENREA
RMB59,500,000 (equivalent to approximately A R #59,500,0007T (& R4
HK$67,717,000). The disposal was completed 67,717,000/ 7T) 2N EER =
on 23 May 2019. E-NFREA-+t=B=xmk-
Summary of the effects of the disposal is as HESEMBMT :
follows:
Acquiree’s
carrying
amount and
fair value
WL 2
Consideration: RE: REERAAE
HK$'000
FHET
Total consideration BRE 67,717
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37.

DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

(a)

(continued)

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which

control was lost

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019
—E-AE+ZA=1+—H
37. HENBAR (&)
@ (&)
KREZHEZEEREBES W

HK$'000
FHET
Current assets REBEE
Other receivables H b fE U K18 79,231
Cash and cash equivalents RekREeFED 4
Current liabilities RBAEE
Other payables H b fE T 5018 (13,692)
Net assets disposed FILEEEFRE 65,543
Release of exchange difference #A £ B # [o] [& 7 =58
upon disposal 825
Release of non-controlling A H 5 B ]
interests (“NCI") JE¥E R AE TS
upon disposal ([FEPERREZ]) (1,147)
65,227

Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HE— BB QR 2z Wi

2019

HK$'000

FHET

Consideration received KRB 67,717
Net assets disposed FIHEEEFE (65,543)

Release of exchange difference F2 & Bs 8 [a] (& =58

upon disposal (825)
Release of NCI upon disposal 72 {65 I 8 [B FE 128 I i 2 1,141
Gain on disposal &z s 2,490
FEEAREEXEEEZERERAA

2019 &£3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37. HEMBAT (&)
(@)  (continued) @@ (&)
Net cash inflow from disposal of a HE—RBHBATRZHESRAT
subsidiary 2
2019
HK$'000
FAET
Consideration received in cash AR & MBS EEY
and cash equivalents WER Z KB 67,717
Less: cash and cash equivalents J& : FTH &R & &
disposed of ReFEED (4)
67,713
(b) On 27 April 2018, the Group entered into a (b) R-ZE-NFEFWMA=-_++8"

sale and purchase agreement to disposal of
its 100% equity interest in Fujian Fang Run
Construction Company Group Limited (“FJFR")
to an independent third party (the “Purchaser”)
for cash consideration of RMB50,000,000
(equivalent to approximately HK$61,950,000).
The disposal was completed on 4 May 2018.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

37. LEMBAE (&)

(continued) by  (#&)
Summary of the effects of the disposal is as HESEMEBMT :
follows:
Consideration: RIE:
HK$'000
FTAT
Total consideration wRE 61,950

Analysis of assets and liabilities over which

control was lost

REEHEC2EERAGEIN

HK$'000
FHET
Non-current assets FRBEE
Goodwill EES 46,920
Property, plant and equipment M HE R 8,699
Current assets REBEE
Contract assets BREE 78,667
Other receivables H fth f& UK IR 24,946
Cash and cash equivalents RekREFEY 2,612
Current liabilities REBEE
Trade payables JEFTE S BRNK (77,074)
Other payables H A & < R IR (12,406)
Tax payables e Bi1E (1,731)
Net assets disposed FrHE&EESE 70,633
Release of exchange difference B B RS [l [ H Z R
upon disposal (6,611)
Release of non-controlling interests A H 6 B 18 [ SRR R B 2
(“NCI") upon disposal ([FEERREZ ) (11,619)
52,403

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
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31 December 2019
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37. DISPOSAL OF SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 37.

(b)  (continued)
Gain on disposal of a subsidiary

HERBAT (&)
by  (#)
HE—EHEQ Rz EE

2018

HK$'000

FHET

Consideration received B E 61,950

Net assets disposed FrtEEEFE (70,633)
Release of exchange difference N E P

upon disposal 6,611

Release of NCI upon disposal At 5 B 188 [ FE 4R AR A 25 11,619

Gain on disposal & 2 as 9,547

Net cash inflow from disposal of

HEMBRARZRERAFHE

subsidiaries

2018
HK$'000
THETT

Consideration received in B4 MEITEBWNE Y R E
cash and bank balance 61,950
Less: cash and bank balance disposed of & : FTH &R & K IE1T 4% (2,612)
59,338

38. PLEDGE OF ASSETS 38.

Details of the Group’s bank loans, which are secured
by the assets of the Group, are included in notes 28
and 31, respectively to the financial statements.

39. OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS 39.

The Group leases certain properties under operating
lease arrangements. Leases for properties are
negotiated for terms ranging from one to five years.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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39.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

OPERATING LEASE ARRANGEMENTS (continued)
As Lessees

At 31 December 2018, the Group had total future
minimum lease payments under non-cancellable
operating leases falling due as follows:

39.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—ZE-nE+=A=1+—A
REHERHE(E)
ER AT A
RZFE-—N\F+ZA=+—H Xr&E
HRAR T AT BH A & AV B S TR SRR
MeBBENT:

2018
HK$'000
TAT

—FR
E_EERF
BEAF

Within one year
In the second to fifth years
Beyond five years

As Lessors

At 31 December 2019 and 2018, the Group has
contracted with tenants for the following future
minimum lease payments:

225,413
446,799
436,329

1,108,541

e HiHE A
KR-B-AER-F-NF+=A
=B ARBEEFRUTARR
EAE T

2019 2018

HK$'000 HK$'000

FET FAET

Within one year —F A 231,518 233,620
In the second to fifth years BE_EZERF 279,760 261,262
Beyond five years BARF 8,603 12,319
519,881 507,201

Operating lease payments represent rentals payable by
the Group for certain of its office properties. Leases
are negotiated for an average term from two to three
years and rentals are fixed over the lease terms and do
not include contingent rentals.

REHENFTEARERESETHAE
MERNZEE HENTHEBH D
ARME=F AHEXEBARNEE T
BRI AEE-

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019
—F-hF+-A=+-A
40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES
(@) Transactions with related parties and
connected transactions
(i) The Group's bank loans of HK$78,761,000
(2018: HK$69,449,000 consisted of two
bank loans) consisted of two bank loans.

As at 31 December 2018, the bank loan
of HK$29,601,000 were guaranteed by
Shenzhen Jianlai Industrial Co., Ltd. ("%
YHEREEBRAR"), arelated party
of the Group, Mr. Jiang lJianjun, the
director of the Group, the Company and
independent third parties.

The bank loan of HK$78,253,000 (2018:
HK$39,848,000) was guaranteed by the
investment property of the Company,
Mr. Jiang Jianjun and his wife.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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EXEBLTRE RER

(a)

AREB®MRIITE R
78,761,000 L (= &
— N\ :69,449,000/%8
L BEMERITER) B
EMERITER

RZE—-—NF+ A
=+ —HB HBITEX
29,601,000/8 7T Jh A A &
E R R T IR E
ERARAEEEST
BEXE AR RBL
FE=FEHER-

R 17 E 378,253,000/ 7T

—Z— 14 139,848,000
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND
BALANCES (continued)

(a)

Transactions with related parties and
connected transactions (continued)

(ii)

On 10 June 2019, the Company
renewed the Framework Agreement
with the supplier to the supply of the
products. Beidahuang Marketing Co.
is a connected person of the Company
at the subsidiary level. The Supplier is
the subsidiary of Beidahuang Marketing
Co., which is also a connected person
of the Company at the subsidiary
level. Therefore, the transactions
contemplated under the Framework
Agreement constitute continuing
connected transactions for the
Company. The aggregated annual caps
for transactions contemplated under
the Framework Agreement for each of
the three years ending 31 December
2019, 2020 and 2021 are RMB150
million, RMB150 million and RMB150
million respectively. During the year
ended 31 December 2019, there was a
total purchase of staple food amounting
RMB74,974,000.

In addition to the purchase of staple
food from Beidahuang Marketing Co.,
the Company has paid interest expenses
HK$1,477,000 during the year ended 31
December 2019 (2018: HK$1,314,000)
in relation to other borrowings.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

40. EXBEBAIXRZREER (HE)

(a)

EEBLETZREREBE

X% (&)

iy MZFE-hEXA+AH
K% B B R AR AT AE

BHE AHEER I

EHEKRMARA A
BARRNAH B AR EED
BEALT HERAILRX
o & AR 1D B IR A &) 89 Bt
B AR mdb R %
=l S YNSIDIVE YNNG L)
BAREERBEEAL
E - fER R 1R T
TR SBERAR AW
RERERS - BHE_T
—NF ZTEZEFRZ
T - —HF+_-_A=1+—
BIE=BFE&F ER
MBEETHRETRZH
BRFEELERDAIABAR
#150,000,0007T * A R #&
150,000,0007T &2 A R ¥
150,000,000 C & & =&
—hF+=ZA=+—HLt
FE TRMNAHER
B ANRET4974,000 JTe

BHE-ZE-—hhF+=A
=+—HLEFE KM
FE RN AR RE
BERMIN AAFIEH
HEEXHNMERAX
1,477,000 7L (ZZE—N
11,314,000/ 71) °
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

R

31 December 2019
—E-hF+=ZA=+—H

40. MATERIAL RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS AND

BALANCES (continued)

40. Ek@ﬂyﬁﬁﬁﬁgﬁnnﬁ%(nﬁ)

(b) Outstanding balances with related parties: (b) RS 2 MR BB
2019 2018
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
gz FET FET
Due to related party PEASRAESE 5 FE
Mr. Jiang Jianjun TRELA (i) 6,639 12,655
Notes: B s -
) A former director and shareholder of the (i) NABIRIESE RIFAARE -
Company.
The balances with other related parties are EAE M AR S 2 AR R EER
unsecured, interest free and have no fixed ﬁ%&ﬁﬁlmﬁ?xﬁﬁ
terms of repayment.
() Compensation of key management (0 FEEBABZHFM

personnel

2019 2018

HK$000 HK$'000

FET FHET

Short term employee benefits %2 #{& B &7 3,477 4,823

Post-employment benefits BBk 12 12 A1 48 55

Equity-settled share option MRS B AR AE R 2

expense - 74
Total compensation paid to SNTEEEEAB ZFHMNERE

key management personnel 3,525 4,952

Further details of directors’ emoluments are
included in note 9 to the consolidated financial
statements.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY
The carrying amounts of each of the categories of

41.

REHNEINEMIA
RBEHRR SERTAROS A

financial instruments as at the end of the reporting T
period are as follows:
Financial assets SRIEE
2019 2018
Financial Financial
assets at fair assets at fair
value through  value through
profit or loss profit or loss
EBER FiRER
BRARESNE RAAEIR
MERMEE e A E
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
B aE FERT FAET
Financial assets at fair value FREREANE
through profit or loss FIBRH R RLE B 17 33,857 27,355
2019 2018
Financial Financial
assets at assets at
amortised amortised
cost cost
g F RE
BRI BR 2 PRZRFI|BR 2
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000
P & THET TET
Trade receivables FEUE Z BR X 25 96,681 130,862
Financial assets included in FTATRRFIA
prepayments, deposits and other e REMEK
receivables HEZERMEE 26 362,296 479,353
Loan receivables FEUWE 18 360,038 376,429
Pledged deposits BHERER 27 47,777 83,584
Cash and cash equivalents HAekReEEY 27 79,995 37,277
946,787 1,107,505

PELAREXEEZRERD A

2019 &£3§



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

41.

42,

—NEF+=-A=1+—~H
FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS BY CATEGORY 41.

(continued)

BERNESHNEMT A (&)

Financial liabilities e =K
2019 2018
Financial Financial
liabilities liabilities
at amortised at amortised
cost cost
BB A RE SRR
SRz 1l
NN TRAE
Notes HK$’'000 HK$'000
i TET TET
Trade and bills payables BN E SRR RENFE 28 173,506 78,694

Financial liabilities included S E A R I K

in other payables and accruals EitEAzeMAE 29 172,324 142,628
Contract liabilities ANEE 30 85,200 51,471
Bank and other borrowings RITRHEMEE 31 541,962 333,424
Bank overdraft RITEY 27 = 5,032
Due to related party & 1+ i Bt 40 6,639 12,655
Convertible bonds AR R 33 - 195,378
Lease liabilities HEAR 34 758,049 -
1,737,680 819,282

The carrying amounts of the above balances
approximate to their fair values.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES

The Group's principal financial instruments comprise
bank and other borrowings, amounts due to related
party, lease liabilities and cash and cash equivalents.
The main purpose of these financial instruments is to
raise finance for the Group’s operations. The Group
has various other financial assets and liabilities such
as trade receivables and trade payables, which arise
directly from its operations.

The main risks arising from the Group's financial
instruments are interest rate risk, foreign currency risk,
credit risk and liquidity risk. The board of directors
reviews and agrees policies for managing each of
these risks and they are summarised below.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
0B R M

31 December 2019

—E-NF+=A=1+—8

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42. shERBEECEERBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk FESEL

The Group's interest rate risk arises primarily from REBNMZRRETERETEEE-
interest-bearing borrowings. Borrowings issued at RZENTEEEENEEDREARER
variable rates and at fixed rates expose the Group to HHRESEMNREAREALEFERER
cash flow interest rate risk and fair value interest rate f& o

risk respectively.

The Group's interest rate profile as monitored by EEEBERAERNMNRBERHNTX
management is set out in (i) below. (i) °
(1) Interest rate profile (i) VB =
The following table details the interest rate TREMBEPARAEREEN
profile of the Group’s borrowings at the end of F |0

the reporting period:

2019 2018
Effective Effective
interest rate interest rate
pa. % HK$'000 0a. % HK$'000
L EIES BRERNE
% TET % TR
Variable rate borrowings: ¥ EMEE
Bank loans-secured RITER-FER 5.00-5.66 78,761 6.31-6.65 69,449
Other loans-secured HthER-FHEA - - 18.00-18.94 22,485
Other loans-unsecured HthER - EER 4.35-18.00 271,910  4.35-18.00 48,587
Secured bonds FERES 10.00 109,000 6.00-10.00 192,903
Unsecured bonds BEEARES 2.00-6.00 82,291 - -
At 31 December 2019, it is estimated that a R-ZE—hhF+=-_A=+—8"
general increase/decrease of 50 basis points HETEFIEREZE EAH TS50
in interest rates, with all other variables held RES MAEHMEERFEDT
constant, would have decreased/increased the BENBRT AEBERBIZ G
Group's profit after tax and retained profits FI R AR BB 3 FI A 8k 48 0 49
by approximately HK$17,534,000 (2018: 17,534,000/ 7T (ZF — )\ F
HK$7,026,000). 7,026,000/ 7T) °

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT 715
2019 &£3§
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

42.

—NE+=A=+—A

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND

POLICIES (continued)

Interest rate risk (continued)

) Interest rate profile (continued)
The sensitivity analysis above indicates the
instantaneous change in the Group’s profit
after tax and retained profits that would arise
assuming that the change in interest rates had
occurred at the end of the reporting period and
had been applied to the exposure to interest
rate risk for non-derivative financial instruments
in existence at that date. The analysis is
performed on the same basis for 2018.

Foreign currency risk

The Group's businesses are located in Mainland China
and all transactions are conducted in RMB. Most of
the Group's assets and liabilities are denominated in
RMB, except for certain bank balances denominated
in Hong Kong dollars (“HKD") and United States
dollars (“USD"). The Group has not hedged its foreign
exchange rate risk.

The Group currently does not expect any significant
movements in the exchange rate of USD to HKD and it
is mainly exposed to the effects of fluctuation in RMB.
The Group currently does not have a foreign currency
hedging policy, however, the management monitors
the foreign exchange exposure and will consider
hedging significant foreign currently exposure should
the need arise.
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42,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk

The Group's credit risk is primarily attributable to
trade receivables, deposits and other receivables,
loan receivables, pledged deposits and cash and cash
equivalents.

Trade receivables

The Group applies the simplified approach to provide
for expected credit losses prescribed by HKFRS 9,
which permits the use of the lifetime expected credit
loss provision for all trade receivables. To measure the
expected credit losses, trade receivables have been
grouped based on shared credit risk characteristics.
The Group has performed historical analysis and
identified the key economic variables impacting credit
risk and expected credit loss. It considers available
reasonable and supportive forwarding-looking
information.

In order to minimise the credit risk, the management
of the Group has delegated a team responsible for
determination of credit limits, credit approvals and
other monitoring procedures to ensure that follow-up
action is taken to recover overdue debts. In addition,
the Group reviews the recoverable amount of each
individual debt at the end of the reporting period to
ensure that adequate impairment losses are made for
irrecoverable amounts. In this regard, the directors of
the Company consider that the Group’s credit risk is
significantly reduced.

The Group’'s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 97% (2018: 93%) of the
total financial assets as at 31 December 2019.
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B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS R R M AT

31 December 2019
—F-AETZA=+-R

42,

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 2. chEREECEERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERK (&)
Trade receivables (continued) /f&f//yf?g BES (4&)
Approximately 79% and 73% of total trade —hErR-_ZE—NE+_A4
receivables outstanding at 31 December 2019 and ;—1—— HARESZEWE SERBEEEL
2018 were due from top 5 trade receivables which 79% K 73% T ER A ANEWE SEER
exposed the Group to concentration of credit risk. WAEE EERBREH -
Within 31to Over
As at 1 January, 2019 Current 30 days 120 days 120 days Total
R=ZB-N&-H-H K 30HA  ME108  120BME st
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate BHEEBEX 1.59% 0.02% 4.01% 8.32% 1.95%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) BEEE (AL 94,417 25,787 1372 11,884 133,460
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) 2HEHEEEE (TAT) (1,500) (54) (55) (989) (2,598)
92,917 25,733 1317 10,895 130,862
Within 31to Over
As at 31 December, 2019 Current 30 days 120 days 120 days Total
RZB-NE+=A=1+-H IR 30BA  31Z1208  120A5A L st
Expected credit loss (“ECL") rate HHEEERX 173% 1.70% 1.85% 49.53% 18.63%
Gross carrying amount (HK$'000) FREEE (AL 16,329 22,265 38,298 41,922 118,814
Lifetime ECL (HK$'000) LHRBEERRE (TAT) (282) (378) (707) (20,766) (22,133)
16,047 21,887 37,591 21,156 96,68

Loan and other receivables

In determining the ECL of the Group’s loan receivables
and other receivables the management assessed the
expected losses individually by estimation based on
general economic conditions of the relevant industry
in which the debtors operate, value of any pledged
assets, financial position of the debtors and an
assessment of both the current as well as the forecast
direction of conditions at the reporting date.

The Group’s concentration of credit risk by
geographical locations is mainly in PRC, which
accounted for approximately 99% (2018: 100%) of
the total financial assets as at 31 December 2019.
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42.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Loan and other receivables (continued)

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—E-nEFE+=ZA=+—H

42. TREREEBERBE (&)

FERRE (&)
JEW B R A b JEW R ()

As as 31 December 2019
R-ZE-hAF+=-B=+—H

Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-KE FEE FEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL FEr FEx FET
Loan receivables, gross R E T EzE 384,004 - - 384,004
Less: Lifetime ECL on loan receivables i : JEUREF 2 & Hf
BHEEER (23,966) - - (23,966)
Loan receivables, net R EF T 360,038 - - 360,038
Movements for ECL of loan receivables are as follows: EWEFEHREESEEEH T
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
E-KE EoRR FEE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TEL TET FTET TET
At 1 January 2018 RZE-N\F—-H—H 2,197 - - 2,197
Allowance for ECL on loan receivables [ENE 7 EE(EE
EBEEE 2,323 - - 2,323
At 31 December 2018 and RZZ—\F
1 January 2019 TZA=T-BR
—E-NF—A—H 4,520 - - 4,520
Allowance for ECL on loan receivables [ E 7 BE(EE
EBEEE 19,610 - - 19,610
Exchange realignment I 51 8% (164) - - (164)
As at 31 December 2019 R-Z—N%F
+-A=1+-H 23,966 - - 23,966
FEIEATELXEEZERERA T

2019 &£3§



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019
—E-hF+=ZA=+—H

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42. SR EREEBEEREE (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued) EERK (&
Loan and Other receivables (continued) JENE SN B EW ST (4E)
As as 31 December 2019
R-ZE-hAE+=-B=+—H
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-RE FRE F=RE @t
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FTET FTET TAET
Other receivables, gross Hi R as8 372,063 - 134,148 506,211
Less: Lifetime ECL on other B A R IR 2
receivables FHEBEERE (9,767) - (134,148) (143,915)
Other receivables, net Hith U sRIEF 58 362,296 - - 362,296
Movements for ECL of other receivables are as follows: Hip el IBB =S EEEEHMmT
Stage 1 Stage 2 Stage 3 Total
F-BE g 23 ERE Foh
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FET FTET FAT
1 January 2018 RZE-N\E—H—H 3,756 - - 3,756
Allowance for ECL on other H i R 2 TEE
receivables EEEERE 2,784 - - 2,784
Exchange realignment P R 118 - - 118
At 31 December 2018 and -\
1 January 2019 TZA=T-Bk
—E-NF—-A—H 6,658 - - 6,658
Allowance for ECL on other Hi e U 58 2 A E
receivables EEBBEER 3,425 - 135,276 138,701
Exchange realignment [ 51 8% (316) - (1,128) (1,444)
As at 31 December 2019 RZZ—N%F
+-A=1+-H 9,767 - 134,148 143,915
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42,

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Credit risk (continued)

Loan and other receivables (continued)

Loan and other receivables are categorised into the
following stages by the Group:

Stage 1

Loan and other receivables have not experienced a
significant increase in credit risk since origination and
impairment recognised on the basis of 12 months ECL
(12-month ECLs).

Stage 2

Loan and other receivables to customers have
experienced a significant increase in credit risk since
origination and impairment is recognised on the basis
of lifetime ECL (Lifetime ECLs non credit-impaired).

Stage 3

Loan and other receivables that are in default and
considered credit impaired (Lifetime ECLs credit
impaired).

In assessing whether the credit risk of loan and other
receivables has increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Group compares the risk of default
occurring on the loan and other receivables assessed
at the reporting date with that assessed at the date
of initial recognition. In making this reassessment, the
Group considers that a default event occurs when (i)
the borrower is unlikely to pay its credit obligations to
the Group in full, without recourse by the Group to
actions such as realising security (if any is held); or (ii)
the financial asset is past due for more than 90 days.
The Group considers both quantitative and qualitative
information that is reasonable and supportable,
including historical experience and forwardlooking
information that is available without undue cost or
effort.

42.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
BRI

31 December 2019

—F-hF+-A=+-A

42. FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)
Credit risk (continued)
Loan and other receivables (continued)
In particular, the following information is taken into
account when assessing whether credit risk has
increased significantly since initial recognition:

- an actual or expected significant deterioration
in loan and other receivables’ external or
internal credit rating (if available);

- existing or forecast changes in the
technological, market, economic or legal
environment that have a significant adverse
effect on the debtor’s ability to meet its
obligation to the Group; and

- the financial asset is past due.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 42, sRiEREECEEZEREBEK (&)
POLICIES (continued)
Liquidity risk REES R
The Group monitors its risk to a shortage of funds REFFBEEEREIRE T AR
using a recurring liquidity planning tool. This tool SEREKR - ZTAGELHITARS
considers the maturity of both its financial instruments BEE (WEWE 5B % H b fE Kk
and financial assets (e.g., trade and other receivables) H) W EBESEENEEELANIRS
and projected cash flows from operations. o
The Group’s objective is to maintain a balance REF 7 BEAERETERLEAME
between continuity of funding and flexibility through BERLEELNIEEEREET M-
the use of bank loans and other interest-bearing loans.
The maturity profile of the Group's financial liabilities MREREHIR  REEERD ET41B KA,
as at the end of the reporting period, based on the RNZzemBaE 5 RINT:
contractual undiscounted payments, is as follows:
2019 2018
Within 1to Over Within Tto
1year  5years 5 years Total 1 year 2 years Total
—-£n -Z@F BEIF Bt —FA —ZE@E G
HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
TEx TEx TEx TEx TExr  TEx  TER
Trade and hills payables ERESRARENER 173,506 - - 173506 78,694 - 78,6%
Finandial liabilities included in STAEMEFUER
other payables and accruals [ ERSRBE 172,324 - - 172324 142,628 - 142,628
Contract liabilities ahaf 85,200 - - 85200 51471 - 51471
Bank and other borrowings BRITREAMEE 541,962 - - 541962 333424 - 33342
Bank overdraft RITEX - - - - 5,032 - 5,032
Due to related party [ERERE 7 SR 6,639 - - 6,639 12,655 - 12,655
Convertible bonds HRRES - - - - 195378 - 195378
Lease liabilities HERE 105289 309,526 343,234 758,049 - - -
1,084,920 309,526 343,234 1,737,680 819,282 - 819,282
Capital management EXRER

The primary objectives of the Group’s capital
management are to safeguard the Group’s ability to
continue as a going concern and to maintain healthy
capital ratios in order to support its business and
maximise shareholders’ value.

AEBEANEENEREGR SBEAEN
SERERELENRS REFRR
MEARLR AXHEXBER FE
RAMBREE-

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Capital management (continued)

The Group manages its capital structure and makes
adjustments to it in light of changes in economic
conditions and the risk characteristics of the
underlying assets. To maintain or adjust the capital
structure, the Group may adjust the dividend payment
to shareholders, return capital to shareholders or issue
new shares. The Group is not subject to any externally
imposed capital requirements. No changes were made
in the objectives, policies or processes for managing
capital during the years ended 31 December 2019 and
31 December 2018.

The Group monitors capital using a gearing ratio,
which is net debt divided by the capital plus net debt.
The Group’s policy is to maintain an optimal capital
structure which reduces cost of capital. Net debt
includes trade and bills payables, other payables and
accruals, bank and other borrowings, amounts due to
related party, bank overdraft, and convertible bonds
less cash and cash equivalents and pledged deposits.
Capital includes equity attributable to owners of
the parent. The gearing ratios as at the end of the
reporting periods were as follows:

42.

TREAREEBRERBE (&)

EXERE (&)
AEBERBEEBANES R EWEE
ZEREE EREENGEEIAIEHT
B REFIHABELRGER N&EA
EEHERREE REREREAXK
AT RTIR o AN S B 3 A A a] S S e AN
ZERBREMR -BE-_FT-NEF+=
A=+—BEkR=-F-N\E+-A=1—
BIEFER AEETEFREEIEE
AZBR BERIERF-

AEBNEERBLE (BHFHERINA
BANMER ) S EABR - AEE
MR BEFRENERRE BIRE
AR B FABREENE SRR
ENRE EtENRBERESER:
RITREMEE BRI 508 ]
TBEXURABRERES  WHERE M
ReFEYReERTFR -EXEREE
NRAFEEAEIEEGD - RNMEHK B
ERELERINT:

2019 2018

HK$000 HK$'000

FExT FET

Bank and other borrowings BT MEMEER 541,962 333,424
Bank overdraft RITEX = 5,032
Trade and bills payables JETE SRR R ENRE 173,506 244,915
Other payables and accruals HibhEMRIBEREETE R 172,324 142,628
Due to related party JE Y B B 5 SRR 6,639 12,655
Convertible bonds Al I 1B 5 = 195,378
Lease liabilities HEAG 758,049 -
Less: Cash and cash equivalents R e R FEY (79,995) (37,277)
Pledged deposits B FER (47,777) (83,584)

Net debt FES 1,524,708 813,171
Capital [N 1,229,337 1,459,009
Capital and net debt BEARRER FHE 2,754,045 2,272,180
Gearing ratio BEABHEE 55% 36%

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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TREREEBRERBE (&)

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND
POLICIES (continued)

Fair value measurement

Inputs to valuation techniques used to measure the
Group's financial assets at fair value through profit or
loss had been categorised as level 1 and level 3 within
the fair value hierarchy which is defined as follows:

o Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for
identical assets or liabilities (Level 1).

42.

o Inputs other than quoted prices included within
Level 1 that are observable for the asset or
liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (Level 2).

o Inputs for the asset or liability that are not
based on observable market data (that is,
unobservable inputs) (Level 3).

The financial assets and liabilities measured at fair
value in the consolidated statement of financial
position are grouped into the fair value hierarchy as

DNAEFE
AEAEBFERESRAAEIRNS
BMEEMEAMNGERN & ABIRE
DNABEBRTIRE—BRE=H »
REBREEMT:

MHREESLEERERT ISR
B (REHE) (F—H) -

bR — AR FT B FE A SR1E LASNIL AT
HEEXABEEE (BIER) M
& (AR B ER) BRaE A SR
(B -

WHERABEMSHENEE
FRE 2B AR (BT AIEE
BABIE) (£=/4) °

REEBMBIMAKRFREANETENS
MEENRBBEIRUATARERER:

follows:
2019 2018
Carrying Fair Carrying Fair
amount value amount value
RESE ARE kRt AL
Financial liabilities tREE
Convertible bonds AR ES - - 195,378 199,285
2019
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
F—1R EZR E=4 @t
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TERT TER TER TER
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at fair value BREZEANE
through profit or loss SRR S REE 33,857 - - 33,857
2018
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3
F—1% F- E=R
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 Total
TAET TET FTET @it
Financial assets CREE
Financial assets at fair value BREZEALE
through profit or loss TGRS REE 27,355 = = 27,355

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§
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42.

FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT OBJECTIVES AND 2. chEREECEERBEK(E)
POLICIES (continued)
Fair value measurement (continued) NABEETE (&)
Some of the Group's financial assets are measured AREFBETERHEENZSHEHRIEN
at fair value at the end of each reporting period. The HEFFE - TR RABNABTZE
following table gives information about how the fair CRMEBEANBZEN (LERAMN
values of these financial assets are determined (in B e AEE) -
particular, the valuation technique(s) and inputs used).
Relationship of
Fair value  Valuation Significant unobservable inputs
Financial assets 2019 2018 hierarchy technique(s) unobservable inputs  Range to fair value
EAFRTER TAREGAYE
SREE AREEBR HERN BAE &E BAREZBE
HK$'000  HK$'000
TExr TER
Financial assets at
FVTPL
FBBRENALETIERN
tREE
Listed securities 33,857 27,355  Level 1 Quoted bid pricein N/A N/A N/A
an active market
LmES £—H ERMEMEEARE THEA TER  TER

During the year ended 31 December 2019 and 2018,
there were no transfers between Level 1 and Level 2,
or transfers into or out of Level 3. The Group's policy
is to recognise transfers between levels of fair value
hierarchy as at the end of the reporting period in
which they occur.

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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43.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

RECONCILIATION OF LIABILITIES ARISING FROM 43.

FINANCING ACTIVITIES

The table below details changes in the Group's

liabilities arising from financing activities, including
both cash and non-cash changes. Liabilities arising
from financing activities are those for which cash

flow were, or future cashflows will be classified in the
Group’s consolidated statement of cash flows from

financing activities.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEF=A=+-R

METHELENEBEYER

TERHAMAEEREEHELNRESE
B ERASIFRSEH -HEDH
EENARRASREURRRGAE
EAEEGAMBRRTOBEABER
BRELNRSRENARGE

Bank
Lease and other Convertible
liabilities borrowings bonds Total
BITR

HERE Hitfe & ARRES @it

HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

THIT THT THT THL

At 1 January 2018 R=F-\F—A—A - 427,121 189,436 616,557
Accrued interest [ESTFIE - 25,574 26,018 51,592
Interest paid EAFE - (25,574) (20,076) (45,650)
Financing cash outflows MERL L - (112,588) - (112,588)
Financing cash inflows MERLMA - 38,071 - 38,071
Currency translation adjustment EMHhERE - (19,180) - (19,180)
- 333,424 195,378 528,802

Adjusted balance as at RZE-NE—A—-H2

1 January 2019 RBER 880,125 333,424 195,378 1,408,927
Accrued interest FESTHIE 54,930 44,633 11,523 111,086
Interest paid ERFIE - (44,633) (8,658) (53,291)
Mature of convertible bond AARESEH - 193,243 (193,243) -
Financing cash outflows BER T (163,985) (121,258) (5,000) (483,486)
Financing cash inflows MEBRLHA - 144,390 - 337,633
Currency translation adjustment BERBRERE (13,021) (7,837) - (20,858)
758,049 541,962 - 1,300,011

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§
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a4,

INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES
Particulars of the major subsidiaries are as follows:

44,

REE QB ER
TEMBARFBNAT:

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
E3 A BRITEE/
A8 TR ELE HERRAEE ARREGEREES L TEXH
Direct Indirect
E# &
Most Success Corporation Limited Hong Kong HK$10,000 - 40 Lending of logistic
BREEERAF B 10,000 7T facilities
HEMRR
Shenzhen Meiming Wenshi PRC/Mainland China RMB55,000,000 - 100 Distribution of
Trading Limited (i) FE/ R ERL AR #55,000,0007T wine and liquor
RImELAEHERRAA) DB
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 50  Sales of green food
Distribution Limited (i), (ii) RE /R E R AR #10,000,0007T products
R AT R ER M X HEZERM
BRI (i)
Ever Gain Hong Kong Development Hong Kong HK$100 60 - Lending of logistic
Limited EA 1007 7T facilities
KEEBERBRAF HEMR R
Shenzhen Qianhai PRC/Mainland China USD10,000,000 - 100 Financial leasing
Dahuangyuan Financing Lease REL/ R ER, 10,000,000% 7T BERE
Company Limited (i), (iv)
AYTRBARERERE
BB AT (v)

Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd (i) B,/ FERM AE#1,000,0007C and facilities in PRC
EREIRABBREERERAF (i) REBERERANER
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd (i) B,/ FERM AR #1,000,0007C and facilities in PRC

ERERAEHRETEBRATA (i) RPBERERANER
#ife
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Renting of office premises
Investment Management Co., Ltd (i) B /HER AR #1,000,0007T and facilities in PRC

ErARLETREERERAF (i)

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
Annual Report 2019
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued)

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

44,

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019

REL A NER (&)

Place of
incorporation/ Value of issued Percentage of equity
registration ordinary/registered attributable to
Name and operations share capital the Company Principal activities
EmEL, CRITEE/
a8 HEMREE L HAMBRAEE AR EEERBOH TEREH
Direct Indirect
E# Gk
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan Agricultural PRC/Mainland China RMB10,000,000 - 51 Sales of primary
Products Delivery Company RE/E R AR #10,000,0007T agricultural products
Limited (ii) NRRERHE
RITEREEERK K
BRAF (i)
Shenzhen Ming Jian Gold PRC/Mainland China RMB80,000,000 - 100 Rental business
Industry Limited () RE/RE R AR #380,000,0007T HEXB
AIARSEFRRF ()
Shenzhen Huajinhuayin Industry PRC/Mainland China RMB39,000,000 - 100 Investment holding
Company Limited (i) RE/RE A AR #39,000,0007T REER
RITEREREZERRA ()
Linxiang Qiangsheng Mining Industry ~ PRC/Mainland China RMB60,950,000 - 100 Trading of mineral
Company Limited (i) RE/ B A AR #60,950,0007T products
BB EEREELR () BERES
Shanghai Mushi Miancheng Property PRC/Mainland China RMB1,000,000 - 55 Rental of office premises
Management Company Limited (i) B /FE A AR #1,000,0007T and facilities in PRC
FRARERKDEERRR (i) ROBEEERLMER
Rt

Notes: i

(i) Registered as a wholly-owned foreign enterprise (i) REPB AEAMAINGBESE-
under the PRC law.

(ii) Registered as a Sino-foreign equity joint venture (ii) REFEEEEMATIIEERE-
under the PRC law.

@iy ~ The Company holds majority of members in the (iif) KRR BEEET (RERINE
board of directors which is the governing body of IS ) ZHEMN - Bt BERE
these companies and therefore has the power to ZENRMMAREEE WA K AE
direct the relevant activities of these companies, and ZHEREWEKERAIRERNA]E [
is exposed, or the rights, to variable returns from the W AN ERERmEE-
investment with the investee, and has the power to
affect the amount of those returns.

(iv) The English name of the above PRC companies is for

identification purpose only.

The above table lists the major subsidiaries of the
Company which, in the opinion of the directors,
principally affected the results for the year or formed a
substantial portion of the net assets of the Group. To
give details of other subsidiaries would, in the opinion
of the directors, result in particulars of excessive

length.

vy  EdPBERRMEXABEHRBRIZ
e

FRINTEZRREIBXEFERAN
BRAKEEEFEIERD ZAAF]
TEMBAR] - EFR A EEEMH B
RAZHBEEATBN TR

FRELATREXEEEERERAT | 229
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44.
Details of the Group’s subsidiaries that have material
non-controlling interests are set out below:

44,

R LB ER (&)
AEBEEAERNIE D 2 &R A
2B

2019 2018

Percentage of equity interest held by JFEIZERRERMIFRER DL

non-controlling interests:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food ARYNIER AR & R bl X

Distribution Limited BRAA] 50% 50%
Most Success Corporation Limited FEXEEER AT 60% 60%
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan RN ERERERELE

Agricultural Products Delivery AR AR

Company Limited 49% 49%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng IEREERAEBIREER

Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAAE] 45% 45%
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin ERERAEHMILEER

Investment Management Co., Ltd BRA A 45% 45%
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan ERABETREEBERAA

Investment Management Co., Ltd 45% 45%
Ever Gain Hong Kong Development XEBBERBERAA

Limited 60% 60 %
Shanghai Mushi Miancheng Property — _E/EREASEKYIEE R B R AR

Management Company Limited 55% 55%

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. AWEBLA TR (&)
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FTET FHET
Loss/(gain) for the year allocated to B TIERER 2 FE
non-controlling interests: BiE (Wa) -
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food FYNIE AT B R MR X
Distribution Limited BRAF] 816 (793)
Most Success Corporation Limited EREERR QA 7,152 (1,845)
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan YT RERKEREmM X
Agricultural Products Delivery BRAT]
Company Limited 663 2,011
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng IEREERAEBEREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd ARAE] 1,310 (2,397)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin EREREAEMHKNEER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAA] 2,081 (3,361)
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABETREEBERATA
Investment Management Co., Ltd 7,049 (6,036)
Ever Gain Hong Kong KEBBERBR AR
Development Limited 1,202 3,050
Shanghai Mushi MianCheng Property B8RRI EERBR A A
Management Company Limited 6,617 (3,669)
Accumulated balances of REE B EEERER 2
non-controlling interests RETEERR
at the reporting dates:
Shenzhen Beidahuang Green Food YL R ER mAL X
Distribution Limited BRARA (577) 342
Most Success Corporation Limited EREZEFR AT 16,844 13,682
Shenzhen Nongjiayuan YT RKEREmAL X
Agricultural Products Delivery BRAT]
Company Limited (2,791) (2,048)
Beijing Chuangzhangu Desheng TRERAEBEREER
Investment Management Co., Ltd ARAT 600 1,706
Beijing Chuangzhangu Wangxin EREEAEMKEER
Investment Management Co., Ltd BRAT] 900 2,936
Beijing Mumian Shangyuan IERABETREEBERAA
Investment Management Co., Ltd (1,775) 5,323
Ever Gain Hong Kong KEBBERBERAT
Development Limited 837 2,039
Shanghai Mushi MianCheng Property B8R IRKMEERBR A A
Management Company Limited (10,022) (3,524)

FEEAREESEEZERERAT 231
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44, INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44. E{\‘Bﬁ%’&ﬁj E’g%ﬁ_ﬁ (f"’?)
The following tables illustrate the summarised financial TRy R BB R 2B EE R
information of the above subsidiaries. The amounts BompELA IR A TS
disclosed are before any inter-company eliminations: B :
Shanghai
Beijing Beijing Mushi
Shenzhen Chuangzhangu  Chuangzhangu Beijing Mumian Miancheng
Beidahuang Evergain Desheng Wangxin Shangyuan Property
Green Food ~ Most Success Hong Kong Investment Investment Investment ~ Management
Distribution Corporation ~ Development ~ Management ~ Management ~ Management Company
Limited Limited Limited Co., Ltd Co,, Ltd Co,, Ltd Limited
R AR LTREARAEE LRARAZH LRARLR  LEAERR
BRERARE BREE KBRS REER REER REER NEER
2019 “E-NE BRAA BRAA  RRARAR BRAR BRAR BRAR BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
-7 - THT ThR TER TER -7
Revenue WA 302,760 42,496 = 29,586 23,536 79,559 23,703
Total expense kgt (304,391) (30,216) (1,353) (32,499) (28,160) (95,219) (38,407)
(Loss)/profit for the year FF (BR) /&7 (1,631) 12,280 (1,353) (2913 (4,629 (15,665) (14,704)
Total comprehensive (lossincome  FE 2 (B8)/
for the year LON -t (1,734) 12,280 (1,270) (3,163) (4,680) (15,602) (14,849)
Current assets nEEE 7,924 34,086 83,395 49,585 10,748 326,308 165,015
Non-current assets FRBEE 62,345 11,948 49 6,038 4,118 63,622 9,999
Current liabilities REAE 52,619 17,591 75,321 39,320 22,831 9,313 29,758
Net cash flows (used inVigenerated 4 7E8) (F1R) /Fifs
from operating activities Hehess (2,126) 1,061 95 (34,941) (8,558) (217,612) (146,036)
Net cash flows generated from/ REEBHE/ (FA)
(used in) investing activities ReREFE - 2 1" 4 2 8 (2434)
Net cash flows generated from/ BEEBHE/ (FA)
(used in) in financing activities REREFE 5298 11,91 (128) 33,998 8,298 219,218 150,164
Net (decrease)/increase in cash BaRBEZEN (FL)/
and cash equivalents ENFE 3112 12,974 (22) (939) (258) 1,614 1,694

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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INTERESTS IN SUBSIDIARIES (continued) 44, AMEBATINRER (&)
Shenzhen
Nongjiayuan Beijing Beijing
Shenzhen Agricultural - Chuangzhangu  Chuangzhangu  Beijing Mumian
Beidahuang Products Desheng Wangxin Shangyuan
Green Food Most Success Delivery Investment Investment Investment
Distribution Corporation Company Management Management Management
Limited Limited Limited Co., Ltd Co,, Ltd Co,, Ltd
RIBEAR RMITEFE LRERARE IRARAZN LRARLT
HERMALE BRAZ BEMEZ REER RAER RAER
2018 —E-0\f ARAF ARAF BRAFE BRAA ARAR BRAR
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FEL TERL TERL TEL TR ThL
Revenue A 214,792 44,782 512,944 37,383 34,498 79,274
Total expense HxeE (213,206) (41,707) (517,047) (32,056) (27,030) (65,861)
(Loss)profit for the year FE(B8) /& 1,586 3,075 (4,103) 5327 7,468 13413
Total comprehensive (loss)/income FELE (BR)/MALE
for the year 1,586 3,075 (4,103) 4,963 6,989 12,835
Current assets RBAE 52,992 40,429 841 15,93 7,091 38,037
Non-current assets FRBEE 488 13,004 119,106 6,722 5713 10257
Current liabilities nBaE 41,307 30,710 110,308 16,307 16,250 34,738
Net cash flows (used in)igenerated from 458 (FE) /FEREREFE
operating activities 2,715 607 8,751 (933) 1,939 (35)
Net cash flows generated fromiused in) ~ REEBINE/ (FiB)BekEFE
investing activities 20 - 114 (4) (4) (18)
Net cash flows used in financing activities ~ BPEEEIFTAREREFHE @7 - (9,823) - 2,217 -
Net (decrease)/increase in cash RERBEEEN (RD) /EMNFE
and cash equivalents 2,708 607 (958) (937) (342) (53)
FEILAREXEEERERA R

2019 £

233



NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019

— =B
—=

E—hE+=A=+—A

45. STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45,

RESERVES OF THE COMPANY

Information about the statement of financial position

KA BRI R B

ARBRMERAROPBEARRKRERE

of the Company at the end of the reporting period ¥
includes:
2019 2018
HK$'000 HK$'000
FET FAETT

NON-CURRENT ASSETS RBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NG o) 3 1,495,940 1,705,731
Total non-current assets IERBEERE 1,495,940 1,705,731
CURRENT ASSETS REEE
Prepayments, deposits and TERTFIE 1= ® R H At FE Y FRIE

other receivables 9,597 69,732
Cash and cash equivalents BeMIReEEY 37 3,155
Total current assets MEEERE 9,634 72,887
CURRENT LIABILITIES RBEE
Other borrowings HEipgE 407,256 206,595
Other payables and accruals HibhEMRIBEREETE R 40,523 24,887
Bank overdraft RITBEX = 5,032
Convertible bonds Al A B 5 = 195,378
Total current liabilities mEaERE 447,779 431,892
NET CURRENT LIABILITIES BREBEE (438,145) (359,005)
TOTAL ASSETS LESS EEAEBERRBEE

CURRENT LIABILITIES 1,057,795 1,346,726
Non-current liabilities ERBERE
Deferred tax liabilities RIEFHIBEE - 496
Net assets BEFE 1,057,795 1,346,230
EQUITY R
Issued capital BRI TR 622,513 561,726
Reserves e 435,282 784,504
Total equity R R 1,057,795 1,346,230

Li Jiehong ey Ke Xionghan 1) 1 5
Director BE Director EH

China Beidahuang Industry Group Holdings Limited
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STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION AND 45. KNP TIEBBERAENREHE (8)
RESERVES OF THE COMPANY (continued)
Movement of the reserves of the company is as RATREEEHOT :
follows:
Share Share Convertible
premium option bonds  Accumulated
account reserve reserve losses Total
BT
ROBER  BRERE EHHE RitER @t
Notes HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
HisE FRT FAT FAT FAL FAL
At 1 January 2018 RZZ-N\§-A-H 1,583,731 86,670 9,894 (890,845) 789,450
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZABBERE - - - (42,383) (42,383)
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares RREMBRNBETRN 40,000 - - - 40,000
Repurchase of ordinary shares BRETAR (3,626) - - - (3,626)
Lapse of share options BRRRIE R - (49,335) - 49,335 -
Equity-settled share option arrangements REEERRETH - 1,063 - - 1,063
At 31 December 2018 R=B-N%
+-B=+-AH 1,620,105 38,398 9,804 (883,893) 784,504
Total comprehensive loss for the year FEZABBESE - - - (388,521) (388,521)
Issue of shares upon subscription of new shares RBBHRHERITRG 53,114 - - - 53,114
Share issuing expenses B #ITET (1,000) - - - (1,000
Repurchase of ordinary shares BEEER (2,921) - - - (2,921)
Mature of convertible bond Rk EHRIS - - (9,894) - (9,894)
Lapse of share options FRARIE KN - (38,398) - 38,398 =
At 31 December 2019 R-B-n%
TZA=+-8 1,669,298 - - (1,234,016) 435,282

Under the Companies Law (Revised) of the Cayman
Islands, the funds in the share premium account of
the Company are distributable to the shareholders of
the Company provided that immediately following
the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed, the Company will be in a position to pay
off its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of
business.

The share option reserve comprises the fair value of
share options granted which are yet to be exercised,
as further explained in the accounting policy for
share-based payments in note 2.3 to the consolidated
financial statements. The amount will either be
transferred to the share premium account when the
related options are exercised, or be transferred to
accumulated losses should the related options expire
or be forfeited.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—T-hEFE+-A=+—8H
46. LITIGATION 46. FR&R
(i) On 18 August 2015, the Company received (i) RZE—RFNAT+NARB XA

a writ of summons issued from the High
Court of Hong Kong (the “Writ”) relating to a
claim by Mr. Qu Shuncai (“Mr. Qu”), a former
director of the Company. Pursuant to the
Writ, Mr. Qu claims against the Company for
the sum of HK$6,069,000 being damages for
the Company’s wrongful refusal of the issue
of 2,500,000 shares of the Company to him
upon his exercise of the share options. The
proceedings are now at an advanced stage,
and there will be a case management hearing
on 24 June 2020. The Company will update its
shareholders and investors about the progress
of the case by way of announcement as and
when required in accordance with the Rules
Governing the Listing of Securities (the “Listing
Rules”) on The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong
Limited (the “Stock Exchange”).

On 15 August 2019, the Company received
a winding up petition (“Petition”) filed by
Mr. Qiu Zhen (”Petitioner”) for an order that
the Company may be wound up by the High
Court of the Hong Kong pursuant to the
Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32, Laws of Hong
Kong). The Petition was filed against the
Company for being unable to repay a debt
of amount HK$21,140,987. Details of the
Petition were disclosed in the announcements
of the Company dated 15 August 2019 and
22 August 2019. Subsequently, our legal
representatives filed a Notice of Originating
Summons to the Court (under HCMP 1284 of
2019) returnable before a High Court Judge on
19 September 2019 for an order to direct the
Petitioner to withdraw the Petition or otherwise
to be restrained from taking further step to
prosecute the Petition on the ground that the
Petition is an abuse of process of the court.
Due to the General Adjournment of the Court
business, there is no hearing date until further
directions made by the Court.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

46. LITIGATION (continued)

(iii)

(iv)

(v)

On 21 August 2019, the Company received a
writ of summons issued on behalf of United
Target Finance Company Limited (“United
Target”) under HCA 1520 of 2019. According
to the Statement of Claim, United Target being
the plaintiff, claims against the Company for
the sum of HK$10,055,772.96. Our legal
representatives filed an Acknowledgment of
Service on 27 August 2019 and stated our
intention to contest the proceedings. Due
to the General Adjournment of the Court
business, there is no hearing date until further
directions made by the Court.

On 28 August 2019, our legal representatives
filed a Notice of Originating Summons to the
Court (under HCMP 1348 of 2019) to apply to
the Court to dispute a Statutory Demand dated
24 July 2019 issued on behalf of Madam 7 &
& for the sum of HK$20,094,520.55. The case
has been adjourned sine die.

On 24 October 2019, the Company received a
writ of summons (under HCA 1948 of 2019)
issued on behalf of Gemini Funds Limited for
an order to direct the Company to deliver
up the share certificate of 5,000,000 (Bonus)
Shares issued in January 2016 and damages
to be assessed. The said Gemini Funds Limited
has also taken out an application for summary

judgment against the Company returnable

before a Master of the High Court on 9
April 2020. Our legal representative filed an
Acknowledgment of Service on 6 November
2019, and the Company has retained a
Counsel to draft the Defence and an affidavit in
opposition to the application.

46.
(i)

(iv)

B RS ER R M AL
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
5 75 R & Y =

31 December 2019
—F-AF+=A=+—H

LITIGATION (continued)

46.

(vi)

(vii)

Pursuant to the Petition under item (ii) above,
the Company successfully obtained a Validation
Order of the Court dated 17 January 2020,
under which any transfer of the issued and
fully paid up shares in the Company since 13
August 2019 shall not be avoided by 5.182 of
the Companies (Winding Up and Miscellaneous
Provisions) Ordinance (Cap. 32) in the event
of a winding-up order being made against
the Company. Upon the end of the General
Adjournment of the court business, the sealed
copy order will be obtained. The Company will
update its shareholders and investors by way
of announcement as and when required in
accordance with the Listing Rules.

The Company is aware that two civil litigations
in relation to its cooperation contracts were
filed with the People’s Court of Qianhai
Cooperation Zone, Guangdong Province
against the Company, and a bank account of
one of its subsidiaries was frozen as a result
thereof. A writ of summons was issued by the
court and the hearing was held on 18 October
2019. The maximum claim under the two civil
litigations is RMB20 million. As the court has
not yet made judgement after the hearing, the
Company s still seeking PRC legal advice for
further information regarding the situation.
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47.

48.

49.

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

EVENTS AFTER REPORTING PERIOD

(i)

(ii)

Since January 2020, the Epidemic has impacted
the global business environment. Up to the
date of these financial statements, the Epidemic
has resulted in material adverse impact to the
Group’s turnover due to human resources
bottlenecking arising from the Epidemic and
public health measures, and the downtrend is
expected to be carried forward to certain extent
for the rest of the first quarter or even the first
half of 2020 due to the pressure on worldwide
supply chain. Pending the development and
spread of the Epidemic subsequent to the date
of the financial statements, further changes
in economic conditions for the Group arising
thereof may have impact on the financial results
of the Group, the extent of which could not
be estimated as at the date of these financial
statements. The Group will continue to monitor
the development of the Epidemic and react
actively to its impact on the financial position
and operating results of the Group.

On 28 April 2020, the Group has entered
into an extension agreement with an agent
of convertible bondholders of the default
convertible bond pursuant to which the
maturity date of the Default Convertible Bond
was extended to 31 December 2020 and the
extended Default Convertible Bond will be
bearing interest at 12% per annum till 31
December 2020.

COMPARATIVE FIGURES
Certain comparative figures have been restated to
conform with the current year presentation.

APPROVAL OF THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

The consolidated financial statements were approved
and authorised for issue by the board of directors on
15 May 2020.

47.

48.

49.

B RS ER R M AL

31 December 2019
—F-AEFZA=t-F

BERKREE

()

(ii)

—E-TF-RE RBEY
ERERRBEERTE -BEEX
EHMBHREY REEHALE
B EXBEEREANNEE
RERZBMA LB LI MEERK
ANEBRRERB AMHAEE
REEMHEROmmE N &
HTTgeas—ERE LA
ECE-TEFFENHRIE
BREEREZE LY F-HT
MHHRERAPRRBHERLE
FENE I H L G B AR BRI
MEE— T EF A R H AL E Y
BREERTE FERERZ
FMBHmE B YR E LG A
SESEBESRBNER X
T 1 8 4 L 49 N 5% (8 B A5 A %
REXRBERNTE -

RZEZTEFHA=ZF+NAB" R
SEEBHTRRES 2 ATBR
EHFFAEAZ —BRIBFETEH
Bl BT BRRESRZ
NEPAERE-_E -4 +—-A
=+—H BEEHENTHRE
BEHFBIRFFNERI2%TE HEE
ZEZFEF+ZH=1T—HlL-

e B

ETHEBEE TEIINTARNFER
5lf e

HEFSHBHRE

REMBRERER-ZE-_TFRATH
FHESSHAETRENE-

FRLATREEZESEZEREGRAT
2019 &£3§

2218



FIVE YEAR FINANCIAL SUMMARY
hFMBHRE

A summary of the results and of the assets, liabilities and ~ TERMMAEEBERFANRFE 2 EERE
non-controlling interests of the Group for the last five  E- -BEKIEERED  HRSGEE T 2K
financial years, as extracted from the published audited — B&HBEHE WEEEEEY EFHE-
financial statements and restated/reclassified as appropriate,

is set out below.

RESULTS E
Year ended 31 December
BEt-A=+t-HLEE
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TET TR FTHT AT FTET
Revenue WA 779,305 1,267,140 1,114,635 654,843 785,956
(Loss)/profit before taxation BEA (B18),%F (341,893) 12,628 123,182 3,224 37,313
Income tax (expenses)/credit M (A /&% 984 (851) (12,904) 5,353 (22,421)
(Loss)/profit for the year £ (BR) /&7 (340,909) 11,777 110,278 8,577 14,892
Attributable to: ToIpEL :
Owners of the parent BAREAA (291,072) 4,650 115,024 7,217 19,412
Non-controlling interests g (49,837) 7127 (4,746) 1,360 (4,520)
(340,909) 11,777 110,278 8,577 14,892

ASSETS, LIABILITIES AND NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS ZE - -BERIFEERES

As at 31 December

Rt=A=1-8H
2019 2018 2017 2016 2015
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TET TAET TAT TET
TOTAL ASSETS EERE 3,012,655 2,547,969 2,652,807 1,376,435 1,215,213
TOTAL LIABILITIES BERE (1,783,399) (1,035,980) (1,132,871) (396,878) (203,415)
NON-CONTROLLING INTERESTS R ER 81 (52,980) (57,729) (54,132) (4,946)
1,229,337 1,459,009 1,462,207 925,425 1,006,852
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